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M. 8ol Gen, Did you ever hear of any other
Atkins, that lived with Mr. Pepys?

Bedlow. No, none at all. And the fame Tel-
timony I give now, I gave at the firft, And,
my Lord, I could not be pofitive before the
Lords of the Committee, and 1 cannot be pofitive
now.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Indeed he was never pofitive at
the firft. Now, my Lord, if you pleafe, we will
call a Witnefs to prove, that that Day, when this
was fuppofed to be done, Mr. Samuel Atkins had
befpoke a Dinner at Mount Horeb, but he bad
fome other Bufinefs, and did not come, and loft the
Price of a good Dinner. Pray fivear Thomas
Walton, [Which was done. ]

Mr. Recorder. Pray, Sir, what can you fay ?

Walion. As to the Body of the Caufe, I have
nothing to fay. I have not feen Mr, Atkins thele
two Years; but there having been fome Friend-
fhip between us, I had a mind to {ce him, and
fenta particular Friend to defire him to appoint a
Meeting.

L.C.7. When?

Walten, At Mount Horeb.

Mr. At, Gen. My Lord doth not ask Wher,
but When, at what Time?

Walton. At Two of the Clock:

Mr. Adtt. Gen. What Day ?

IWalten. The Twelfth of Offader.

L. C. 7. How come you to remember the Day ¢

Walten. 1 will tell you my Reafon, my Lord.
‘When 1 heard that this Gentleman was in this un-
happy Aftair, I faid, How much better had it
been for him to have been in my Company, that
I might have vouched for him. But you [Point-
ing to the Prifoner.] did appoint, youknow, Sir, to
meet me, And 1 took Cognizance of this Affair,
fpeaking to a particular Friend.

L. C.’}. How long after was this?

IWaltos, When the Tidings were, he was taken
Prifoner.

Mr. Ait. Gen. A great while agone, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. How long after Sir Edmundbury Godfrey
was murdered ?

Mr. A, Gen. About a Fortnight.

L. C. 7. Was there a Dinner befpoke ?

Waltor. 1 belpoke one for him ; he knew no-
thing of 1.

5 M. At Gen. Did he appoint to be there that
ay ¢

Walton, Yes, he did,
ny1t?

Mr. Att. Gen. Did you fend a Meflenger to
himn ?

Walleir. Yes, 1 did.

Mr. At Gen. What Anfier had you?

IWalton. He brought me Word, he weuld come
at two of the Clock tome.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did you befpeak the Dinner for
him, and did you pay for it? |

Walton. 1 never gave him any Account what
was to be for Dinner.

Mr. At Ges. But let this Evidence goas far as
it will. ThisGentleman had a mind to meet him
fent a Meffenger to him to meet him ; he appoint-
ed at Two of the Clock; and he befpoke a Din-
ner for him, but he came not. Now we ule it
thus. I defire to-know of him, when was the
Meflage fent? How long before that Day? Of
was 1t the Day before?

alton. Tt wasa Week before,

Mr. dit. Gen. What Day before ¢

I think he will not de-

Sired to know, if be were acquainted with 4
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Walton. It was a Week before.

M. Ast. Gen. Canyou remember what Day ?

Walton. 1 do not, for I had no Diffatisfaction
becaufe he did not come.

Sam. Atkins. Will your Lordfhip give me leaye
to ask him one Queftion? Iown, Sir, you fentto
me by a School-fellow, about a Week before, and
defired me to appoint a Day to meet you, and I
appointed this Day, and that for this Reafon, I
knew my Mafter would be then out of Town, and
fo I thought I could conventiently meet you; byt
it being Ten Days before, [entirely forgot it 3 buc
can prove by feveral Witnefles, where I did dine
that Day, which I defire may be called. Bu
now, my Lord, this Gentleman 15 upon his Oath,
who is a Proteftant, and was my Schoolmatfter, [
defire him to declare whether I was bred 2 Pro.
teftant, or no ; and whether my Fiiends were fo
or no?

L. C. ¥. How was he bred, Sir?

Walton. He was bred up in the Proteftant Re-
ligion, my Lord.

L.C.7. Were his Father and Mother Pro-
teftants ?

Walton. Yes, my Lord, they were fo, and I
know them very well,

Sam. Atkins, Pray, Sir, declare whether T was
not only bred a Proteftant, but whether I was not
fo alfo when I left your School ?

Walton. Yes, my Lord, he was always a Pro-
teftant, and a very zealous one too.

L. C. 7. Thereis very much in that,

- My, Fupt. Wild, Where is this Mount Horeh ?

My, Recorder. It is in Pudding-Lane, at one Mr.,
Appleby’s.

L. C.7. Well, have you any thing more, Mr.
Attorney?

Mr, Att. Gen. No, my Lord, I have no .more
to fay, till I hear what Defence the Prifoner

makes.
L. C. J. Then, Mr. dkins, you have Liberty

to defend your felf.

Sam. Atkins. My Lord, and Gentlemen of the
Jury, I hope I thall in my Defence proceed very
moffenfively towards God, and towards this
Court. Firft, towards God (before whom I am,
in whofe Prefence I muft appear, and before
whom I can proteft my Innocence as to what is
charged upon me) in that [ fhall declare nothing
but what is true:  And towards this Court in the
next Place, becaufe [ intend to deliver my ielf
with all the Refpet and Submiffion to it, that
becomes a Prifoner. My Lord, this Gentleman,
Mr. Atkins, who hath brought this Accufation
againft me, is a Man whom I have kept from
Perifhing, I fuppofe he will own it himfelf 5 I
Petitioned, Solicited for him, and was inftru-
mental in getting him out of Prifon for a Fadt,
which T fhall by and by tell you. And though
this, my Lord, may feem againft me, yer by
and b

L. é 7. Hold, you miftake, Mr, Atkins, he
does you no Milchief at all, for he faith no more
than, zbat be hath been difcourfing with you about the
Plot, and you faid Sir Edmundbury Godfrey had
very much injured your Maficr s and that you * de-

oit
Man s and asked particularly of Mr. Child, jfsz
bid bim fend bim to your Mafter o aid be faid after-
wards, be bad been there, and wounld bave engaged
bim to join in ¢ Murder, Al which is nothing to

the Purpofe,

Saw,
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Sams. Atkins. Bat I never had any {fuch Difcourfe
with him, my Lord. o

L.C. 7 It you had, or hﬂdﬁ not, it is No matter,
you need not Jabour your Defence as to any thing

he {ays. _
1e3a31. Atkins, I proteft before God Almighty, 1

«now nothing of 1t.
| Mr, Juit. Bﬁ!&w. But what ﬁ}y you to Mr, ﬁgﬁl.
li’s Teftimony? Did you lce the Body of Sir
E duundbury Godfiey av Somerfes-Houfe?

Sain. Atkins. No, my Lord; I am {o far from
that, that in all my Life 1 was never in the

e,

HDIH,FC. % Then call a couple of Witnefles to
prove where you were that Monday Nighe, the
14th of Offober, and you need not trouble yourfelf

any further. _ o '
Sam. Athins, There is Captain Zittles, and his

whoie Company.

L. 7. 7. Canany of thefe fay where you were
the 14th of Ofeber; if they can, acouple of them
is enough. Who is this? _

Sam. Artkins, This is the Captain, my Lord,

L. C. ¥ What 1s your Name?

Copt. Vittles. My Name 15 Fistles, | '

L.C. 7. Do you know Mr. Aikins the Pri-
foner ?

Capt. Viltles. Yes, very well, |

L. C. ¥. How long have you known him?

Capt. Vittles. 1 hele Fourteen Years,

L.C.¥. Can you tell where he was the r4th of
Oﬁlﬂbﬂ?*?

Capt. Vittles. 1 can tell you by feveral Circum-
{tances, that your Lordfnip ihill underftand, that
I do remember the Day.

L. C.¥. Why, you cannot tell what Day of
the Week it was.

Capt. Vittles. Yes, 1 can, it was of a Aoa-
day.

L. C. . Where was he on Monday?

Capt. Vittles. The King was pleafed to com-
mand me to go {0 Antfwerp, to carry over fome
Officers of the King’s to the Garrifon; I re-
turned back the 6th of Ofvber, which was Sui-
day.

Mr. Juft, Fones. How come you to remember
the Days fo exatly ?

L. C. 7. Mariners are very exact and punctual;
they keep Accounts of every Day, and have Jour-
nals of all Paflages.

Capt. Vitiles. Ay, my Lord, andIhave it here
in my Pocket: The 6th Day I arrived at Green-
wich, which was Sabbath-Day, and that Day I
would not come a-fhore, but I let 1t alone while
Mbonaay, which was the yth Day; then, my
Lord, I went and appeared, and gave an Ac-
count to the Sccretary of what I had done, ac-
cording to my Inftruttions, to fee whether he
had any further Service to command me. At
prefent, the Secretary told me, No; o 1 told him
I would go down to the Yatch, and wait His
Majelty’s Commands; and there I ftayed il
Thurfday; and on [riday the Secretary, 1 think,
was going out of Town to Newirarket, and fo
} could receive no Orders from lum, but was to
{tay till he came back. On the Moudaay follow-
ing I came up about Eleven of the Clock, and
I met with Mr. Akins at the Office he had at
his Mafter’s the Secretary’s; faid I, I am glad
you are at home; and, jaid he, I am glad you
are not gone, for there are a couple of Gentle-
women that defire to fee a Yatch, and if you

will go down; I will come down too, and bring;
down my Friends by and by: Said I, I am ghd
I'am in a way to ferve you, and you fhall be
welcome to what I have. So I difappointed two
or three Friends that I had appointed to meet at
Biflingsgate, that I might get my Boat ready.
When I came a-board, I order’d my Men to
clean 1r, and | got ready fome Provifions, fuch
as I had: But in the mean time my young Lord
Derkely and his Men camme to fee the Yarch in
the Afternoon, where the lay then at Grecimoich,
over-againft the College; and I being glad of
fuch a Gentleman’s Company, entermined him
with 2 Bottle or two of Wine, and what the
Ship would afford, and when he went away, I
fired five Guns,  And when he was gone, T was
walking upon the Decic; and I wonder, faid I
to my Men who were with me, that Mr. 4~
fins doth not come; he told me he would be
here with fome Friends; I will go a-fhore if he
does not come quickly.  Anmd fo, if it fhall
Lke your Honour, I ftay’d an Hour longer;
and, faid 1, 1t he doth not come in half an Hour,
I will go a-fhore; and I wus ready to go, when
I faw a Boat at a drtance, and then faid I
will ftay, for I believe that s the Boaty and it
proved fo. It was Two of the Clock when my
I.ord went away, and 1t was then halt an Hour
palt Four, or thereabouts.  So when he came
w-board, his two Friends came a-board with him,
ard went down into the Cabbin, and drank 2
Gials of Wine, fuch as we had; and the Wine
betng good, and jult come from beyond Seas,
we drank ull Seven of the Clock, and I would
not let them go. Then, fad he, T will not
keep the Boat upon Charge here; No, you need
not, faid I, my Boat fhall fee you a-fhore, So
he difcharged the Boat, which was, I fay, about
Seven o' clock, and fo about Eight or Nine
o’ clock we had drunk tll we were a little warm s
and the Wine drinking pretty freth, and being
with our Friends, we did drink freely, il it was
indeed unfeafonable: I mult beg your Lord-
(hip’s Pardon, but {o 1t was; and ac half an Four
palt Ten, I ordered my Men to go off with the
Boat of four Qars, that belonged to the Yatch,
and that would go much fwifter than any other
Boats, and I put him into the Boat very much
fuddled. Now, my Lord, away goes he, with
four of my Men (they are here) and I ordered
them, Pray, fud I, put a-thore Mr. Atkins and
his Friends where they will go a-fhore. So I
went to {leep when he was gone; and the next
Day in the Morning, when the Boat came a-
board, fuid I, Where did yon put a-thore Mr.
Atkins and the two Gentlewomen? At Billings-
gate, fud they, Wiy fo, faid I? Which way
would they get home? for I knew Mr, iius
was very much 1n drink.  Why, faid they, the
Tide was fo ftrong ar the Biidee, that we could
not get thro’ with our Boar. Now it flowed
that fame Night oll twelve Minuces paft Ten;
fo that it muft be near half an Hour paft Ten
when they went away.

Mt Jult. Jild. What, 1t lowed there at paft

Ten? _
Capt. Fittles. Yes 1t cid.

L. C.}. Mr. Bealow, what Time of the Night
was it, that you were at Somerfes- Houfe ?

Bedloww. It was betwixt Nme and Ten,

L. C. ¥. He was on Shipboard chen,

M.
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Mr. Juft. /77ld. He was very fober, that you

{fpoke withal, was not he?

Bedlow. Yes, very fober, my Lord.

L. C % Then call another Witnefs, one of
your Mer, and we have done.

Capt. Vittles. Give the Word for the Boatfwamn
Tribbess.

L. C ¥ Did the Women pledge you, Cap-
tain ?

Capt. Vittles, Pledge me, my Lord!

L.C. ¥ Ay, did they drink with you?

Capt. Vittles. Ay, and drink to us too, my
Lord.

L. C. ¥, Thofe be your Men that ftand there?
[ He, aind feveral other of ihe Ship’s Company were
there.] Whither did you carry Mr. Arkiis when
your Captain commanded you to {fet him a-
{hore ¢

Tribbett. To Billingsgate.

L.C. 7. What Time of Night came you
there ?

Tribbets. At half an FHour paft Eleven.

L. C. 7. What Time dd you carry him from
the Yatch?

Triblest. 1t was about half an Hour paft Ten
o’ clock,

L.C. 7. What Day of the Week was 1t ?

Trilbett. It was on a Nouday.

L.GC 7. Wi, you need not trouble your
{elves any more,

M. At Gen. My Lord, in this Matter, 1t i
in vain to contend 1n a Fadt that is plan,  Bue 1
would defire (becaufe fome perhaps will make an 1li
Ufe of 1t) that they would pleate to take notice,
here 1s no difproving the King’s Evidence. For
Mr. Bedlow did not at firft, nor doth he now,
charge him diretly to be the Man: So that who-
ever reports, That the King’s Evidence 1s difprov-
ed, will raife a very falfe Rumour.

L.C.F. No, no; it 15 {0 much otherwife, that
for all he hath faid herein, lie is the more to be
credited in his Teftimeny; and Mr. Atk need-
ed not to make any Defeince, but muft have come
;}H‘ without any, upon what Mr. Bedlewo fays for
im.

My, Ait. Gei. So likewife for the firlt Man,
all that he fays conlilts together, and may be true,
and yet Mr. &iis innocent.

L. C. 7. Soitmay.

M, Att, Gen. 1 defire the Company may not go
away with a Miftake, as if the King’s Ividence
were difproved.

L. C. J. Notina Tle,

Mr. a1z, Gea, Then I have done, my Lord.

L.C. /. No, T will tell you how it did arife.
It aroie from the Jealoufy of the Murder of
Sir Edmuindbury Godfrey, and Perfons were wil-
ling to lay hold on any Opportunity to find it
out. And Mr. Bedlows was told fuch a Man
fhould be his Fellow to help him to carry away
the Body; and hearing of fucha Name, thought
it poflible 1t might be {uch a one; and he own-
ing himielf to bear that Name, and to Dbe
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Mr. Pepys’s Clerk, when he gave in his Infor-
mation, the People, who were put into fuch
Alarms as thefe, were very ready to catch at it
Therefore no Body was to blame for purfuing
Bedlszr’s Evidence.  He faid nothing then, but
what he fays now, and that is nothing at ail po-
ficive, which 1s all true, and yet Mr. #¢kins doth
appear to be a very innocent Man in this Mat-

ter.

Then the Fury confulted tsgether at the Ber, and
agrecd.

Cl. of the Cr. Gentlemen, are you all agreed of

your Verdict?

Oinnes. Yes.

Cl. of the Cr. Who fhall {peak for you?

Oimes. Our Foreman,

Cl. of the Cr. Samuel Atkins, hold up thy Hand.
[ hich be did.] Look upon him, How fay you,
15 he Guilty of the Felony and Murder whereot
he ftancs Inditted, or Not Guilty @

[ereman, Not Guilty.

Cl of the Cr. Did he fly for 1t?

Foreman. Not that we know of,

Sam. Atkins. God blefs the King, and this He-
nourable Bench, {On bis Kuees.)

Cl. of the Cr. Samuel Atkins, hold up thy Hand.
[IWhich be did.] Look upon the Prifoner, How
fay you, Is he Guilty of the Ielony, as Acceflary
to the Murder, as he ftands Indi&ed, or Not
Guilty ?

Foressan, Not Guilty.

CL. of the CGr. Did he fly for 12

Foreman. Not that we know of.

Sam. Atkins. God blefs the King, and this Ho-
nourable Bench, [O#n bis Kiees. ]

Cl. of the Cir. Then hearken to your Verdidt, as
the Court hath recorded it,  You fay, that Samuel
Atkins 15 not Guilty of the Felony and Murder,
whereof he ftands Indicted; nor that he did fly
forit, And you fay, that he is not Guilty, as Ac-
ceflary to the Felony and Murder whereof he {tands
Indicted, nor that he did fly for the fame; and fo
you fay all?

Qinies. Yes,

L.C.}. Mr. Atkins, 1 thould have been very
glad tha the reft, who have been condemned, had
been @s innocent as you are; and I do affure you,
[ with all Mankind had been innocent, For, if
any Proteftant had been guilty of fuch a thing as
this, it would have grieved me to the very Heart,
that any Proteftant fhould do {uch things, as
thofe Priclts pravoke their Profelytes to at this
Day.

g‘:fzpt. Vittles,. My Lord, here is his School-
mafter will give your Lordfhip an Account how
he was bred and brought up, and what a good-
condition’d young Man he was.

L.C.F. Well, well, Captain, go you and drink
a Bottle with him,

Then M. Atkins went from the Bar.

LXXXLI. 7he
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:“f;;z‘gr o :3 HE 28th of March, 1679, the Af-

AT ,ﬁ-_f:’ fizes began at Monmeuth, Sir Robeit

':'jl“
ﬁ%l T l;;;ﬁ Atkins bemf'r fole Judge. A Grand
‘(}%';Eapf,.w! 2y Jury of Gentlemen was returned by

_}.u'.

( _‘ff,ﬁ;{jw "u} the Snrfuﬁ'~ and called, againft feveral

of whom Mr. Arnold and M. Price
excepted, and fo put by, as fuch they conceived
might befriend me; a Challenge not known be-
tore ; for 1n the Cafe between the Marquis of 7767 -
f:ﬂu, and the Tenants of Wentwood, upon a
Riot, Henry Williams, Bfq; and others would have
excepted againtt fome of that Grand-Jury, the
lame  Judge dtdins then pofitively faid, It was
ridiculous and not ufial to challenge out of a
Grand-Jury. At laft a Jury was fworn and an
Indictment drawn up againit me, upon the Sta-
tute of the 27th Eliz, and preferred to  the
Grand-Jury. That Evening, being Friday, I was
arraigned upon that Bill, to which I pleaded,
Not n'uzlty The next D1 7, about ten of the
Clock in the Morning, the Judge came from the

Nifi prins Side, and fat at the Crown Side, and

I at the fame Time bemng brought to the Bar,

the Crier made Proclamation for Silence, that a
Jury for Life and Death mighe be impannelied,
and 1 made my Challenges; prdi,nt]y a ]ur}r
ifrom the other Bar was called, which was not
ulual, and 1 to challenge, the Judcre telling me,
I miﬂllt cillenge without Hindrance s by guefs
I chlllmcred [IHEE, but out of that N piinus
Jury clled to the Crown ar, and that by
Mr. Ariols’s own Sugueftion, who had u {trong
Influence upon the ]udfre as being his Kminmn
and ficting ar his right Hand, divers were ex.
cepted b, wir, dynolds wheleupm to make up
the Jur -, the Judge commanded the High-She-
nft to call in fome, and he called many, “and of
thofe, ftill Mr. Ainold excepted, as either being
of my Neighbourbood,  or Acqmuntance for
there being many in the Country ; the Sheriff
leeing {o many of his calling excepted, he de-
fired M. Arnold limfelf thould call whom he
pleafed ; whereat the Judge checked the Sheriff,
and Jhe faid he was ﬂmcy At Jaft, with much
Difficulty, a Jury was impannelled, a Jury now
contriv’d; of none but fuch as pleated Mr. Arinold;
principal “Profecutor agamft me, which was very
hard, and an ignorant Jury it was withal:

The Jury being impannell’d, it was fworn,

the Indi&mcnt read, and VWitnelivs culed
thus :

Clerk of the Affizes. David Lewis, hold up
Hand.

Here thou ftandeft indicted of High-T reafon,
Vor. Il

thy

by the Name of David Lewis, for that thou, be-
ing a natural Subject of the King of E:{_gfcmd
haft pals’d beyond Seas, and haft taken Orders
from the Church and See of Rome, and haft re-
turned back again into Enugland, and continued
upwards of forty Days, contrary to the Statute
27 Eliz. in that Cafe made and provided, which
by the faid Statute 1s High-Treafon. What hatt
thou to fay for thy felf? Art thou Guilty, or Not
ouilty ?

Prifoner. Not Guilty.

Clerk, By whom wilt thou be try’d ?

- Prifoner. By God and my Country.

Clerk. God fend thee a good Deliverance.

Clerk. Crier, call Williain Price, Dorothy Fames,
Maney Tiott, Fobu fames, Catharine Thomas, He
calls them, and they all appear. Then fays the
Clerk to the Crier, fwear them: And he fivare
them all.

Yudpe. (Sir Robert Atkins.y William Price, Look
on the Priloner, do you know him ?

Piice. Yes, my Lord, Ido know him.

Fudge. What have you to fay of him?

Price. My Lord, about a Year and a half ago
I faw him at Mrs. Bartler’s Houfe, at a Place cal-
led Caftle-Morton 1n HWerceficrfhire, and there [
heard him read Mals, I wasat Confeflion with him,
and I received the Sacmment from him, ﬂccmdmfr
to that Way.

Judze, Was there any Altar, or any Crucifixes
or Copes ? .

Piice. Yes, my Lord, that therc were,

Fudgze. How many Times did you fee him?

Frice. But that once, my Lord,

Judse, Were you of that Way then ?

Piice. Yes, my Lord, upwards of Eightcen
Years.

Fudge. What are you now ?

Price. A Proteftant, my Lord.

Fudse, Well, Mr, Lewis, what have you to fay
to this?

Prifoner. With your Lordfhip’s Leave, I wili
ani{wer all together.

Judee. Very good, you do well, it will be {o
much the {horter. Dorothy Fawes, look on the
Prifoner, do you know him ¢

Dorothy. Yes, my Lord.

Fudge. What have you to fay of him ? '
Dorothy, My Lord, I faw him fay Mafs, take
Confeflions, give the Sacrament, Marry, Chri-
ften, and heard mim Preach in the Euglifh and

Velch,
Fudge. Were there Altar and Crucifixes ?
Daraff ». Yes, my Lord, Altrs, Crucifixes;
5 K - Ch'ﬂICfE_.,
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Chalices, and fuch other Things belonging to that
Way. |

A’};'fwld. Did you fec him give that they call Ex-
Ireme Unthion 2

Dorothy, Yes, that 1 did, to my Uncle, my
Father’s Brother.

Fudge. Do you know what Extreme Unction
157

Dorothy. Yes, that 1 do, it is anointing fick
People with Oil, when they are dying.

Fudge, IU's right; that’s another Sacrament of
their Church, grounding themfelves upon thefe
Words of St. Fames, as 1 take 1t, If any be fick ainong
you, let him be anointed: But that was in the Tnes
of Miracles only.

Arnold, Did he take upon him to free Soulsfrom:
Purgatory ¢

Dsrothy. Yes, that he did, and he had of me

cicht Pounds in Silver, and one Piece of Gold, to

iree my Father’s Soul.

Prijoner. God is my Witnefs, to my belt Know-
ledge, 1 never had one fingle Piece of any Money
from her, or her Husband, upon any Account
whatfoever.

Fudge. Have you any more to fay ?

Dorothy. No, my Lord, [dad with that fbe
laughed at the Bar.]

Fudge. How now, Woman! do you muke 2
Laughing-game of w? Carry your felf more mo-
deft, for the Gentleman is for his Life, and it js:
no jefting matter, Well, #illiain Fames, look up-
on the Prifoner. Do you know the Prifoner ¢ and
what have you to fay of him?

Williain Faines. Yes,my Lord, I do know him,
and I have feen him read Mafs many Times, and
take Confeffions, and give the Sacrament, and
Chriften, and Marry.

Fudge, IHave you any more to fay?

Witliam “Jaires. No, my Lord.

Fudee, Mr. Trott, what have you to fay of the
Prifoner ? did you ever hear him read Mals?
Was he reputed commonly a Jefuir, or Popifh
Priett?

Trott. Yes, 1oy Lord, he was commonly re-
puted fo, and I heard him often read Mafs; and
I faw him marry Mr, Guater's Daughier to M.
_Q:?rg]'.

Judee. Were you then of that Religton

Frotz. My Lord, I was deluded by my Wife
vut of the Proteflant Religion, and was a Papilt
during her Life-time,

Fuage. Are you of that Rehgion full ?

Tioit. No, my Lord. When I faw their wicked
Defigns to kill my Gracious King, 1 abhorr’d thewr
Traiterous Proceedings, and left them, and am
now a Proteftant.: in which I thall continue,

Judge. You do well.

Armold. My Lord, there 1s Mr., Roger Sayes, 8
very matertal Witnefs,

Fudge. Crier, fwear him. Mr. Sayes, what
have you to fay againft the Prifoner ?

Sayes. My Lord, I was employed with others,
on the 16th of Nevember laft, to go and fearch
for him, and we found him, and took him,
with feveral Popifh Things, which we carried
away, .

Fudge. Did you fee him at Maks.

Sayes. No, my Lord.

Fudge. Then fitdown, What have you to fay,
Fobn “fames ? What, are you dead, or afraid to be
whipt ¢ Look upon me, and fpeak out.

_ Fobn Fames, He married me and my Wife.
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Judge, Is that all you know? Did you fee him

at Malfs.

Fobn james. L know no more.

Judge. Catharine Thomns, did you fee him ar
Mafs? Why do not you {peak, Woman ? Speak,
Woman.

Catharine Thoimas. Yes. 1 have no more to fiv.,
do what you pleafe with me, "

Arnold. My Lord, there 1s one Corielius in
Court, 1 {ee him, who was Clerk.,

Fudge. Crier, call him, fivear him. Well,
Cornelius, did you ever fee the Prifoner at Maf 2

Cornelins. 1 am an ignorant Fellow, I know nor
what Mals i,

Willions fames. My Lord, he was his Clerk.

Coruclins, No, I was his Servant.

Fudge. Welly ficdown, Mr. Lewis, now wha
have you to fay to all thefe Witnelles, for you
felf 2

Prifonc. My Lord, my Inditment was, Thar
being a Natural Subject of the King of Zuglain’,
I was Ordained beyond the Seas, by a Junidicii-
on derived from the See of Reme, and rerurn-
ed back again into Eugleud, &c. contrary
the Statute i that Cale made and provided, 27
Efliz. Under your Lordfhip’s Favour, I concuive
that there has not been here any one Witnels,
who hath proved the Indiétment, or any Parc
thereof.

Fudge, What then? Do you expet that we
fhould {earch the Records at Rowe, or theuld bring;
Perfons to prove, that they faw you ordained
there? No, Sir; it 1s cnough that you have ex-
ercifed the Funétion of a Priefl, in Copes and
Veltments uled in your Church, and that you have
read Mafs, taken Confeflions, given Abfolutions,
Married, and Chriftened ; if all chiswill not make
you a Prielt, what will? I have tried feveral
Popith Priefts, but never met with fo full a Proof
as this now,

Prifoner. ANl thefe Things fuppofed proved,
will not make me a Prieft, unlefs proved to be
performed by me, as one Ordained beyond the
Seas, by the Jurifdiction derived from the See
of Rowme; for the very Miniftry of the Church
of Lugland take fpecial Confeflions, and give
formal Abfolutions; many, in cafe of Neceffity,
Chriiten, tho” no Priefts 5 and Jately, . the Coun-
try knows it, one, no Popith Prieft, folemnly
married a Couple; neither can one prove to
have feen me read Mals, unlefs it be proved firft,
That I was Ordamed beyond the Sexs, by a
Jurifdi€tion derived from the See of Rowe; for,
no fuch Ordmation, no Priclt; and, no Prieft,
no Mafs,

Fudge. To difprove all thefe Witnefles, by fay-
ing, 1t cannot be proved you were Ordained be-
yond the Seas, by a Jurifdiftion derived from the
See of Rome, 1s as much as that faying, Bellermine,
thou lyeft.

Prifoner. My Lord, wereit proved that I read
Mafs, that were not Treafon in me, for I am in-
form’d, that it were but the Forferture of zoo
Marks, by a Statute of 23 Eliz.

Fudge. *Tis true, who hears Mafs, forfeits one
Hundred Marks, But be that ufes to read it, cominits
Treafon :  But thefe are the Tricks of you all,
yet all will not do : Have you any thing elfe to
fay?

Prifoner. With your Lordfhip’s Leave, now I
defire to fpeak fomething to the Evidence of every
particular Witnefs.

?H{{g’rﬂ.
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dre. Speak then. :
%f‘fﬁiff’?‘.PPﬂY Lord, as to the firft Witnefs,

Price s as | hope to be faved, to the belt of my
Memory, I never faw him, oll this very Day, be-
£re. 1 never knew or heard before now of that
Nirs Bartlet, or of that Place Cry?!{-;’l_/_faﬂa;:; I ne-
ver was in that Place all my L:lte-tirne; nay, I
never was in Wercefterfbire, or 1n any Houle in
IVorcefierfbive, but twice, the laft Time whereof
was ibout Gve Years agos; and that was but at my
Inn in WWercefler Town, where, with a Servant, 1
alighted, befpoke my Supper, went to the Cofiee-
houfe, drank two Difhes of Coliee, read the
Gazette, returned to my Inn again, quped, went
to B-d, next Morning bought fome few Books at
i+ Stationers, Dined, took Horfe, returned home
ageain:  This is all the being I ever was in /7o
cefferfbiie. _ _

“udge. Look upon him, do you know him?

Price. Yes, my Lord, he 1s the Man.

Fudge. Flave you any more to fay ! |
Prifoner. Yes, my Lord.  Mr, Trof was martied
to 2 Kinfivoman of mine, and fhe was a confide-
derable Formune to him, which he having fpent
very idly, and the dymg, he went to Loudon,
where finding an Employment at Court, and
there having done fome unhandfom Things, he
was banifhed the Court, and now lives upon
the Charity of Gentlemen and Friends for his
Bread ; fo that with good Realon it may be be-
lieved, it is rather Poverty and hope of Guin,
than any thing elfe, that brings him here to ac-
cufe me,

Yudge.  Paupertes ad Turpia

as & Dwarf, -
Hewas a Dwarf C Litdle Gentleman, what

691t,
can you fay to this?

Trot, My Lord, Iwasover with the King, and
he commanded me to attend him at Whiichall
on his Reftoration, where [ came when I returned,
and I was received into his Service, but was
never banifhed the Court, only I came away upon
Difcontent, and ftill 1 may go there when I pleafe :
My Lord, I am defirous to do my King and
Country good Service, but [ am 1n danger of
?ny Life amongft them, and muft look to my
clf.

Fudge. Ay, Mr, Trot, have a careof yourfelf,
you dowell. My, Lewis, have you any more to
fay for yourfelf?

Prifower. My Lord, Dorothy Fames, and Hilliam
Fames her Husband, their Evidence 15 grounded
upon plain Malice, and that Malice thus ground-
ed 5 They oretending 1 owed them Money, they
fued me in Chancery; but after a confiderable
Charge at Law, finding themfelves not like fo to
prevail, then they fell to threatning me, that they
would have me in Hand, that they would make
me repent, that fhe would never give over to
profecute againft me, il fhe had wafhed her
Hands mn my Heart’s Blood, and made Potage
of my Head.

Fudge, Can you prove that ?

Prifoner, Yes, my Lord, that I can,

Fudge, Call your Witnefies then. ]

Prifoner. Crier, call Richard Jones, Ame Wil-
liams, Anne Fames, and Catharine Corneliys.

Fudge, What can you fay, Richard Fones ?

Richard Jones. 1 heard William fames fay, he
would make Mr. Lewis repent.

Jidae. e ¥illiams, what can you fay ?

Aune Williams, 1 heard from f{everal Perfons,

that Dorothy Fames faid to feveral Perfons, in and
Vou. ]l
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about Carlion, that fhe would wath her Hands
i Mr. Lewis his Blood, and that the would
have his Head to make Potage of, as of a Sheep’s

Head,

Catbarine Cornelius., My Lord, and I heard the
fame.

Judge. dune Fames, what can you fay ?

Anpe Fames. 1 heird Dorothy Fames {wear, that
{he would wafh her Hands in Mr. Lewis’s Heart’s
Blood.

Fudge. Where did you hear her fay fo?

iune Fames. 1 heard her fay fo in her own
Houfe, at the Fire-fide, when I lived with her.

Fudge. Well, Mr. Lewis, all this will not do,
all will not excufe you from being a Pricft; or
were you a Hypocrite ?

Prifoner. My Lord, I am a Native of this
Country.

Fudge. What, of this Country ?

Prifoner. Yes, my Lord, of this Country ; and
thofe Years I lived in this Country, I lived with
the Reputation of an honeft Man, among(t all
honeft Gentlemen and Neighbours.

Fudze, Well, Mr. Lewis, have you any more
to fay ?

Prifomer. My Lord, Mr. Sayes was fworn
Witnels againft me, [ defire to ask him one
Queltion,

Jtdee. Do fo.

Prifoner. Mr. Sayes, when you took me, was
there a Juftice of Peace with you, at taking of
me ¢

Sayes. No.

Prifoier, My Lord, with this Opportunity I
humbly beg leave to clear my felf from a foul
Afperlion, wherewith I am calumniated over the
whole Nation, in a Printed Pamphlet, which
Pamphlet I can here produce; and wherein there
is not one Line of Truth, For it fays at the
End of it, that I was taken by a Juftice of Peace,
and others, in a Place cunningly contriv’d, un-
der a Clay-Floor, which Mr. Sayes knows to be
untrue, and whereas it alledges, ‘That I cheated a
Poor Woman of Thirty Pounds, to redeem her
Father’s Soul out of Purgatory, the Pamphlet
names neither the Woman nor her Husband, nor
her Father, nor the Place nor Time, when nor
where.

Fudge, Does it not ?

Prifoinzr. No, my Lord; fo that the whole
Pamphlet is one entire Lye, devifed by fome foolifh
Malice.

Fudge. Mr, Lewis, T, for my part, do not be-
lieve it to be true.  Have you any more to fay 2

Prifener. No more, my Lord.

Fudee. Then withdraw and repofe. Gentle-
men of the Jury, Here he ftands indicted, {Je.
[And fumm’d up 1he whole Evidence.} 1t you be-
lieve what the Witnefles fwore, you muft find
the Prifoner guilty of High-Treafon; you have
heard what was proved agamlt hiu, therefore go
together.

Prifoier. My Lord, before the Jury go, I de-
fire to fpeak fomething, which now occurs unto
me, and is material againft the Evidence of
Price.

Fudge, Jury, ftay. _ ‘

Prifoner. This very Morning that Price came
to my Chamber, with the Goaler (it feems 1t was
to view me) he took a Turn about the Room,
all the Time eying me; at his going out, he
was ask’d by the Goaler, whether I was the

5 K 2 Man
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Man he meant ? and he anfwered, If T was he,
I was much changed, and if I was he, T had black
fhort curled Haur ¢

Fudse, Can you prove that ¢

Piifoner. Yes, my Lord

Fuage. Where are your Witnefles ¢

Prijoncr. Crier, call Ehzabeth Fones, and Charles
[odzoards,

Yudge. Woman, what can you fay to this?

Elim, Fores. My Lord, Piice this Morning,
after he had view’d the Gantleman m his Cham-
ber, as he was going out he {uid, If he be the
Man, he is much changed, and hath black curled
fhort Hair; which is not fo.

Yudse. Charles Edwards, what can you fay?

fodwards, 1 heard Price fay the fame Words
fhe relates.

Yudge, Where is Price 2 Crier, call him.  Bu!
be was uct be found, being gone out of the Hall.
(This was the Trick of Coleimair, to afperic the
Witnelles. )

Hire the Swry <vent outy end smmediasely returned
: arzalil,

Clerk, Are you agereed of your Verdit:

Fuiy, Yes.

Clerk. Who fhall fpeak for you ¢

Feiv, Foreman.

Clerk. David Leiwis, hold up thy Hand. Do
vou find the Prifoner Guilty, or not Guilty ¢
 Fury. Guilty.

Fudge. Have you any more to fay ?

Prifoncr. No more, my Lord.

Clerk, Dovid Lewis, hold up thy Hand.

Yudge. Give me my Cap, David Leuwis, thou
thalt be led from this Place, to the Place trom
whence thou cameft, &c. {As wfual in Cafes of
High-Tireafor.] fo the Lord have Mercy on thy

foul.
Then I made a Bow to the Judge, and the

Court arofe.

Afterwards, Awg. 27, 1679, he was executed
according to the Sentence, at Uske in Monimonth-

fhire, where he fpake as follows.

* ERE is a numerous Affembly, I fee; the
H geat Saviour of the World fave every Soul
of you all; I believe you are here met not only
to fee a Fellow-Native die, but alfo with Expec-
tation to hear a dying Fellow-Native fpeak. If
you expected 1t not, at leaft I intended 1it, I hope
the Favour will not be denied me, it being 2
Favour fo freely granted to feveral late dying Per-
fons in London it telf. I fhall endeavour to fpeak
inoffenfively; Thope the fame Favour will not oe
denied me.

Let none of you fuffer as @ Murdcrer or a Thitf,
put if as Chyiftian, let bim not be afhamed : St.
Peter’sWords, 1 Pet.1v. 15,16, I hope by God’s
Holy Spirit now whifper'd to my Memory,
and that to my abundant Confolation ; for I fuffer
not as a Murderer, Thief, or fuch like Male-
fador, but as a Chriftian, and therelore am not
athamed. '

I diftinguith two forts of Life on Earth, Life-
moral, and Life-natural 3 Life-moral is that by
which we live with good Repute in the Elecem

of other Men of Integrity ; Life-natural 1s that’

by which webreathe; in the firflt fort or kind, I
thank God I have fuffer’d lately, and cxceeding-
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ly, when malicioufly, falily, and moft injurioufly,
I was branded for a publick Cheat, in Pamphler,
in Ballad, on Stage, and that in the Head City of
the Kingdom, yea, and over the whole Nation,
to the huge and great Detriment of my good
Name, wihich I always was as tender of, as the o-
ther I ain now quitting.

The Pamphletical Story (believe my dying
Words) had no Truth in 1t; netther to Subﬂumf:
nor Circuamftance of the Thing ; a Story fo falfe,
that I could have eafily defied the Face that had
attempted to quitity i1t to my Face; fo fordid o
Bufinefs, a Story fo ridiculous, that I wonder
how any fober Chnftian, at leaft who knew me,
could as much as inchine to believe fo open an
Improbabihity ; who that Proteftant young Man
there mention’d was, I know not; who that
Popith young Woman; who the Father dead a
Year and a half before 3 tn what County, what
Parifh, were all tranfalted, I know nor, “none of
afl thefe there particularized; and when in the
Face of the Country at laft Lens-Affizes, 1 vins
dicated my Innocency herein, to the Satisfaction
of the then Judge himfelf, why appeir’d not
there then fome one 1o make good tie Charge,
and difable my Defence? But noneof this of-
fer'd ; a plain Demonfiration to all candid Minds,
the Whole was a meer Fiction ot fome malici-
ous Perfon againft me : God forgive them or
him, I heartly do. How torward my End:a-
vours always have been to my Power to relieve
the Poor, and niot directly o defraud them, im-
partial Neighbours that know me can twll you;
befides this, during my nine Months Imprifon-
ment, feveral foul and falfe Afperfions were caft
out againft me, and that by thofe unto whom,
for full thirty Years, I had Dbeen charitably fer-
viceable: God forgive them, I hearuly do.
Yet notwithftanding all thefe Calumniations, I
hope I {till retain the Character of an honeft Man
amongft Gentlemen of Worth, with whem I con-
verfed, and with all Neighbours of Honefty, with
and among{t whom I lived.

And now I am parting with the other Life by
which I breathe, behold that within thele few
Moments of Time is to unbreathe me; but why
thus flede’d to tlus Country-Tydurn ¢ Why this
fo untimely Death of mine? Have Patience, and
"l tell yous; not for any Plotting, I aflure you ;
and what I fhall now fay, as to that, God is my
Witnefs, I fhall fpeak without any Equivocaton,
mental Refervation, or Palliation of Truth whar
foever. *

By all that is facred m Heaven and Earth, I
here folemnly proteft, that Tam as innocent from
any Plot whatever againft his Majefty’s Perfon or
Government, as the Infant that left the Motner’s
Womb but Yefterday 5 neither did  ever hear or
know ary thing direétly or indireétly of any fuch
Plot, ’till publick Fame had fpread it over the
Country between Michachnas ana All-§aints Day
laft . This is true, as God fhall judge and fave
my Soul; ncither was chere any Guilt of any
fuch black Crime found in me by Mr Oates,
Mr. Bedlow, Mr. Dugdale, and Mr. Prapnce,
when by them I was ftrictly examin’d on that
Point, laft Mdey, in Newgate, Loundon s nay, had
I had the leaft knowledge or hint ot fuch Plor,
] had been as zealoufly nimble 1n the Diicovery
of it, as any the moft loyal Subjeét his Majefty
hath in his Three Kinodoms 3 wherefore, when
I am dead and gone, it fome Malevolent give

out,
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out, I lofe my Lifz for Plotung, by Charity ftrive
to difengage him of his Miftake; do that Right
to my dead Afhes. _ o

I was never taught that Doctrine of King-kiil-
ing, from my Soul I detefl and abhﬂr.it_us exc-
crable, and direéily oppolite to the l-'_’r:naples of
the Religion 1 profefs; what that 15, you fhall
know by-and-by; it being the pofitive Defini-
tion of the Council of Conflairce, That it 1s dam-
nable for any Subjeét, or private Perfon, or any
Subjects in Council jomned, to murder his or
their lawful King or Prince, or ufe any publick
or clandeftine Coniptration againit him, tho’ the
faid King or Prince werea Turk, Apoftate, Per-
fecutor, yea, or a Tyrant in Government: Ne-
ver tell me of Clezent the Murderer of Heury the
Third of France; never tell me ot Rauvilliac,
Murderer of Hewiy the Fourth of France; they
did fo, but wickedly they did fo, and for it
they were punith’d to Severity, as Malefactors ;
and for 1t, to this very Day, are fhgmatiz’d by
all Romair Catholicks for very Mifcreants and Vil-
lains. I hope you will not charge the whole Ro-
man Catholick Body with the Villanies of lome
few Defperadoes: By that Rule, all Cl}riftiani-
ty muft be anfwerable for the Treafon of Judas;
tor my part, Ialwayslov’d my Kmng, I always
honour’d his Perfon, and I daily pray’d for his
Profperity; and now, with all unfeign’d Cordi-
ality, I fay 1r, God blefs my gracious King and
lawiul Prince, Charfes 11. King of Eugland, and
Prince of Wales, God blefs him temporally and
ceernally, God preferve him from all his real
Enemies, God direct him tn all his Counfels, that
may tend to the greater Glory of the fame great
God; and whatever late Plot hath been, or s,
the Father of Lights bring it to Light, the Con-
trivers of 1t, and the Actors in it, that fuch may
be brought to their condign Punifhment, and In-
nocence preferved.

But why again this untimely Death? My Reli-
gion 15 the Roman Catholick Religion, in it [ have
liv'd above thefe Forty Years, in it I now die, and
fo fixedly die, that if all the good things in this
World were offered me to renounce it, all fhould
not move me one Hair’s Breadth from my Rosmair
Catholick Fatth; a Reiner Catholick Tam, a Re-
man Catholick Prieft I am, a Reman Catholick

Prieft of that religious Order call’d The Sociely of

fefis Tam; and I blefs God who firft call’d me;
and I blefs the Hour in which I was firft called
both unto Faith and Function.

Pleale now to obferve, 1 was condemn’d for
reading Mafs, hearing Confeflions, adminiftring
the Sacraments, anointing the Sick, Chriftning,
Marrying, Preaching: As for reading the Mafs,
it was the old, and fill is, the accultomed: and
lawdable Liturgy of the Holy Church; and all
the other Acts, which are A&s of Religion, tend-
ing to the Worthip of God; and for this dying,
I die for Religioi: Moreover know, that when
laft May I was in Lowdon, under Examination
concerniag the Plot, a prime Examinant told
me, that to fave my Life and increafe my For-
tunes, I muft make fome Difcovery of the Plor,
or conform; difcover Plot I could not, for
I knew of none; conform I would not, becaufe
it was againft my Conlcience; then by confe-
quence I mulft die, and fo now dying, 1 die for
Confcience and Religion; and dying upon fuch
good Scores, as far as humane Fratlty permits, I
die with Alacrity interior and exierior ; from the

Jor High-Treafon.
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abundance of the Heart, let not only Mouths, but
Faces alfo ipeak,

Here, methinks, I feel Flefh and Blood ready
to burlt into loud Cries, Tooth for Tooth, Eye
tor Eye, Blood for Blood, Life for Life; No,
crieth holy Golpel, Forgive, and you fhall be for-
groens pray for thefe that peifecriie yous love vour
Enemies 3 and I profefs mylelt a Child of the Gof
pel, and the Gotpel I obey.

Whomever, prefent or abfent, I have ever of-
fended, I humbly defire them to forgive me; as
for my Enemies, had I as many Hearts as I have
Fingers, with all thofe Hearts would I forgive my
Enemies, at lealtwife, with all that fingle Heare 1
have, I frecly forgive them all, my Neighbours
that betray’d me, the Perfons that rook me, the
Jultices that committed me, the Wimnefles thas
prov’d againit me, the Jury chat found me, the
Judge that condemu’d me, and others whoever,
that out of Malice or Zeal, covertly or openly,
have been contributive to my Condemnation; but
fingularly and efpecially, I forgive my capital Per-
fecutor, who hach been fo long thirfting after my
Blood; from my Soul I forgive him, and wifh his
Saul fo well, that were it in my Power, I would
feat him a Seraphim in Heaven, and I pray for
them in the Language of glorious St. Stepber the
Protomartyrs Lerd, lay not this Sin unta thems or
better yet, in the Style of our grear Mafter, Chrift
hindelt, Father forgive them, they knew not what
they do.

And with Reafon I love them alfo; for though
they have done themfelves a vaft Soul-prejudice,
yet they have done me an incomparable Favour,
which I fhall eternally acknowledge; but chief-
ly I love them for his fake, who faid, Lsve your
Enemies s and n Teflimony of my Love, I wifh
them, and it is the beft of Withes, from the
Center of my Soul, I wifh them 2 good Eter-
nity. QO Eternity, Eternity! How momenta-
nean are the Glories, Riches, and Pleafures of
this World? and how defirable art thou, endlefs
Eternity ?

And for my fuid Enemies attaining thereunto,
I humbly befeech God to give them the Grace
of truc Repentance, before they and this World
part.

Next to my Enemies, give me leave to lift up
my Eyes, Hands, and Heart to Heaven, and drop
fome few Words of Advice unto, and for my
Friends, as well thofc prefent as abfent.  Friends,
Fear God, Hoioui your King, be firm in your Fuith,
averd mortal S, by frequenting the Sacraments
of holy Church, patiently bear your Periccutions
and Afflictions, forgive your Enemies, your Suf-
ferings are great; Ifay, be firm 1n your Faith to
the End, yea, even to Death, then fhall ye heap
unto yourlelves Celeftal Treafures in the neavenly
Ferufalen, where no Thief robbeth, no Moth eat-
eth, and no Ruft confumeth; and have that blef-
fed Saying of the blefled St Perer, Prince of the
Apoftles, always i your Memory, which I hear-
tily recommend unto you, wiz. Lel noune of you
fuffer as a Murderer or @ Thigf, but if s a Chri-
Sian let bim wot be afbamed, out glorify God in bis
Naine.

Now 1t 1s high ame I make my Addrefles to
Heaven, and fupplicate the Divine Goodnefs in
my own Behall, by fome few fhort and cordial
Fjaculations of Prayers,

His Prayers being ended, he was turn’d off,
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Hall, in the Court of King’s-Berci, when
and where the Commuifion Was read
and Proclamation for Attendance being made, and
the Grand- Jury fworn, Sir faies Butler, Her Ma-
jefty’s Attorney General, and Chiet Commuflioner
that then appeared, gave them their Charge thus

Gentlenen,

His Majefty, upon the Addrefs of the Honour-
able Houfe of Commors, hath been pleafed to give
Order for this Cemmiflion of Oyer and erruuer
that hath been read, to iffue out; and the Court
taereby hath Authority to mnquire of, hear and de-
termine feveral other Oifences: Yet, at this pre-
{ent, you fhall have no other in Charge than the
particular Olfence recited in the Indictment in my
Hand, Itisa Crime of an umufual and rare Na-
ture: The Indi¢tment 1s againtt Nathaiael Readsug,
it fets forth the Plot agamit the King, the Go-
vernment, and the Religion eftablithed here by
Law, the horrid and pernicious Mifchiefs and Con-
iequences of it: It fets forth likewife, that feveral
Perfons, {and names them) as Coleman, Ireland and
Grove were Tried, Condemned, and Executed for
the fame: That feveral Lords in the Tewer do
{land Impeached in Parliament, of the faid High-
Treafon, and other High Crimes and Mifdemea-
nours; and this was well known to Mr. Reading,
and that notwithflanding he hath fo misbehaved
himlelf, in endeavouring to leflen and ftifle (as
much as in him lay) the King’s Evidence, that if
it had not been happily prevented, might have
been of molt mufchievous Confequence, I fhall
not take upon me to recite the whole Indiétment
to you, being very long, and not feen or perufed
by me ull now; but you fhall have the fame along
with you, it fhall be read to you. Your Duty s,
to examune and conflider of the Evidence to be of-
fered you, on the Behalf of the King, for the
Proof of the Charge againft the Offender: If you
find it amount to a Proof of what is luid therein,
nay, I muft tell you, if you have but probable
Evidence, you ought to find the Bill, becaufe your
Prefentment and Verdiét is not 2 Conviction, but
in the Nature of an Accufation, in order to bring
the Prifoner to a fair Trial: And if you do not
find the Bill, he fhall never be brought to his
Trial; but if you (having probable Evidence) find
it, he fhall receive his Tral by the petty Jurys
and upon the Merits, be either Acquitted or Con-
victed. Thisisas much as [ think 15 fit for me to

Then the Witnelfes were froorn, and the Grand.
Jury withdrew, and after the Space of abous
balf an Hour, returned, fding it Billa Vera,
After whico, the Court adjonrned to Thurf-
day, the 24th Day of Apnil, at Eight o* clock
i the Moiuing, tn the fame Place,

On which Day the Commiffioncrs bere-under-
named being met, VIZ,

Sir Francis Nerth, Knight, Lord Chief Juftice of
His Majefty’s Cotirt of Cominen- Pleas,

William Mountague, Elq; Lord Chief Baron of
His Majefty’s Court of Exchequer.,

Sir IWilliai: Wylde, Kt. and Bart. one of His Ma-
jefty’s Juftices of the Kiig’s-Beuch.

S Hugh Wyndbam, Kt one of His Majefty’s
Juttices of the Cosiniizgir-Pleas.

Sir Robert Athins, Knight of the Bath, another of
the Juftices of the Connnon-Pleas.

Sir Edward Thurland, Kt. one of the Barons of
the Exchequer.

Vere Beitie, Idfq; another of the Juftices of the
Comiicn-Pieas,

Sir Themas Fones, Kt. another of the Juftices of
the King’s-Bench,

Sir Lraicis Bramflon, Kt, another of the Barons
of the Exchequcr.

Sir Williaiin Dolben, Krt, another of the Juftices of
the King’s-Bench.

Sir Williain Fones, Kt, His Majefty’s Attorney-
General.

Siv fames Butler, Kt, one of the King’s Council,
and the Queen’s Attorney.

Sir Philip Mathews, Bart,

Sir Thoinas Orby, Kt. and Bart.

Sir Thomas Byde, K.

S William Bowles, K.

Str Thoinas Stringer, Serjeant at Law.

Sir Charles Pitfield, Kt

Thoinas Robinfon, 7

Huinphrey Wyrley, 2 o

Thamas Heryot, and{ M

Richard Gower, 5

Proclomation was made for Aitendence, and the
Grand Ingueft being called, Sir Francis North,

Lord Chief Fuftice of the Common-Pleas,
(tbe Lord Chief Juftice being out of Town)
fpoxe to them thus

Lord Chief Fuftice North. You of the Grand

* Jury, This Seifion is upon a particular Occafion,

* He bad been Seeretary to Maflanello, at the Infis reilion at Naples, abiut Thirty Years before, .

and
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and that which lay upon you was to hnd the Bill,
and that you have done, and we do‘ not fee any
thing further for you'to do, and thercfore the Court
difcharges you from any further Artendance this

Seffion,

Then Mz, Reading was fent for, aid brought to she
Bar, by Captain Richardfon, the Keeper of
Newgate; and Silence being Procloea, the
Clerk of the Crows read the Indttiinent to bism.

Cl. of the Cr. Mr., Reading, hearken to your In-
dictiment.

You fland Tndidted, by the Name of Nathanael
Reading, late sf the Parify of St. Margaret Weft-
mingter, 1 the Coan’y of Middlefex, £fg; That
hereas Idward Coleman, William Ireland, and
John Grove, and other (tiknswit) falfe Traitoys
againft oui meft Serciie Lord King Charles I1. rhe
s11h Dayof April iizthe Thivtieth Xear of bis Reigi
ot the Pariflof St. Margarer’s Weftmunfter, in the
Couinty of Middlelex, bad Traiterouflyy aimong them-
felues, Confpired; C onfulted, and Agreed, owr foid
maft Screne Lord the King to bring and put 1o Death
and final Deffiuflions and fo msve I7ar apainft Lim
our Lord the Kine, within this Reelm of England,
aind the Relizion iin the fanc Kingdom 1igbtly aid by
the Lazs of the fame Realm Lfiablified to Coange
and dlter to the Superftition of the Romifh Church,
and the Government of the fame Kingdom to Subvert
Jur cohich certatin moft wicked Treafons, and Traite-
rous Confpiracies, Confiliations, and Agrecments a-
forefaid, They, the faid Coleman, Ireland and
Grove, i due Mauner,y aid according o the Laws of
this Kingdom of Englind aftcrwards were Aitaint-
ed, and bad therefore nndergone the Pains of Death :
And whereas William Eer! of Pows, William 7/
cornt Staivord, Joun Zerd Pelafs) Henry Lord
Arundel of Warder, Wiilwii Lerd Petre, and
Siv Henry Tichbuin, Bait. the 30th Day of No-
vember 7z 162 abovefard 30:h Tear of the Reign of
cur faid Lord the Kiug, at the faia Parifb of St. Mai-
aarct’s Weltminiter, in the County aferefaid, <ocre
of the aforclaid Treafons in a lawful mamner Accufed,
aid therenpon, according to the duz Form of Law, to
the Tower of London (being the Prifon of onr jaid
Lord the King) were Comnnitted, there fafely to be
kept, to dnfiver the aforefaid Treafons; whereof the
fame Willlamy Earl of Powis, Willam Fifrornt
Stafford, John Lsrd Belafis, Henry Lord Arundel,
and William Lord Petre iz Parliament, by the Com-
mons 1i the faime Payliament affendled, are Iinpeach’d -
But you, the faid Nathanael Reading, 2be aforefaid
Premifes [uffciently knowing, and being Devilifbly af-
fected againft o moft Screne Lord the Kiung, your St-
preme and Natural Lord, and devifing, and with all
your Might tntending, to diffuid the Peace and com-
smon Tranquillity of this Realm, and the Goverameit
of the fane Kingdom, and the fincere Religion of God
i the Jainey vighily and by the Laws of the faid
Realin Eftablifbed, at your Will end Pleafure fo
Change and Aliery and the State of this Kingdo,
thro’ all its Parts well Infbituted and Ordained, <ohol-
ly to Subveits and to obffinil, hinder and flifle the
Difecuery of the faid Ticafons, and, as much as in
you lay, the due Conrfe of Law in that Part to fbift
off, and retard in the Profecution of Fuffice againft
the faid William Earl of Powis, Wiliany Vifcount
Stafford, Wiliam Lerd Petre, and Sir Henry
Tichburn: Zou, the fard Nathanacl Reading, #he
20th Day of March, in the 31 Yecr of onr faid
Lord the King, at the faid Parifaof §t. Margarer’s
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Weltmintter, in the County aforefaid, on the Part of
the aforefaid Willlam Ear/ of Powis, William /7~
connt Stafford, William Lord Petre, and Sir Henry
Tichburn, falfly, advifedly, corruptly, and againft
the Duty of your dllegiance, did unlawfully folicit,
Suborn, and endeavour to perfuade; onre William Bed-
low, (who, on the 29th Doy of March, in the faid
31 Year, i due Menner did give Informatici of the
Jaid Ireafons; and whom You, the faid R cading,
the Day aind Tear Inff abovefaid; did well Fnozo the
Information of the faid Treafons as aforefeid to bave
grveny on the Part of our Lord the King) upon the
Trial of the aforefaid William Ear/ of Powis, Wil-
ham Zifeount Stafford, William Lord Petre, aind
Sir Henry ‘Tichburn, for the Treafons aforefaid, to
be bad, to leffen ond fiifle, and to cinit to give in Evi-
dence the full Truth, according to bis Kuowledge, of
the aforcfatd Treafous, againft Thein, the faid Wil-
llam Earl of Powis; William Zifeount Stafford;
William Lord Petre, aud Sir Henry Tichburn,
aird Yo give fuch Evidence, as Yo, the faid Natha-
nacl Reading, fbonld direft : And You, the foid Na-
thanacl Reading, fooner and smore effelinally 1o
perfuade the aforefaid Willlam Bedlow 20 leffen
and fliffe, and fo oinit to give in Evidence the full
Truth, accoraing to bis Knowledge; againft the faid
Willam Earl of Powis, William Fifeount Staf-
ford, William Lsrd Petre, and Sir Henry Tich-
burn, upon therr Tiials, and to give fuch Evidence
as You, the aforzfaid Nathanael Reading, twonld
dirett: 1w, the fard Nathanacl Rending, after-
wards, on the feid 29th Day of March, b the 31/
Year avovefaid, at the afciefaid Parifo of St. Mar-
care’s Weltminfter, 7 the faid County, falfly,
advifedly, corrupily; and againff the Duty of your
Allegiance, wilewfully did give to the fame William
Bedlow Fifty fix Picces of cotined Gold of this King-
domy, called Guineas: Aud alfo fallly, advifedly,
corruptly, unlacafelly, and againt the Duly of your
Allegiance, the Day and Year cbovefaid, at the a-
forefaid Parifh of St. Margaret’s Weltminfler, iz
the Jaid County of Muddielex, did promife to the
faid Bedlow, that He, ihe faid Bedlow, within o
certain Thie, by You, the aferefuid WNathanacl
Reading, to the fuid Budlow propofed, fhuld have
aind recerve divers other great Sums of Mbouey, and
other great Rewards, for leffeung and Rifling and
oinitting to give in Lvidence the full Trath, accord-
fig to bis Kinowledge, of the aforefaid Treafons againfe
the faid William Larl of Powis, William Fifcount
Satford, William Lord Petre, and Sir Feary Tich-
burn, and for giving fuch Evidence, as You, the faid
Nathanael Reading, 45 the foid Willlam Bedlow
Should dired, to the great Hindrance, Offfruliion,
and Suppreffoir of Tuftice, in manifefp Contempt of
the Lawos of this Realm, to the evil and pernicions
Exainple of all others in the like Cafe offending ; and
againft the Peace of onr Lord the King, bis Crown
and Dignity, &c,

How fay you, Mr. Reading, arc you Guilty of
this Trefpafs and Mifdemeanor, or Not guilty ?

Readine. Not Guilty, in Thought, Word or
Deed.

L. C. ¥. Not Gutlty, is your Plea ?

Reading. Yes, my Lord.

Cl. of the Cr. Crier, make Proclamation, You
oood Men of this County of Middlefex, fummoned
to appear here this Day, to try the iffue jomed be-
tween our Sovereign Lord the King, and Natha-
sael Reading, anfwer to your Names, and fave
your Iflues.

Thew
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Then the Pannel was called over, and Procle-
mation for Iuformation i ufual Form twas
made.

Cl. of the Cr. Mr, Reading, look to your Chal-
lenges. 'Will your Lordfhip pleafe to have Sir
Febu Cutler to be Foreman 2

L.C.7. Yes.

Reacing. My Lord, I havea very great Honour
tor this worthy Perfon, Sir Yobi Cutler 3 he 15 1n
CommufTion of the Peace, 1 do therefore humbly
defire he may be exculed at this Time,

L.C.7. Mr. Reaaing, you cannot chailenge
him peremptortly in this Cule, it not being for
your Life; and therefore you muft thew Caule if
you ave any. He is not in this Commiffion at all 5
and fer his being in Comumfiion of the Peace, that
ficnies nothing, for we oftentimes in the Circuits
rake them off the Bench to be Jurymen; but if
yvou can fhew any Caule of Challenge, it mult be
allowed you.

Reafiig, My Lord, 1 look upon my felf In-
dicted for Treaion; (I defire God to give me
strepgth, and 1 am fure of your Lordfhip’s Pa-
tence,) and I ook upon the Indictment which
hath been read to me, and upen which 1 have
been arraigned, to be exprefly Treafon; and I
do humbly pray your Lordfhip’s Judgment mn
it, whether 1t befo or not: For, my Lord, (if
your Lordfhip pleafe) if it be fo, as I underftand
my own Insocency, {o your Lordthip underfkands
my Charge better than I'do.  And God knows I
have neither {trength of Body, nor prefence of
Mind to monage my own Defence; but my
Happinefs is; that I am alive at this Day, and am
to be tricd here befere fo Honourable a Bench,
My Leord, I have not had the Advantage of any
Counfel to aflift me, nor the Benelit of any Com-
mon Friend, no not my Wife to come to me, I
hiave not been able to help my felf thro’ the great
Indifpofition which I have been under, reduced
to it by that barbarous and illegal Ulage which
I iave had : For fmy Lord) I hope I may ly I
am the Arfe Ergafsion thar in my Circumitances
nath cver been ufed as I have been; and my
tlopes are, whatlocver becomes of me, (the
{.ord’s Will be done, ) T fhall be the laft that ever
Mhall be fouled. My Lord, upon the Weaknefs of
my own Apprehenfion, I do take 1t, that ’us as
high a Trexion, nay a greater Treafon, amd that
i the Words of the Indi@tment, than ever Mr,
Celeinan, or any of the others that have been Fe-
cuted, died for; or the Lords now In the Zewer
ftand Charged with; and therefore; my Lord, I
pray your DireCtion mn st, 1f it 1s but a Mifdemea-
nor, (for truly what the Crime 15 I know not,) but
in cenfiruction of Law, admitting the Indictment
true, the whole does contain in it the blackelt
Treafon that ever Villain was guiley of. If it is fo
in your Lordfhip’s Judgment, whatever fhould be-
come of 1t now, 1 may be Indited for it again;
and fhould this {ndi¢tment be found upon me, |
am as certainly in the Eye of the Law a dead Man,
as thro’ the Mercy of God I am now alive : And
(my Lord) if it be fo, I defire your Lordfhip’s
Judgment, whether I may not be allowed 2 pe-
remptory Challenge.

L.C. 7. Mr. Reading, You {peak in due time,
for’nis pertinent to the Martter of peremptory
Challenge, to confider whether this be an In-
di¢tment of Treafon; for if it be, the L aw does
allow in favour of your Life a peremptory Chal-
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Icngé to fuch a Number; and I will tell you, your

Apprehenfions have fomething in them: That
the Fact as *tis laid in the Indictment, might have
been lud fo as to have made it an Indi@ment of
Treafon; and if you are Guilty of this Fadt, and
not IndiGted for Treafon, but only for a Mijiie-
meanor, *tis a Favour to you, and that of which
you cannot take Advantage or complain of, D[]
now (hew you that this Indictment 15 not an Ip-
ditment of Treafon, nor can the Judement of
T'reafon be given upon you for ir; and fo there.
by your Life is not mn danger.  Firfl, here is nos
the Word Proditorie, which is neceflary in all In-
dictments of Treafon: Next, you nuft obferve
that all Treafons are exprefly particularized in the
Statute of 25 Ed. 3. And nothing is Treafon bur
what 15 contamned 10 that Act, a5 Coinpaficg o)
Deaih of the King, Levying IVar againft the K,
and other Faéts mentioned 1 thar Statete. Now
if this Faét had been here haid asan Overt-AE: for
the Evidencing of the Imagination of vour Heare
in Compalling the Death of the King, and the
Deftruétion of the Realm, there it had Leen an Ir-
dictment of Treafon: But being there 1s no Tre -
fon formally laid, nor the Word ( Prediteric) which
1s neceflary m all Indiétments of Treafon, s on-
Iy a Mifdemeanor you fland Charged with s which
I muft tell you 15 a grear kafe and Fuvour to you
m fuch Circumitances as we are now; and if it
be fo, you muit fhew Cauic it you challenge any
Juror.

Reading. If T may (with your Lordfhip’s Fa-
vour) I am very highly difpoled for the taking of
the lealt of Favours thar can be thew'd me, with
the deepelt Acknowledgment that an Innocent
Man and one in Diftrels can make : But (my Lord)
among the greateft of Misfortunes, this I own as
my Happinels, that I am now on my T:ial before
your Lordthip.  But pray (my Lord) muay not I
(having this Favour thew’d to me, and thould it
be only found a Miidemeanor) afterwards be In-
dicted for Treafon? And pray (my Lord) docs
there want any one Circuinftance of the Formality
of an Inditment for Treafon 1in this aaanft me,
but that one of Pioditerie ¢

L.C.¥. No, itis not laid that you did Cempafs
the Death of the King.

Reading. Then (with Your Lordfhip’s DPar-
don} I do not underftand 1t: for the Indictment
docs fet forth, Twat Coleman and others did Coi-

[pire the Death of the King, Levying Wai, the A~

tering of Religion and Subvefion of the Governiiitt ;
foir wwbich they juftly fuffcied Death.  And further,
as to the feveral Lords in the Indi€timent men-
rioned, they are accofed for the fame Treafon;
And juftly, and according to Law feni to the Tower,
to Anfwer what they fand juftly impeached of by the
Commons : And 1t fets forth further, that T pre-
mifla predifta fotis feiens, did fo and {o: Were
there no other Expreffion, that, my Lord, s cx-
vrefly Treafon, or no doubt Milprifion of Trea-
fony for, my Lord, it does charge me that [ am
fatis feiens particularly, fufficiently well apprized
of thofe Treafons they were Executed for, thefe
Accufed. And that T did not this out of the
Weaknefs of my own Apprehenfion, but falfly,
advifedly and malicioufly, My Happineds 1s, 1 fhall
have your great Judgments to determine this Mat-
ter for me.

L.C.J. Mr. Reading, you exerctie great Elo-
cution and Eloquence; but if I do apprehend

you aright, what you fay is this: That the In-

/ diétment
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JiGkment fats forth, that you fatis feiens of thofe
Treafons did 1o and fo, which will amount to
a Miforifion of Treafon. 1 muft tell you, there is-
. difference between the Knowledge of aTreafon
that is fccret, for the concea_hng of‘ thaF, and en-
deavouring to {tifle the Evidence, IS Mifprifion of
Trealon; but the knowing of a Treafon that is
revealed and difcovered 1s knowing no more than
all the World knows ; and not laid as a Fault,
but to aggravate the Fault afterwards charged.
This Difcourfe is nothing to the matter 5 1f you
would have our Opinion, whether you may af-
terwurds be queftoned for Trealon, ’zi_s that we
are Ot (0 give you 3 anfwer the Indiftment as
now it is : You have favour enough that it 1s]aid
this way, and not the other. An IndiGtment of
Treafon or Mitprifion muft not be laid fo as that
the Crime muit be eoliected out of the Matter of
Fa&t only, but it muft be formally lud.  How
you fhall be proﬁ:cuted hereafter, muft depend up-
on the Juftice of the Kingdom. We fit here now
ta determine upon what Matter lies before vs, and
{o we cannot érant you a peremptory Challenge
ia this Cafe, which is only allowed in Matters
Capital in favour of Life.

Reading. My Lord, 1do defire to know whe-
ther this be Treafon or 1o, That being devififbly
aff:c3ed to the King my Supreme and Natural Lord,
and iitending to levy War in the Kingdom, and o
change the Governmenty and 1o aller the Religion,
and [ubver: the Peace of England 5 whether that be
not Treafon ? |

L. C. ¥. Mr. Reeding, We will anfwer none
of thofe Queftions : But this  will fay to you, no
Tudgment of Treafon can be given upon you up-
on this Indi&ment ; and tho’ thefe Acts (if for-
mally laid) might havé been Treafon, yet it not
being fo, we muft proceed as it lies before bs:
And therefore if you have any particular Caufe to
challenge Sir Fobu Cutler, thew 1it, and we will
hear you,

Reading. My Lord, I have this Caufe, I hdve
been but a {ittle time acquainted with this worthy
Gentleman ;3 bur, my Lord, I have feen him in
Company with Mr. Aedlew, mine Acculer, [
know there is not a common Intimacy and
Friendfhip berween them @ T am very cettain, my
Lord, that Sir 7ebn hath too much Honour to do
me wrong 3 but I do humbly defire that he may
have his Eale, and be excufed at this time ¢ not
that I do diftruft his Jultice, but for the Reafons
1 have humbly offered,

L. C. #. Look you, Mr, Reading, your Accu-
fers are Witneffes for the King, and are neither to
oain nor Jofe by your Trial 5 and thercfore can-
not be prefumed to make any Party for your Con-
viction. And do you challengé a Juryman be-
caufe he 1s fuppofed to know fomething of the
Maiter ? forthat reafon the Juries are culled from
the Ncighbourhood, becaufe they fhould not be
wholly Strangers to the Fact. If you can fhew
that he hath already given his Verdict by his
Difcourfe, and that you are already.condemn’d in
his Opinion, that may be fome Caufé of Chal-
lenge ; but that he hath difcouried with- Neigh-
bours as others do, 1t may be he believes it; and
may be does not believe it, he 1s how o give his
Verdi&t upon what he hears upon Qath.

Reading. My Lord, | am very giad o fee Sir
Yobn Cutler here, for 1did intend to have his Evi-
dence for me.

L, C..¥. That you may haveéstho he bé {worr,

. Vour. IL

Then the Fuvywere figorn, and their Niwmes twore
as followeth, viz,

Sir Fobn Cutler, Thomas Caffe, Efg;

Fofbuab Galliard, Efqs! RainsfordWaterboufe, Elas
Edward Wilford, Biqs' Matthew Bntmm:,fl%fq;q

Thomas Henflow, Elq; | Walter Mayle, Efq;
Thomas Earsby, Biqs | Richard Paget, and
Fobn Erle, Elg; Jobn Haynes, Efq;

L. C. F. If Sir Fobn Cutler defires Pen, Ink
and Paper, or any other Convenience, let him
have IL.

Cl. of the Cr. Gentlemen of the Jury, hearken
to the IndiCtment. He ftands indifted by the

Name of Nathanael Reading——

L. C. . You need not open the Indi&ment,
et the Coundel do that,

Then Edward Ward, Efg; being of Counfel for the
King i this Caufe, opened the Indictment,

May 1t pleale your Lordfhip, and you Gentle-
men of this Jury, Natbanael Reading, Efq; ftands
indifted tor this Offence : ‘That whereas Edward
Colemany, William Ireland, and obn Grove, and
other unknown Perfons, (Traitors againft our
Sovereign Lord the King) the 24th Day of April,
in the Thirtieth Year of the King, did traiteroufly
contrive the King’s Death, the Subverfion of the
Government of the Kingdom, and the Religion
in the fame Kingdom by Law eftablithed, to al-
ter and change to the Superftizion of the Ro-
mith-Church 3 for which Treafons they have
been in due mander attainted and executed :
And it farther lays, That whereas #illiam Earl
of Powis, William Lord Vifcount Stafford, Fobn
Lord Bellafis, Henry Lord Arundel of Wardeur,
William Lord Petre, and Sir Henry Titchburn,
Baronet; were the goth of November laft, in a
lawful manner, accufed of thofe Treafons, and
for them committed to the Tower 3 and thereof
the faid Liords were ahd ftand mmpeached by
the Commons in Parliament : The fard Mr.
Reading well knowing of thefe Things, and
being devilifhly affefted to the King, his Su-
preme and Natural Lofd, and deviling to dif-
turb the Peace of the Kingdom, and the Go-
vernment and Religion thereof rightly eftablifh’d,
to change and alter; the State of the Kingdom
wel] inftitited, to fubvert 5 and to obftruct and
ftife the Difcovery of thefe Treafons, and as
much as in him lay to fhift off and returd the
Courfe of Law and Profecation of Juftice againft
the faid Lord Powis, Lord Stajford, Lord Petre,
and Sir IHenry Titchbburn ; the 1aid Mr. Reading,
the 2gth of March lalt palt, at St. Margaret's
I¥eftminfler, on the part of thefe three lalt men-
tioned Lords, and Sir Henry Titchburn, did falfly,
cortuptly, advifedly, and againft his Allegiance,
unlawfully follicic, fuborn, and endeavour to’
perfuade one Mr. /7illiam Bedlow (who before
had given Information of theft Treafons againft
the faid Perfons, and whom Mr. Reading knew
o to have done) to leflen, ftific, and omit to
give in Evidence the full Truth according to his
Knowledge of the faid Treafons againft the
faid three Lords, and Sir Heury Tischburn, upon
theit Trial to be had, and to give fuch Evidence
as he the faid Mir. Reading fhould diveét 5 and to
that purpofe, fallly, corruptly, advifedly, and
againlt the Duty of his Allegiance, unlawfully
did give to Mr. Bedlow fifty fix Guineas, and

5 L promifid
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promifed him, that within 2 certain Time (by
the faid Reading propofed) he fhould have and
receive divers other great Sums of Money and
Rewards, for leffening, fufling, and omitting to
oive 1n Evidence the full Truth, according to
his Knowledge of thofe Treafons againft the
faid three Lords and Sir Henry Titchburn 3 and for
giving fuch Evidence as he fhould direét: And
this is laid to be to the hindrance and {upprel-
fion of Juftice, in manifeft Contempt of the Laws
of this Realm, to the evil Example of others 1n
the like Cafe offending, and againft the Peace of
our Lord the King, his Crown and Dignity.
To this Indi€tment Mr. Reading hath pleaded
Not Guilty, If we prove the Offences afore-
faid again{t him, we doubt not but you will
find him Guilty.

Sir Crefwel Levinz, one of the King's Learied
Cosinfel i the Lacw, thus cpencd the Charge.

May it pleafe your Lordfhips, and you Gen-
tiemen of the Jury, Iam of Counfel for the
King in this Cafe: Gentlemen, This Indi¢tment
is not an Indictment of High-Treafon, nor of
Mifprifion of Treafon; and truly the Gentleman
at the Bar hath fomething wondred at the King’s
Lenity to him; the Fact in the Indiétment does
indecd found of another Nature, than what it
bears the Name of 3 1t does in this Indi&tment
carry the moft mederate Charaéter that the Fact
wiil bear : It 1s only an Indi€tment of Trefpals
and Mifdemeanor, but ’us a very high Miide-
meanor ; ‘us to {tiffe the King’s Evidence, and
that not in an ordinary Cafe, but where 1t is at-
tended withh the greatelt Ageravations that can
be in any Cale whatfoever, It a Man fhoulkl en-
deavour to {tifle the Evidence in an A&ion be-
twixt Party and Party, 1n the Courts of J¥ek-
sminfler-Hall, for a Bulinels of about 405, thoie
Courts of Juftice would find a ready way to
punifh him. This is a Crime of another Nature,
for it 1s fet forth in the Indi€ment, That Cole-
man, Ireland, and Grove had a Traiterous Defign

in hand, for the which they were Executed, that,

is, the Plot; and when I have fuid that, I have
faid all, That implies all; you all know what
was thereby defigned. *Tis fet forth in the In-
dictment, That fuch Lords, and Sir Heury Titch-
burn, were privy to the Plot, and accufed for it,
and to prevent the Evidence to be given againft
thele Lords, three of them, (for the Bargain was
only made for three, wsz. my Lord Stafford, my
Lord Powis, and my Lord Peire; the reft were
out of the Bargain, and had not, it feems, found
out the Way of Commerce now ufed by thefe
Perfons) was this Gentleman, Mr, Reading’s
Bufinefs. It was to diminith and leffen the Evi-
dence that was to be given againft them, who
were charged and accufed to be as highly Guilty
of the Plot as any thar were Executed for it.
And when ] have told you this, you will furely
conciude *us an high Offence, and an high Mil-
demeanor : For 1t the Life of the King, if the
Law of the Land, if the Religion Eftablifhed, if
the fettled Government be valuable; if your
own Lives, your own Liberties, and your own
Fortunes, have any Confideration with you, this
is a very high Mifdemeanor ; for you muft look
upon thefe as all at Stake: This Plor, as it was
laid, did reach to all ; fo that an Endeavour to
conceal the Evidence that thould difcover, and

thereby prevent the Exccution of {o horrid a
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Confpiracy, 15 a very heinous Mifdemeanor and
you will eafily believe, that the Gentleman at
the Bar, the Prifoner whom you are to Try, had
reafon to doubt within himfelf, why it thould
be called fo fmall an Offence as an high Mifde-
meanor : But I will not, I need not aggravate
this Offence, and the rather becaufe the Gentle.
man that ftands accufed for it, 15 of a Profeffion
(for which I am forry) which obliges him to
know and underftand all the Aggravations of his
own Crime. I will not open the Evidence, nor
tell you what the Witnefles will fay, I had rather
you ihould have it fromn themfelves ; but, if I am
rightly informed, you will have the Matier fully
proved ; and therefore we will call the Wit-
nefies, and let them tell you what it is they have
to fay.

Mr. Ward, 'There are fome Things laid in this
IndiCtment, that are to be previoufly proved, in
Order to the Charging of the Prifoner ; as the
Exccotion of Colesman, and the reft; and the
Impeachment of the Lords. I Mr. Reading
ftands upon i, we have thofe here that will
DIOVE If.

L. C. 7. Mr. Reading, Thofe Publick Paffages
that are laid in the Preamble of the Indi¢tment,
do you infift they fhould be proved firft?

Reading. My Lord, 1 am very willing to fave
your Lord(hip’s Time.

L. C. f. Doyouadmit that Coleman aad Ire-
land, &c. were Executed for Treafon ?

Reading. Yes, my Lord, and very juftly.

L.C.7. Do you admut that the Lords in the
Tewer are Accufed and Impeached 1n Parliament
for this Plot?

Reading. Yes, my Lord, I do.

L. C. 7. Then you eafe thom of the reading
thole Records.

Reading. And, my Lord, I do further fay,
I do verily believe there never wasa greater Plor
Jaid in Hull than this, T have abhorr’d 1t 1n my
Thougpts, and have not only endeavoured to en-
courage the Difcovery, but always gave it as my
Counfel, that nothing that was true fhould be
left out in the Evidence. And I do, and will,
fave your Lordfhip’s Time as much asI can.

oir Cr. Levinz, Then, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
we will call our Witnefles, and prove the Falt;
and if there be any thing that Mr. Readsng doubts
of, we will prove it afterwards. Swear Mr. Bed-
low.  Which was done.

Mr, Ward. Mr. Bedlow, 1 fhall only ask you
the general Queftion.  'Will you be pleafed to
tell my Lords and the Jury, what you know of
this Bufinefs ? Tell the whole Story, what Dif-
courfe and Bargainings there have been between
you and Mr. Reading, for the diminifhing and
leffening of your Evidence,

Bedlow. My Lord, Mr. Reading was altoge-
ther a Stranger to me, till Sir Trevor Williams
brought me acquainted with him; he was always
very juft to me in whatfoever he did for me,
and wherein he was employed by me. 1 found
him very honeft, in reference to my own Con-
cerns. And tho' Mr. Reading will bring a great
many People, perhaps, that he hath prefs’d me
to difcover the whole of the Plot; I do confefs,
he did it in a very high meafure, in all publick
Company, and that I would not be be balk’d in
any Point: And for the Difcovery and Convict-
ing, and Executing, of thofe that had died about
this Plot, he never deny’d but they fuffered juftly
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and kuwfuily enough @ But in private  Counfels
where we have been tegether, he hath fioken
to me to be cautious,  Indeed he hath revar en-
deavoured to have me fulle the whole Plor, but
only for fome particulir Peopie that he folicited
fors not but that he believed them guilry, as
well as the reft s bur he defired me thae I would
not be fo hot againtt them,  And alter Le had
muede me Laly, (that was his Word that he him-
felf ufed) he would have had me made My, Dag-
dole Laly too. At feveral ?imrs, when we have
been together, his vary Expreffions have been
o me, Mr. Bedlsiey, Tho’ there has been fo
damn’d a Defign on foot, and fo terrible a one,
yet it IS not for your Safety ner Credit to run at
the whole Herd of Men: Ior I was this Day,
or Yefterday, he faid, with my Lord Chief Ju-
ftice, and he told me, That at this Rate thas
Mr. Bedlow accules Men, none are fufe, {or he
runs at the whole Herd; and femed o me to
intimate, that my Losd Chief Jultice was not
plealed with my Forwardnels. And he told me
hikewife, You gain your Point with the Parlia-
ment, and with the King, and with the King-
dom, if fome fuficr, as [ believe you can do i,
and not run at the whole Herd, and ’tis an in-
different Thing to you, fo you make the Parlja-
ment your Iriend, by proving there is a Plor,
and the King your Iriend, in not charging all
thefe Lords, and you’ll mulze all the Lords your
Friends, by your Kindnels to them.  You fhall
take my Inftructions, ! v il never adviie you any
thing that 15 i, but Pl tell you how far you
thall procced. 1 you can hix any thing for them,
vou fhall be fure to be well granfied.

L. C. F. Did he name any Lords to you ?

Bedleww. This was the Beginning of the Dif
courfe, my Lord 5 and [ anfwered him, My, Read-
ing, Tlhis is a very nice Point, and I know them
to be guilty of all the Things I charge them
with, and i can prove 1t. If your Advice be fo,
Il confider of it. I think 1t was after the Pro-
rogation of the lafc Parliament, and then my En-
couragement for Difcovery was not fo great.  But
faid I, 1f any of them deny 1t to you, that they
are guilty, then they mult expect no Kindnefs
from me at ally for 1 wil feexr all that I can
againft them; bur if they acknowledge thar I
do them a Piece of Service m not {wearing too
feverely againft them, then I will be ready to
take your Advice and Inftructions, He told me
maity Times, that Siv Fenry Tichburn did think
he had feen me in Paszs, but he did not ufe this
Expreffion to me, That I charged hun with
bringing Commiflions over from Rome, 1 an-
fwered again, you may well Sir Hewiy Tichhuriy,
if he denies any thing of the INaét that 1 have
fworn againft him, he does me and himfelf a
oreat Injury. And to take him off as an innocent
Man, 1 cannot do it, I will never do 1. But
upon Acknowicdgment, | may do them fome

Kindnefs.  So Lkewife my Lord Pewis and Cu-
7y, The Gentlemen that he moft folicited for,

were, my Lord Powis, my Lord Petie, my Lord
Siafferd, Swr Heriy Tichleyu, Wir, Roper, Mr.
Coryll, and one Mr, Corler a Jetuit,  And like-
wile he made me eafy, upon that Day that
Mr. Whitehread and Mr. Fucick were upon
their Trial; for 1 have cnough againft them,
becaufe I could be no Suunger to Whitehioad
and Feawict, two fuch confiderable Men, being
{o much concerned as I was in therr Affans, It
Vo, IL
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was impoflible T fhould be fo much 2 Sumnger
to them, as I faid 1 was, but it was Decanle
Mr. RKeadinz had then made me ealy, and I 1n-
Fended 0 carry on the Intrigue with him, ill
it could be handfomly difcovered. Bug my Lond
Chicf Juﬁmc asked me whesher that was o] |
couid tay ¢ And [ told him, My Lord, | have
lomething more to Ly, when Time and Flace
require I, and when I can be fufe in teliing ir
that 15, when I had fourd our all thar My, Recd-
o intended to do, how far he woulkd oo, and
then I thoughe 1t would be a prepur Time, when
I could make our fome fiich Information as I
now co; but I wowd rot ftifle thar Treaty that
was berween him and me, abour the Lojds in
the Tocoer, which I knew was of greater Con-
fequence then two old Priclts.  Afier the D.5-
lution of the Parliament, he told me, We mull
fee other Times and other Changes, and that. e
Lerds did not think themfelves m 1o much Dan-
ger as when the Parliament was fitdse. Bae
at feveral Flaces, the Palfireve-Head Tavern,
and others, we have had Difcourte o the Bl
Efiect.  He would very frequently come tome,
and talk with me about it. Now [ asked Coun-
fel of no Man, for 1 have no need of it in [y
Matter 3 *as not Matter of Law, but Matter of
Facty that Tam to nake out, therefore 1 had no
nexd of his Advice, but he would be ur my Bud-
fide very often 1n a Morning, and before 1 was
drefled, and then we wied o difcourfe together
about this Balinefs, and the Manrer and Form
how 1t fhould be done, and how well [ fhould
be rewarded i I oot off thofe Lords, that i, my
Lord Petre, my Lord Pewis, my Lord S7afford,
and Str Heniy Tichbarn s thele were the Four
that made the Promifes: But Mr. Reading [oli-
cited for the other Lords too; they did promife
a noble Reward, but I could never fettle or fix
what 1t fhould be, but I fhould have Acknow-
ledgments both in Money and Eftate, from the
Lords, for ihortning the Evidence, and bringing
thern off from the Charge of Hish-Treafoir. \We
had feveral Confultations about this, The Mpidav
that my Lord Danby was fent for by the Black
Rod, Mr. Reading came to me in the Speaker’s
Chamber, and told me, Mr. Bedlsiw here 15 2
great Turn, my Lord Treafurer is fent for by
the Black Rod, and Things are like to go quite
another way. Well, fud I, when were you
with the Lords n the Tower 2 Said he, I have
rot been there thele two or three Days, bur faid
he, I intend to go to-morrow, and then Pl
bring you word what they fiy. And the nexe
Day, or the Day following, lLe came to me, and
told me, That che Lords did think, that 1 was
ma great meafure capable of ferving them now;
and they would have an Account of what I
could fay againft them, that fo they might wiew
it and correlt ir.  Accordingly he did go, and
appointed to meet the 25th ot Mech. 1 omic
feveral other Times thar we had Confultations,
and now come homeward to the Bulmels. 1 had
then 2 Command irom the lords to mipect the
Papers of the Spasifh Ambaitidor ar 77i0-Hoxfz,
and I could nor meet Mr, Readiizy according to
Promife, and I think the other Witnelles will
give you Reafons beeter than I This Appoint-
ment was on fiddey MNichty on Sa22¢0dey Morn-
ing, he, having mis’d of me the Night bLefore,
came to my Lodging, where I had placed Me.
Seeke and my Man ready againft he came, None

5 L 2 of



10

of ali thefe Conferences did 1 conceal, but re-
vealed them to fome of the Members of the Pri-
vy Council, to the Prince, and to my ;'_urd_nt
Efjex.  As foon as ever I had difceurfdd v
Mir. Reading about this Matter, I did write it 10
the very Words, as near as 1 could, and gave 1t
to the Prince, and my Lord of 70x, and | think
your Lordihips are very well fatisfied thar the
Prince and my Lord knew 1, And I toid it 10
{overal others, as Counfelior Swiily, Nr. KNirés,
and teveral others, who I was certain would be
true to the Secret, fearing that Mr. Reedie had
laid a ‘Trap to carch me with, and therctore |
was very cautious, that no Particular of the Counle-
sence ihould be unknown to them. Indecd, my
Lord, 1 wasvery forry to fee Mr. Reasizg ihould
do o, for I had a very great Relpedt for him g
and be did ule o give me publick Advice m ge-
neral, for the Difcovery ot the Pioty omy ior
fome particular Feople he did dolicit me that |
would be a lietle Ealy, thofe he did folicit lor,
Upon the 29t of 3Lich, which was Saturley
Moraing, wien he came 1nto the Room, he
asked me, is there no Body here that can over-
hear u.? I told him, no, there was not.  Now
I had planied that Gendeman, Mr. Spede, behind
ny Hangings, and made an hollow place in my
Bed, and therein laid my Man, and cover’d him
with the Ruz o fmooth, that 1t did appear as
if it were but newly made, and he couid not
perceive there was any Body there; he wouid
have fpoke to me in the Dining-Room, but 1
excuied it, teihne him, That Madam Gretes,
who lay in the next Reoomn, had over-heard feve-
ral Diicouries that 1 had with fome Puriens there,
and therefore 1t would not bz fate, but he had
better go e my Chamber, (not that fhe could
hear thro® the Wall, but 1t was to bring him in-
to my Chamtoers) he commernded my Caution,
and came inw:th me wuiher; and ris artt Word,
as I fid, was, Is there no Bedy tat can over-
hear? Wo, faid I, ’us my Concern to look to
that, that all Lo private: But, fard 1, what fay
the Lords in the Teweer  What fays my Lord
Steferd, what o they intend to do? I muit
know fpeciily, for I am to give in my Inferma-
tion to the ieerer Committee of what [ can fay
acain{t them this Night.  And I cin ftay no
longer, but muit have tserr final Anfwer, that
I may know what to fay when I come to the
fecret Committee,  Saith he I will go and get
their final Anfwer, bur pray put 1t oft till 27d-
nefdav, il you can. Satth I, I'cannot do that, put
it off fo long, but P’il do what I can to put it off
till Monday. Well, faid he, on Mouday you fhall
be jure to hear irom me then, and I wili have
all Things ready, as to what you have o fay,
and you fhall have It from me, Accordingly 1
did {tay ail Aemiay, but the Commitice of Se-
crecy knew 1t all this Time; and when | met
him on Adoudav, 1 had erdered the Witnelfes
that were by to over-hear us, to be prefent at
the Delivery of the Paper; accordingly they
were there, and Mr. Reading did bring it 1n his
wn Hand-writing.

Readizg. What Room was 1t you were in, pray,
Sir?

Bedisze, In the Panted-Chamber.  And as he
cave me the Paper, pretending to pur my Hand
inmy Focket, 1 clapp’d i with my Hand
vately behind me thus, and M. Speke took it out
of my Hand, and he and my Man went into my

pri— '
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Lord Privy-Seal’s Chamber, and there they read
it, arnd had it three Hours before I ever faw ir.
Well, fud 1, what will the Lords do? Why,
faith he, tho’ T have not o full Anfiwer as to whar
they will do, yet yeu may expelt a noble Re-
ward 3 and I Dave Order to draw up blank
Deeds.

Reacirg, Who did you give that Paner too,
Sir?

Bediewe, To Mr, Spele, the relt will jultify it
tis your own Hand-wiiting,  But faith he, ]
have Order to draw blank Deeds to be figned in
ten Days aicer tiher Difcharge.  And you may
be fure chat they fhall be figned.  Mr. Reading,
fard I, this1s but a verbal Promife, and they may
periaps hereatter charge me, for all my bringing
taern off, and do me a great deal of Injury,
T'hat cannot be, fuch he, my Soul and my Life
for 1r, I have taicen ther Words, and, 1t there

= any 1ith, Honour and Conlaience 11 Men,

it frall be doae: T dare anfwer for them.  And,
Mr. Belsw, your Safety doth molt conflift in
ity for as they muit never be falfe with you, fo
they mufl never be at Linmity with you; lor ut
laft, if’ vou charge them with corrupting of you,
you wiil be able to rumn them, and it will not
look ill upon you, fo much as upon them. But,
take my Word forit, you fhall have a noble and
worthy Acknowledgment. I have Authority to
draw biank Deeds, botih tor Sums and Eiftates,
whicil they will fettle upon you, and likewife a
fpecdy Supply of Money, asioon as ticy can
cet 1t in; for my Lord Swafford faid, He is now
cutting down Wood and fefling it, and when he
hatli raifed the Money, you fhall have 1ty but
he protefts, at prefent he hath not now Mo-
ney 1o defray the Charges of his Family 5 but
I have Order at any time to give you wnat you
need for prefenr Occafions.  And indeed accord-
inglv T have had a great deal of Moncy from
him, feveral Guineas. T had all Tasked for, and
many times Gold 1 did not ask for ; upon what
Terms, other Witneffes will prove better than
1 hereafter.  When we had done, faid he, Let
me fee what Papers you have, the Cepy of what
you have accuicd the Queen about, and the
Lords, that I may carry them to the Lords, and
have their Anlwer,  Said I, they are at my Mo-
ther’s. I muit needs have them, faid he.  So,
thar I nught give the Witnefles leave to come
our. I went wich him to my Mother’s Lodg-
ings, and pretended to look for them, but found
them niot, for none but the fecrer Committee
knows what 1s in chem. Bui when [ had look’d
over my Papers, faid I, my Brother, perhaps,
hath got them away with him, I’ll go back to
my Lodgings and fee.  Oh! faid he, you {hould
make fure of fuch Copies as you have, in {ome
Friend’s Hands, to fecare’ them as well as the
Orizinal, 1 told him, I fhould be fure of them
at Night; fo he was fatished : Tho’ I never in-
rended he fhould have them, becaufe there was
Balinefs of {o great Confequence in them. When
we came back again, we found Mr. Spefe and
my Man in the Chamber, writing. I asked
Mr. Speke how long they had been there? he
told me, as foon as 1 went out. Then faid I to
Mr, Speke, Pray withdraw, for now I am to have
Mr. Reeding’s Inltruétions; if you’ll go before
by Water, Pl meet you at JPfminfier by and
by, Then [ lock’d up the Street Door, and
came back to Mr., Reading, and then to work we
fell
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roll to writc out thofe Things that he and I did
conclude upon,

Rending. You fay that you and I were then
;1101]{;‘-, nnd }'DUI’ }’MH.I] gOHC i}.‘-’a’ﬂ}’.

Bedlsw. 1 Tard, that then you and [ concluded
upon what I fhouid fay, and what I fhould pip:h
upon they were to correct, according 0 waat
they thought would moft conduce to their own
Safety.  And when there were any Words that
feemed to urge any thing home upon them, then
he would tell me what was Law, and that, perhaps,
would reach them, and then alrered 1t.  And the
Manday atter brought a Copy to me, of his own
Hand-writing, far {rom the Words that were
jut down in the Paper that he and I concluded
of torether, and delivered it to e privately,
and T delivered it to this Gentleman, carrying it
behind me thus, and he came after me and took
It irom me.

i € Fewinz, Mr, Bedlswo, This, you fuy,
was for the fhortning of the Evidence ; how was
it to be thortned ?

Beolswy. To tike off the whole Cnarge of
Guilr, that I had fivorn againit then.

Sir C. Levinz., Did that, which you agreed
upon to {horten, take off from the Treafon ¢

Bedlw. That which the Witnefles had 1n
writing did take off the Charge of T'reafon
wholly.

Sir C. Levinz. Was 1t lefs than the Informa-
tion you had given in againfl them ?

Bedlswo. Trold him, that it was not delivered
into the fecret Committee, but indeed I had a
oreat while before

L. C.% Pl tel! you what I apprehend e did
fay 5 if 1 miftake, he will fet it right.  He fath,
When he came back wich Mr. Reaafng, he found
hir. Spee and his Man in the Chamber toge-
ther, he asked Nir. Spzle how long he had been
there, and how chanced he was up fo foon?
Mr. Sgeke faid to him, I have been here ever
fince you went away. ‘That, upon Mr. Beelot’s
D:fire, he went away before him to [Peffmin-
fier, and they went together to confulty and
aveat Care was ufed, that they might not be
hindered or furprized.  Then Mr. Bealswr was
to pen his Teflimony, and it was to be carried
to the Lords In the Yewer, and they were to
confider how to have it minced, that they migat
bz out of Danger. And Mr. Reading under-
ftanding the Law, whenever Mr. Bealow {poke
plain, or diCtated any thing that would come
home to them, would tell im of it, and that
Mr. Bedlsw might corre€t and mitigate It him-
felf, I underftand you fo, Mr. Beclow.

Bedloww. Yes, my Loid, it was fo.  And that
Paper, which he brought me back, was ten times
fhorter than that he had of mine, which was for-
ty times fhorter than what I had given in to the
fecret Committee

WWerd, Mr. Bedlow hath fully proved the Dif-
courfe and Bargain between him and Mr, Reed-
ing, for the leflening of his Evidence.

Bedlow. All Mr. Readiug’s Words were, That
I would fo fhorten and leflen the Charge againft
them, that they might come ofr.

L. C. #. Mr. Reading, if you have a mind to
it, you have Liberty to ask him any Queltions,

Reading, My Lord, 1 humbly defire I may do
it, when the Evideace for the King is all given.

L. C. ¥. Iris moft proper to do it now.

Reading. With your Lordfhip’s Favour, I have
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tiuis Reafon for it, [ do defire that the Witnefles
may be examined apart.

M. fuft. Wild. Mr. Bedlow, Pray let me ask
you one Queftion. I am upon the Inditment,
tor the Jury 1s charged upon that, and we muft
Judge upon that, Was the Agreement between
you and him, that you fhould fivear what he.
fhould dirett you?

Bedlow, It was, to what he and the Lords

youid direct,

M, Fuft, Iild, Did the Lords corre&t vour
Paper?

Bedlow. As he faid, they had done i,

Mr. Faflt, Wild, Did he acknowledge it ?

Bedlow. Yes, he did. *

L.C. F. Mr. Bedlew, 1 don’t underfland that
you were to have any Conterence with the Lords,
but you were to be lhy of that, left it fhould be
difcovered, but what Conference you were to
have was with Mr. Reading.

Bedlow. Yes, my lord, and he was to give
me an Account what they would have me fay.

My, Juft, Fones, Shew him the Paper, I fup-
poie he will own his own Hand.

L. C. 7. Is that your Hand, Sir?

Reading, 11y Lord, this 1s my Hand, and this
15 that Paper that [ did delwver to Mr. Bedlow
before Mr. Sgeke in the Painted-Chamber.

[Vard, We delire it may be read, 1if your
Lordihtp think fr.

M. Fufp, A:kins, Methinks it fhovld be mate-
rial to read tne Paper that ke gave to Reading
firft.

L. C. 7. Have you it here, Mr. Bealow ¢

Bedlow. Noj; he carried that Paper to the
Lords, and brought me this again.

L. C. F. But had you never that other Paper
again ?

Bedloww. No, T had not.

L. C. ¥. Did you cver take a Copy of it ¢

Bedlsww. No, I did not.  But this 13 that cor-
rected Paper that I was to give in to the fecrer
Committee, and corrected by the Lords.

Sir C. Levinz, We do prove it in Fadt, that
he had before given further Evidence, and by
this Agreement he did contraét to give lefs.

L. C.¥. Mr. Reading, what do you fay to

Mr. Bealsw ?
Reading. My Lord, if I have your Lordfhip’s

Direction that I may not examine my Witnefles
apart, -I’ll go on.
L. C. ¥. Bat what fay you to tie Paper?
Reading. 1 do own, the Paper that was fhewn
to me, is my Fand, and that I delivered it to

Mr. Bedlsw.
L. C.¥. Then it muft be read.
Sir C. Levinz. My Lord, we don’t defire it

fhould be read, for we cannot fhew the former
Paper, that did contain more, and therefore what
will the reading of the latter, which contains
lefs, fignify 2 ‘

L.C.¥. If you do not defire to have it
read, we won’t read it.

§ir C. Levinz, Mr. Bedlow’s Evidence is, That
there was 2 Paper much more large than ths,
and yet both thofe fhort of the Information he
had given in; now what will the reading of the
one fignify, without the other ? ‘ _

L. C. ¥ Do you confent to the reading of 1t?

Reading. My Lord, I would fave your Time
and make it plain,

L.C. 7. Mr. Reading, You mull not come to

make
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but that the Money which was lodged with him
was to be difpofud of by him for the Ui of )

‘8{4.

make your fence yet, till the King’s Evidence is

GVCT.

Readine, My Lord, T do 1t to open his Zvi-
Jence, and for your Information, Ny 1ord,
My, Baillazo chavges me, That U did write w his
Chamber, wheo his Man and M, Spude were
one, & Paper that was mwch Lirger chan the
Paner your Fordihips have befure yous he docs
fav, that he did delire me to go wich that to the
bords, and that they did correlt 1t m fevenl
Places, and being fo ecrresies, 1 dii briny lum
this Paper back, and delivered 1t to him i the
Painted-Chamber, before Mr, Speke. My Lord,
I do pray your Lordlhip’s I 13°0Ur _in it_;, when |
had the kine’s Direflions ior giving in to the
fecret Commmittee wiat Informanion 1 had 1o
cive, Tdid deniver it mnto the Chamber, where
wore wir Secdevadd” and others, that vary Pa-
por, Which was writlen &t his Chamoar, My
Loid, I have font to him feveral Times, that he
woukl deliver that o mie In opder o my owil
Tanifeasion ar my Tial 1 did deire li!{tﬁ.j:iﬁ:,
1hat fome oiier Dapers which T did receive from
My, Koo under bis own Hand, and which
would be very material to my Delence, migat
be broach: to me, bat I have not had the Fa-
vour of an Antwer rom Mr, Sachevercd!, to this
very Hour, I do humbly defire that he may be
fent to, for the Delivery of them,

L. C. 7. I do not know how we can fend for
them, if the Committez will not deliver them,

Reading. Wil your Lordfhip give me feave to
fend to hum s

L. C. ¥ Baitnot by our Dircttion, to bring
them as by our Command.

Reading. Ne, My Lord, but by my own Intreaty.

L. C. 7. Do what you will, as frem vour e,
Mr. Reading, your Wiie was with me  Yelier-
day, and fail, you could not get Swfpavia’s for
your Witneflis; and I fent for the Clerk aboeut
it, and he told me, there never was any Subfeina’s
denied you, but you might have had them ag
any Time. But what fay you to this Paper, you
of the King’s Counel 2

Sir C. Levins. My Lord, we do not defire to
have it read wichout the other.

L.C.'¥. Look you here, this Paper mait be
read, for we would fee waether there was a Pa-
per under your Hand, expreffing what Evidence
Mr. Bedlozo was to give in this Matter, and whe-
ther you did one way or other put any thing in
writing which he thould fiwear, to lefien his Livi-
dence. As for the other Matter of tampering,
we fhall hear from others concerning 1t 5 bat let
us have this read, not for comparing it with the
other Paper, to fhew the Teftimony s lefs in this
than 1n the other, but asan Evidence of the Fact
in it felf, for we will expect a good Account from
you, Mr. Reading, what you had to do to preicrive
him his Evidence in writing 5 therefore pray read
the Paper,

Tirn the Paper was reed i heee verba.

Lord STAFFORD.

On Ditcovery of the Plot, to me, I asked
Horcent and Le Faire how things werc to be
managed, they told me that his Lordfhip was to
be ‘treaiurer, and he, and Lrelend, and Coleman,
had Money to defray all Charges; I then faid,,
I never heard that his Lordthip was engaged be-
arey they faid he had not been long concerned,
por was he acquainted with the Alfar much 3

Church and tie Catholicks, and they had boynd
his Lordlhip up by Sacraments not to difcover
what the Money lodged with him was to do )]
the time of ulingir, and then his Lordihip fhoyld
know what grear Truft he had upon him for
them s and @l Taings were ripe he was not o
be acquainted with rae Depth of the Plot, for
they knew he would never confent to the Kings
Deatn ull 1t was done.  His Lordihip always
promifed to be ready to ferve the Church with
his Life and Fortune,

!
Lord POW IS.
That the Lady Abbefs of Panthois told me,
That his Lordfhtp had fent his Dauglhters over
to be educated in the Momaltery, bue thar his

Loralnip’s Lady had declared w0 her by Letter,

that the meant them as Pledges according to her
Promile, to aflure her that her Lord was real to
carry on what he had promif:d corcerning the
introducing the Roman Catholick Religion into
foplend, I brought over a Letter from the
Nonks in Pas, direed to his Lordthip, with
feveral other Letters to other Popith Gentles
men, tending to the Detth of the King, and
fubverting of the Government 5 bur what was
in that Letier to his Lerdfhip T kaow not, for
that I did not openit, as I had done the others,
it being diveCted to o Peery but I believed it
might be to the fame Efiect, the Monks having
iformed me {o at the delivering them to me;
feveral other Letters to the fame Efed (as the
Pricfis told me) I faw in che Priefls Hands, di-
reted to s Lordthip 5 bat I never did read any
of them, nor can I fay that his Loxdlhip ever
recerved any of them 3 but I faw them pur into
the Polt-houle to fend forwards, and I never faw
his Lordlhip at any Confultation, neither did
I cver hear his Lordfhip named at any Con-
fultation where the killing of the King was men-
tioned or debated of: Bat I verily believe that
his Lordfhip was acquainted with the Defign of
introducing Popery, for that the Ladv Abbefs
and the Priefts have feveral Times told me fo,
or to that Elfect.

gid PETRE.

Mr. Tyrrel a Prielt, and Madam Thimdleby his
Lordfhip’s Sifter, told me, that Mr. Thimbleby
was gone to my Lord Perre’s Houle to confule
with him how to proceed in the managing of
their Bufinefs. Mr. Thimoleby having recerved
Letters from beyond Sea in order to the intro-
ducing the Roman Catholick Religion into Eig-
laird, and that s Lordfhip would not in any
fort be perfurded to bring 1t in by Force, but
rather br Policy 5 and tho’ his Lordfhip had truly
engaged himielf never to quit the Defign, ye:
fie was fure he would not do it by foul Means.
I told her at her Husband’s Houfe at Eridy, that
where a Deflign was to be carried on for fo genc-
ral a Good, no particular Way was to be pitched
upon, but any Thing, and all Mcans was to be
uied to bring it to pafs, rather than loke the Defign;
To which fhe replied, thar fhe believed and ap-
proved the fame, but thar the well knew his
Lordfhip’s ‘Mind, that he would never agree to
do it by Force, but as he would not hinder ir,
thould it go on by Force, fo he would further
it by any other means whatfoever.

L.C.Y.
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L.C.Y. Here is an Evidence indeed, but {o
minced, that it would have fignified nothing as

to the Charge againft them.

Bedbow. 1n the Information that [ gave into
the fecret Committee, there is ten Sheets of Pa-

per in every Evidence againft every Lord,

-~ L.C.¥. Now go to the other Witnefles.
Ward, Pray fwear Mr. Spere.  Which was
done,
JWard. Come, Mr. Speke, declare your Evidence,
and pray come over on this Side,

L. C. % 1 would have him ftand on the other
Side, becaule Mr. Reading defires to examine them
apart.

PSpféﬂ. My Lords, and you Gentlemen of the
Jury, I fhould have been very loth and unwil-
ling to have made my felf fo publick asto have
appeared here as a Wimefs againlt Mr, Reading
the Prifoner at the Bar, upon any other Account

than this: But at fach aTime as this, and 1n
{uch an Intrigue as this was, In which boih the

Kirg and Kingdom was concerned, 1 thoughe

my felf bound both in Duty and Allegiance to
appear in what I have done, and to teftify the
Truth of what I know, for the Prefervation and
Defence of both 3 and therefore fhall declare to
you the Treaty that was in my hearing the 29th of
March laft, between Mr, Bedlow and Mr. Read-
g now at the Bar, and I {hall not for the World
atteft any thing but what 1 heard difcourfed be.
tween them, but will relate it to you in their
own Expreflions, as near as poffibly I can remem-
ber ;3 and as to the Matter and Subftance of what
Ifhall declare to you to be difcourfed between
them, I willand can both pofitively {wear.

But before I acquaint you thercof, I muft beg
leave to tell you, that Iknew almoft daily from
Mr, Bedisw, for fome confiderable Time before,
what was in the Treaty between him and Mr.
Keading, and how they proceeded in this Affair,
and therefore could the better charge my Me-
mery with their Difcourfe, and with the Paf
fages which paffed between thém ; and Mr, Bed-
low having himfelf told you that he acquainted
two or three Perfons [ikewtle of very great Qua-
lity all along with this Treaty between him and
Mr, Reading, and with Mr, Reading’s conftant
and almoft daily Confultation and Advice to him
upon this Account, and with his large Promifes
to him from thefe Popith Lords and other Gen-
tlemen accufed and in Cuftody upon the Account
of this horrid Plot.

I fhall not now tire your Patience fo much as
to acquaint you with what [ had from Mr, Bed-
Jow from Time to Time, after Mr. Reading had
been with him difcourfling of this Affair 5 but I
fhall beas fhort as I canin coming clofe to the
Point, and therefore thall only acquaint you with
the Matter and Subftance of what I my felf
heard difcourfed between Mr. Reading and M,
Bedlow the 29th of March laft,

The 28th of March laft, I met with Mr., Bed.-
loww here at Weftminfler, who privately told me,
that Mr. Reading had appointed to be with him
in the Evening about the old Aflair, and there-
fore defired me to come to his Lodgings about
feven o’clock, and there thould be fome privare
Place found out for me advantageoufly to hear
their Difcourie : T went to Mr. Bedlew’s Lodg-
tngs at Woiehall about the Tune he defired me
to come; where I met witn Mr. Reaeiig, who
was then jult come, and asking Hewmry Wiggins
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whether his Mafter was at home; who told him,
that he was not; upon which Mr. Reading went

away, and left Word with this young Man tha
he would come again prefently, and defired him
to acquaint his Mafter with it as foon as he came
home : I ftaid there with this young Man a fthort
Time after Mr. Reading was gone, asking him
whether he could tell where his Mafter was,
who told me he could not, but told me that
there was fome Company at the King’s-Head Ta-
vern at Charing-Crofs which ftaid there for him,
and that his Mafter would call there before he
came home; upon which 1 immediately went to
the King’s-Head Tavern, and asked whether Mr.,
Bedlow was there 3 but I underftood that there was
fome Company ftaying there, expetting to fpeak
with Mr, Bedlowe, but that he was not then come
to them ; upon which I went then to Man's
Coffee-houfe, and flaid there a while, but had
ordered one of the Boys of the Tavern to come.
and acquaint me as foon as Mr. Bedlowy came s
but finding that no one came from the Tavern,
after fome time | went thither again, and under-
ftood that he had not been there, and thar the
Company was gone which ftaid for him, and
then I went back again to Mr, Bedlow’s 1.odg-
mgs, where as foon as 1 came, this young Man
came out and told me, Mr, Reading was above,
and ftaid there to fpeak with his Mafter; on
which I call’d him out to me, and told him 1
was delired by his Mafter to come to be hid in
fome private Place conveniently to hear the Dif-
coutfe between them, and therefore I contrived
fome way 1o get Mr. Reading out, that I might in
the mean time convey my felf into fome private
Place, where I might be able to hear their Difs
courfe ; whereupon I ordered this young Man
(whilft I was walking without at fome Diffance)
to go up and tell Mr. Reading that there was
one which came from the King's-bead Tavern at
Charing-Crofs to acquaint him that his Mafter
was there with fome Company, and to tell
Mr. Reading, that his Mafter would not be able
to get away from them, if he did not go to
him ; whereupon this young Man went 1mme-
diately to Mr. Reading, and acquainted him with
it according to my Defire and DireCtien, and
then Mr. Reading went prefently to the Iavern,
and in the mean timel got up into the Bed-
chamber, and placed my felf between the Hang-
ings of the Bed and the Wall ; but Mr. Reading
finding not Mr. Bedlew at the Tavern, went
away home, and left Word with this young
Man that he would be with his Mafter by feven
o'clock in the Morning, and ordered him to
acquaint his Mafter with it, that he might be
up when he came; and as foon as Henry Hgp-
gins veturned back and acquainted me that Mr,
Reading was gone home, and had left Word with
him that he would be with his Mafter by feven
o’clock in the Morning, I went home, but left
Word with this young Mun, that I would be
with his Mafter by fve or {ix o'clock 1n the
Morning, and defired him to ncquaix}!: his Mu—
fter with it. Igot up the next Morning by hve
o’clock, and went immediately cown to Mr,
Bedlow’s Lodgings.

Reading. Sir, You are pleafed to fuy, that the
twenty-eighth of March vou was told, that I
would be there about feven of the clock 1n the
Moining, and that you at firft met me there,

and that the Appointment failing, then you
(ame
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came the next Morning, which was the twenty-
ninth. ‘

L.C. . Ul tell you how [ apprehend him:
The firlt Appointment was the twenty-eighth of
March, which was on Friday, and then failing,
the other was the next Morning, which was the
twenty-ninth.

Speke. As foon as I came to Mr, Bedlot’s
Lodgings, [ caufed the Centinel to knock hard
at the Door to raife them up; and in the mean
time I went into King-ffreet, expecting to have
got into fome Coffee-houfe or other for to drink
a Difh of Coffee, whillt they were rifing, but it
was fo carly that there was no Coftee-houle open ;
upon which T was forced to return back again to
Mr. Bedls’s Lodgings, and then this young
Man and Maid were both got up, and did let me
in, and [ went up immediately to Mr, Ledlow,
and raifed him out of his Bed 5 and {fomewhat
before feven o’clock we plac®d this young Man
upon the Bed, with the Rug only on him, and
prepar’d a Place for me on the Infide of the
Bad, between the Hangings of the Bed and the
Wall.

L. C. 5. You fay he was on the Bed, and you
between the Bed and the Wall,

Speke. Yes, my Lord, between the Bad and
the Wall 1 was, and he on the Bed, and as {oon
as ever | heard fome body knock at the Door
(the Door being lock’d by Mr. Bedlow’s Order,
to give me Notice of his coming) I ran imine-
diately into my Station before he came up, and
prefently after the Door was open, I heard
My, Readin?’s Voice as he was coming up Starrs,
(which ! know almoft as well as his Perfon) as
he was fpealking to the Maid, and afterwards to
Mr. bealsze, who met him either m the Paflage
or at the Srair-Head, and then they came both
into the Bzd-Chamber, (where, I believe,
Mr. Read'rz little thought any body was) tho’
he was fu cautious as to ask whether there was
no body there that could over-hear him; to
which Mr. Sedlow reply’d, No, #o, or fome
Words to that Efiet. And then Mr, Bedlew
began, and faid to Mr. Reading, What fay the
Lords i t5e Tower now 2 and wkat fays my Lord
Staffara «s5 {0 the Effate in Gloucelterfhire? To
winch ¥r. Reading then reply’d, and faid, Afy
Lsid bas faithfully promifed me to feitle thar Eftate
upon you, and I bave Orders from my Lord to draw
up a Blank Deed in oxder to fettle it on you 5 <which
Deed my Lord bath engaged me 1o Sign and Scal
ten Days after be fball be difcharged, you bringing
bine off from this Charge of High-Treafon, by fhoit-
aing and contradting of your Lvidence.  And Mr.
Reading {1id, my Lord Powis, my Lord Petre,
and Sir Henry Tichburn, bave faithfully engaged
and promijed me, that they <will every one of them
give you a wery large and noble Reward, which
fball be fuitable to the Sesvice you fhall do them, by
[hortuing and contralfing of your Lwvidence againgt
them, and in biinging them off likewife from this
Charge of High-Treafun. 'To which Mr. Bedlow
reply’d and faid, T will not vely upon their Promifes
only, but do expelt to bave fometbing under their
Flands. Vo which Mr. Reading then reply’d and
{aid, They do net think it fit and convenient for them
to dothat as yet, but you may fafely and fecurely take
sy Word, as I bavve dome theirs, 1bey having all fo
faithfully promifed me to perform: all Ihave told you
from them. And Mr. Reading finding that M.
Bedlsw doubted their Performances, according ¢o
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their Words, did moreover ufe thefe very Ex.
preflions, and faid, Il engage my Life for it. To
which Mr. Bedlow then reply’d, Pl then tghe
your Werd, as you have done thetrs. And alfo told
him, The Committee do prefs upon me to deliver
i what I bave to fay againft the Lords, aid theye.
fore Idefire I may bave their Anfwer fpeedily, that
I may know what they intend to do, and what they
dgo refolve upon, becanfe I cannot well defer deliver-
ing in what I have to fay againft them any longer
than this Night, becaufe I hear they come very [pec~
dily upon their Trials. To which Mr. Reading
then reply’d, That he was fure they could not
be brought to their Trials before Eafler, telling
Mr, Bedlowy what the Parhiament muft do ﬁrftt:
and how they were to proceed in this Cafe :
That they muft come down to be arraigned, and
after that, they muft have Time to give in their
Anfwer, and after that they muft have Time to
preparc for their Trials; and told him, that he
might very well defer it till #zdnefday ; bur Mr.
Bedloy told him, that he could not defer it till
W ednefany, but he would put it off till Monday,
and longer he could not ¢« And then Mr. Reading
fard, that he would go prefently to the Lords and
acquaint them with what he faid, and that he
thould not fail ot having their Anfwer by him on
Aeiday, and that it fhould be ready for him to
deltver it into the Committee that Night, And
aiter this Dialogue was over between Mr. Reading
and Mr. Bediow, they went out into the Dining-
Room,.and there Mr. Reading ftay’d till Mr. Bed-
{sw had quite drefs’d himfelf, and afterwards went
out both rogether, and fiay’d away about half
ant Hour; and when they return’d, 1 and this
young Man were both together in the Dining-
Room, and then Mr. Bedlow fpoke to meas if ¥
were but juft come, asking me how long I had
been tliere 5 I told him T juft cal®d on him as I
was going to Weflminfler, or fomewhat to that
Purpofe, fo that Mr. Reading might not any ways
fufpect my being there before-hand, to hear the
Dialogue which pafled between them. Mr.
Reading then call’d fora Sheet of Paper and Pen
and Ink, and went into the Bed-Chamber, {peak-
ing and defiring Mr. Bedlow to follow him; but
after Mr. Reading was gone into the Bed-Cham-
ber, Mr. Bedisw came to me, as I was flanding by
the Chimney, and whifpered to me, that they were
then juft going to draw up what they had conclud-
ed on, that the Lords might fee it and correét it,
as they thought fir, and that they might fend
him on Monday, in writing, what he fhould de-
liver into the Commiteee to {vear acainft them ;
which 1 faw deliver'd by Mr. Reading, accord
ing to his Promife to Mr. Bedloww, on the Aon-
day Morning foilowing, in the Painted-Chamber
at Wefiminfler, which Paper was writ by Mr.
Reading’s own Hand, Mr. Bedlow delivering it
to me a3 foon as ever Mr. Reading left him; and
then T and another Gentleman of Quality went
up immediately mto the Room they cail the Lord
Privy-Scal’s Room, where the Committee of Lords
ufe to fit, and there Mr. #harton and I read the
Paper {o delivered, being writ by Mr. Reading's
own Hand.

Fury., Did you fee Mr. Reading’s Face?

Mr. Speke. Ay, beiween the Door and the
Wicket, but notin the Room. On the Mouday
Morning following, Mr. Bedlosy defired that [
would be here at Helminfier before-hand, and
hie would- come thither. And he told me they

WEre
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were to correct the Paper, and he was to bring
‘e corr=ted, and, faid he, pray follow me; and fee
the Paper delivered.

Reading. 'What Day was that he defired you ?

Speke. It was upon Saturday, the 2gth of
Alareh, that T over-heard u.rhat was fqzd, and it
was upon the Monday morning following that I
met with Mr. Bedlews, and he bid me go to
JVeftminfter before.  And I did fo, and when we
met at Weftminfler 1 went after Mr. Bedlow at a
diftance: And in the nuddle of the Court of
Requefts he met with Mr, Readiing, and they
went together into the Painted Chamber, and I
{ollowed them at a diftance, my Lye was very
much upon them, but I faw Mr. Readiye was
very cautious that I fhould not fee the Paper de-
Jivered 3 and indeed I was as fhy as he, that he
thould not fec that 1 took notice of i1t, but I
did dire¢t my Eye fomewhat carelefly that way,
and at laft I faw the Paper delivered by Mr.
Readiyg to Mr. Bedlow, and as Mr. Bedlow told
you, I and another Gentleman of Quality went
away to the Lord Privy-Seal’s Lodgings, where
we opened the Paper, and faw what was deliver-
ed to him, and readit: and this sall I have to
o

L. C. 7. Shew him the Paper. Is this that
Paper, that you faw him deliver to Mr, Bedlow 2

s Creficel Levinz, Look uvpon it, Sir, is that
the Caper s

Sseke. Yes, my Lord, certainly I take it fo'to be.

cor, Jult, Atkins. He hath owned 1,

L C. 7 Mr. Reading, if you would ask this
Gentleman any Queltions, thisis your proper time,

Rea:irng. '} hope your Lordfhip will give me the
favour to cxamine them apaft.

Mr. Jult, #5ld. Mr. Reading; you do confefs
what Mr, Speke fays to be trae ?

Reaung, My Lordy I did deliver that very Pa-
per to Mr. Redlowr 1n the Painted Chamber in
the Court of Requefts before Mr. Speke, and tis
every word of 1t of my own Hand-writing,

Mr. Juft, Dolben. Did you fee Mr. Reading in
the Rouom ?

Speke. I did not {ee him, tll he was between
the Wicket and the Door.

Mr. Jult. #7id. Mr. Speke, let me ask you one
Queftion 3 did not you know his Voice ?

Speke. 1 knew his Voice almoft as well as his
Perfon,

L. C. Baron. You are fure it was he ?

Speke. Yes, Tam very confident it was he,

L. C. 7. And the Difcourfe was, that he would
have it put off till Beducfday, bur Mr. Bedlow
would not, but only put it off tll Monday, and

then they agreed upon a Paper, an Account of

which Mr. Readiug promifed to give on: the M-
day following,

Speke, Yes, my Lord, it was fo.

L. C. 7. So that the Fa#t docs anfwer the Dif-
courle, for on the Moinday following the Paper was
delivered,

M. Ward. Here is only one other Evidence;
and that is Mr., Bedlsw’s Servant, that was put In
the Bed, as Mr. Bedlow tells you. Pray fwear Hen-
1y Wiggins. Which was done.

Sir C. Levinz. Come on, Young-man, fpeak
your Knowledge of this matter.

Wiggins, My Lord, what I"have to fay. is this,

L.C. ¥ Speak out.

Wiggins. What 1 have toifay,.is only what
M;} Spece hath faid before ; and indeed he hath
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been fo very plain, and fo exad iri all Particulars;
that I need fay but little, and therefore fhall be
very fhort. My Lord, on Saturday the 29th of
March lalt, Mr. Reading cime to iny Mafter’s
Lodging between Seven and Eight in the Morn-
ing. [ was placed on che Bed, with the Rug
only on me; and Mr. Speke was behind the Bed;-
between the Hangings of the Bed and the Wall.
As foon as Mr. Reading came into the Room, he
asked my Mafler, if there were no Body there
that could hear them ? My Mafter fid, Ne,
Then my Malter asked, What fay the Lovds in
the Tower now ?  And, WWaat fays my Lord Staf-
ford, as to the Effate i# Gloucefterthire? Saith
he, My Lord bath promifed faithfully to [etile it
pon you 5 and has given sme Order to draw up
Blank Deeds, which, in Ten Days after his Dif-
charge, be will Sign : And this was for the leffen-
ing the Evidence. I think thofe were the Words.
And juft then the Rug troubling me, that I could
not hear well, I put it off my Head; and, my
Lord, I faw Mr. Reading {tand by my Mafter in .
the Chamber. Saith he; my Lord Powis, n
Lord Petre, aud Sir Henry Tichburn, bave afl
promifed you a fuitable Reward to the good Service
you fhall do them, in bringing thein cff from tler
Charge. Sanhmy Mafter, I do:’t think fit to rely
upon their Promifes only; but doexpel? foinething und: s
their Hands.  No, fard he, they don’t think it conve-
nient for thein to do that, as yet s but you may fafely
take iy Word, as well as I bave dowe theirs : And
I will engage my Life for 12, (Which were the
Words Mr. Reading ufed.) Saith my Mafter,
The Comintttce do prefs upon ine to give in my Eui-
dence, and I cannot defer it any longer than this
Night. Saith Mr. Reading, they camnot come to
their Trial il Balter y decanfe fuch and fuch Things
are 10 be dome, (as Mr. Speke hath told you) before
they can come to their Drials which cannat be doné
till then :  And you miay very well defer i 1 Wed-
nefday. No, faid my Maftter, I camiot 5 bzt I <will
do what I can to defer it £l Monday,  Saith Mr.
Reading, I will thengo to the Lovds, and acguaint
thein with what you fays and bring you an Anfier
fiom thein on Monday Mornmg. |

And that Day, when he came to the Painfed
Chamber, 1 faw him deliver that Paper to my
Mafter, and my Mafter carrying 1t behind him 4
and I faw Mr. Speke take it from him; :}nd Mr,
Speke and another Gentleman  went afterwards
together, up nto my Lord Pry-Seal’s Room
to read It. |

Fury. How long was it ere you faw Mr, Read-
ing, after the Difcourfe in the Room? |

Wiggins. | got up prefently after they were gone
out, and I faw them together at the Door 5 and
as foon as they were gone, (as I told you) we both
went out into the Dining-Room, and went to
write down what was faid:  And within half an
Hour, they came back again into the Room. And
faith my Mafter to Mr. Speke, #hat makes you fo
early bere? How long have you Deeit Z:r:rc'? Said he,
I calledupon you as Iwas going 1o Weftminiter, And
then my Mafler defired Mr. Speke to go belore to
Weftminfter: And Mr. Readiug called for Pen, Ink,
and Paper; and went into the Bed-Chamber,
fpeaking to my Mafter to-follow him: And fo we:
went away. | ' .

Fury. You fay, That you- faiv hm}'therc? and-
not only heard him talk, bu_t faw himn? ‘

Wiggins. When he came into the Room, the

Ruc was over my Head, and they {poke fo
0 ! A M fU&l)’-;:
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foftly, that I could not hear him very well; but
I put it off, witheut his percerving me, and faw
him then, and heard him plain: And when they
went out again, I faw them both.

Speke. We open’d the Hangings, my Lord, a
hittle at the Bottom, that he might not fufpect
any thing, and the Curtains were but half drawn,
or a little more: So that, when he put off the
Rug, he might eafily fee him.

L, C.J. Have you any further Ewvidence for
the King?

Sir C. Levinz, MyLord, it your Lord{lup pleac,
we (hall trouble you with no farther Evidence: We
have proved it by three Witnefies. _

L. C F. Then, Mr. Readiug, now is the tume
for ycur to make your Defence: They have con-
claded, thatare for the King.

Reading, My Lord, T am very unwilling to
fpend any of your Lordinip’s imeinvain, There
s 0a¢ Part of the Indictment, which [ do humbly
taie notice of to your Lordihip before-hand;
they are fo far from Charging me to be of tae
Plo:, or knowing ot the Plot, that Mr., Bedlsw
hath declared the Preflingnels of my Periualioas
to him, from time, to time, that he would be
very full and pofitive, 1n Charging any Man
according to his Knowledge.  Thereiore, I {hall
not {pend any time, my Lorc, 1 fpeaking to that.
{ am obliged to Mr, Bediscr, tnat he hath done
me fo much Right, in faying what he hath faid

of me about that: Bar I ihall apply my flf

fingly to what he hath given in Evidence againft
me; and what hath been {poken to, by Mr. Speke,
and his Servant.

My Lord, the Inditment 15, That 1 fhould
endeavour to perfuade to leffen his Evidence a-
gainft thole Lords, and Sir Hewry Tichburn 5 that
1s to fay, my Lord Petwis, my Lord Safford, and
my Lord Pefie: They prove nothing againft
me, as to the other. And, my Lord, becaufe
the Indi¢tment doth likewile fet forth, that this
was done on the Behalf of thefe Lords, and on
their Account, as it fays, I fhall humbly (befors
I go on to cenfure the Evidence) give your Lord-
flup an Account, upen what Occafion 1t was, and
how [ went to lee any of thele Lords, and Sir
Feniy Tichburn, here mentioned.

My Lord, within a few Days after the Lords
were lent to tae Toweir, Mr, Lafivode, a Gentleman
of the Privy-Chamber to his Maelty, did come
to me, from my Lord Stafferd; telling me, "Fhae
my i.ord Scofferd delired to be remembred to me,
and to pray me to come to hum,

My Lord, T did tell that Gentleman, That
tho’ I had a very great Reverence for my Lord,
having known him long, and having been my
Client tor feveral Years; yet, confidering how
his Circumitances then were, i thould not venture
to go to hum, till 1 had acquainted fome of the
Lords of the clofe Committee with 1t, and had
their Leave. .

Mr., Bufffroce fard, I alted very prudently init:
And accordingly I did go, and acquainted the

Prince, my Lord Treaftrer, the Marquis of

Wercefler, and lome other Lords with it: And
they told me, That my Profeflion did privilege
me to go; and God forbid, but that Refpect
fhould be thewn him, and the reft of the Lowds.
Hereupon, my Lord, Idid go; and when I was
there, I acquainted the Lieutenant of the Zower
with 1ty who invited me to Dinner with him:

I did fo, my Lord, and my Lord Staffsrd was
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there:  And afterwards he did defire me to 0 to
his Quarters with him: And being there, he told
me, That I was not ignorant of what he wag
Charged with, and upon what account he was
there : And he was pleafed to fay much concern.
ing his own Innocency. I told his Lordihip, |
heartily withed, it might appear he was as innocen
as he faid he was.

Then he defired nie to move for his Hubog:
Corpus. I told him I thought it not feajonable
yetto doit: Talfo told him, I would not at alf
admit my felf to be of Counfel for him, but for
his Innocency, and as an innocent Man s with this,
that I did fo exprelly abhor and deteft the Crime
that he was charged with, that tho’ I were of
Counfel with him, or in the very higheft Degree of
Friendfhip imaginable, fhould I difcover hie was
gutlty of it, I would be fo far from continuing of
Counfel for him, that I would comein as 2 Wit
nels again{t him,

My Lord, upon thefec Terms it was, that my
Lord took my Advice, and he gave me my Fee,
which was two Guineas,

My Lord, afterwards I was defired by feveral
of the Lords, to fpeak with Sir Hosy Goriug,
and Sir Fobu Gage, then Prifoners in the Tomwer -
And, my Lord, they did defire me, that I would
move for their Habeas Corpus’s ; and, my Lord,
Idid fo. Iwasthenfent to by my Lord Brudue,
and feveral other Gentlemen in the King’s-Beuch,
Prifoners upon this Account:  And, my Lord, I
did, at this Bar, move for feveral of their Habeas
Czrpus’s. And having the Direction of the Court,
that tho’ they did not deny the granting of the
Writ; yer notwithftanding, no Benefit fhould be
had of that Writ, unlefs Mr. Attorney being at-
tended in it, fhould give Confent to their being
Buled. Accordingly, my Lord, Mr. Attorney
did attend init, and he was pleafed to fay, That he
would not do any thing for the Bailing of any,
for all that the Writ was granted, till he knew
what therr Accufers charged them with. I then
Knew it was in vain to bring them up, till Mr, At
torney was fatished.

Mr. Sergggs and I did go from Mr. Attorney
to Mr, Bedlow and Mr. Oates : And the feve:al
Perfons tor whom we were of Counfel, bemng
fet down mna Lift, we did alfo fet down our D~
rections from Mr. Attorney about them; and
did pray them tolet us know what they had to
charge any of them with. And if they were
caly 1n their Confenting to their being Bailed,
then we did go to Mr. Atorney, to let Jum
know it and he being fausfied from their ows
Mouths, did confent to the Buailing of feveral of
them.

My Lord, this did occafion my difcourfing
feveral times, with Mr. Bedlowe, and Mr. Oates,
concerning the Nature of the feveral Charges,
againft the Gentlemen they had accufed. My
Lord, during the whole time of my being con-
verfant with Mr. Bedloww, (and he hath given your
Lordfhip an Account how I came acquainted witlt
him) tho’ I did delire Sir Trevor Hilliains mighe
be here, and did {end him a Swhpena, becaule I
knew he was unwilling to come, unlels he were
Summon’d; and I fhould be glad to fee um
here.

Bedlow. My Lord, Sir Trevor Williams is in
the Floufe of Commons ; and ordered mie to fend for
him, 1f there were Occalion.

LCY
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L.C. 7, Then pray fﬂl‘ld. for him, becaufe
Mr. Reading defires it.  (Wbich was done.) In the
_mean time, pray, Mr. Reading, will you go on
in your Defence.  But all that hath been fpoken,
is not much to the Purpofe. I would have you
apply your {elf to the Fa&: {(worn, which is com-
preheniive of all the Indi€tment; and that is,
what happened in the Chamber, the 29th of March
Iaft: Anfwer that Fadt.

Reading. 1 fhall, my Lord; but I defire
Mr, Bulfirode may be Examined to thofe Points I
have fpoken to.

Bulfirode. My Lord, T defire you would hear
me, for he is very much miftaken in what he hath
faid concerning me: For he feems to fay, I came
to him, which I did not do; but accidentally met
him at Whitchall.

L. C.F. Look you, unlefs he calls you, you
are not to be called by us, asa Witnels for the

King. *
Bulftrode. My Lord, he ferved me with a Sud-

pana,

"~ L. C. ¥. Mr. Reading, Would you have

Mr. Bulffrode examined ?

Reading. Yes, my Lord, if you pleafe; I did
pray him to be here to that End.

L. C. . In this Cafe, tho” he be a Witnefs
for Mr. Reading, he muft be Sworn: Therefore
{wear Mr. Bulfirode. (Which was done.) Well,
what do you ask him ?

Revding. My Lord, all I do humbly defire is,
That he will give your Lordfhip an Account whe-
ther hedid not come unto me in the Name of my
Lord Stefford?

Bulftrode. My Lord, I happened, one Day,
to go fee Sir JFlliam Goring, who was my Neigh-
bour in the Country: And as 1 was going out,
1 faw my lord Stafford walking: And faluting
him, he asked me, Do you know one Mr. Read-
ine, @ Lawyer? 1 asked him, 7Fbat Reading ?
He anfwered, That ufed 1o be at the Parliament
Heufe, 1 faid, [ did, Then faid he, Pray tel]
Liny, when you fee bimy, 1 would [peak with bim,
aid fhould be glad to fee him : And I two or three
Daysafter, I metwith him ; and faid I, A7, Read-
ding, my Lerd Stafford asked me, If I knew
your 5 and defired me to tell you, He would be glad
19 fee vou. My Lord Staflord! {aid he 5 and feem-
ed furprized at the Name; and | repeated it to
him ¢ And this was all that paflt between me and
him,  And this was fome time in Michaelmas
Term laft,

L. C.¥. Look you, Mr. Reading, we know
that the Acquaintance you had with Bedlow,
and your going to the Lords, wasin Michaelmas
Term: The Habeas Corpus’s, and the matter of
Bailing was i Hillary Term, which ended the
12th of Februarys and therefore, the Bulinefs be-
rween Mr. Attorney and vou, muft be during
Ifdfary Term. But this Faét ckarged upon you
m the Indi¢tment, and {worn by the Witneflts,
ceing on the 28th, 209th, and 31ft of March,
that 15 aquite other thing : And therefore, I would
have you apply your felf to that.

Reaging. My Lord, I fhall humbly obferve
your Lordfhip’s Direftions in that: Buc I defire
to be heard in this other Thing alfo, which was
- Michaelmas Term. 1 fay, my Lord, they
were defliring of me to advife them, whether
they fhould move in the Heufe of Lords, whence
moft of the Commitments were ifflued. For as

to fome, the Charge was againft them in the
Vou. II,
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Houfe of Commons, fome in the Houfe of Lords,
fome were gererally Committed by my Lord
Chief Juftice Scrogps 3 and according to the Na-
ture of the_Caﬁ:s, fo they did defire me, that
I would advife them, how to addrefs them{elves,
by one way or other, for procuring their Liber--
ty by Bail, or otherwife, And as to the Writs
obtained, and the Bailing of feveral of them, it
was 1n Hillary Term, which was before the Faét
charged upon me. But I did give your Lord-
{hip an Account how it was, in order to have it
appear naked before you; and then I fhould be
n your Lordfthip’s Judgment, which, Iam fure,
will be right, And I do fay, my Lord, that af-
terwards I met feveral times with my Lord Pecir,

and my Lord Petre, at the Licutenant of the
Tower’s Houfe,

L. C. 7. Here is now Sir Trevor Williamss
do you defire he fhould be Sworn ?

Reading, 1do, my Lord.

L.C. ¥. Then give him his Oath.  77bich was
done.

Reading. My Lord, with your Lordfhip’s Fa-
vour, that which I defire Sir Trever Iitliams to
give your Lordfhipan Accountof, is this, W he-
ther he was not pleafed to bring Mr, Bedlsw 1o
my Chamber, and to recommend me to him about
his Pardon ?

Sir Tr. Williams, My Lord, Mr, Reading was
an Acquaintance of mine; and upon whar [
knew, I had a great Opinion of his Knowledge
in the Law; and Mr. Bedluw was a Country-
man of mine, and I was very defirous he fhouid
have his Pardon as perfect as could be: Ard in

- order to that, I recommended him to Mr., Read-

ing, and deflired him to be careful abour 1t. And
that 15 all that I can fay.

L.C.7. What further Queftions would you
ask him?

Reading, My Lord, 1 defire to know of him,
What Advice he hath heard me give Mr. Bedlow
in order to his dealing ingenuoufly, and my prel-
fing of him to a full Diicovery of the Plot.

L. C. ¥. Mr. Reading, asto that, Mr. Bedlow
hath already clear’d it himfelf, that in all publick
Diicourfes between you and him, you did carry
it very plaufibly 5 yet we will not preclude you
from having your Witneffes fpeak to that, if you
will have them examined to 1.

Reading. My Lord, I will trouble Sir Trever
Williams with no more Queftions.

L.C.% You need not, as to this Point;
Mr. Bedlow hath teftified, that publickly you
did advife him to make full Difcoverics, and {pare
no Perfon.

Bedlow. 1did fay fo at firft, and I will dohim
Juftice, he did really, and honeftly, I believe,
give me that Advice, as to all in publick, and
only fpoke abour thofe Men hie was concerned for,
towards whom he would make me ealy.

L. C. #. Pray, Mr. Reading, will youcometo
the Fact?

Reading. My Lord, at the time of my being
examined before the Committee, 1 did deliver
fome Papers, which 1 had from Mr. Bedloww, and
under his Hand, and which do concern the Evi.
dence I am to give in my own Defence: Thefe
I do beg the Favour may be fent tome, to make
ufe of them for my felf, and I fhall, as foon as
the Court hath looked upon them, return them
agal.

s M2 Bedlow.
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Bedlow. There was a Propolfition about 1t, in
the Houfe of Commons 5 and the main Paper, which,
I fuppofe, Mr. Reading deflires to produce, is in
Mr. Clare’s Hand, to be produced, when called for,
if the Court think fit.

L. C. 7. Have you it there, Mr. Claie ?

Clare. Yes, my Lord, | have

L. C. ¥. Mr. Attorney, when the Prifoner calls
for a Paper, which he himfelf delivered in, I think
it is but fair 1t thould be produced.

Mr, At Gea. [Siv William fones,] Yes, my
Lord, | do not oppofe it.

Sir C. Leviuz. My Lord, Mr. Reading malt un-
derftand, that this is no Hinge from us, but he de-
fires fuch a Paper, which let him make what Ule

of 1t he can.
Bedlow. I fuppole it is about the Protection for

Prickman,

Reading. Mr. Bedlgw, 1f you pleafe to anfwer
it by and by, when it is read, and let me open it
my felf.

L. C. ¥. Here 1s now Mr, Sacheverel ; what have
you to fay to him

Mr. Sacheverel. My Lord, in the Foufe of Coni-
smons we have recetved a Letter from Mr. Reeding,
by which he doth defire, for hisown Juftification,
to have fome Papers fent him, which were deliver-
ed to the Secret Committee 5 I fuppofe he means
a Paper about Mr. Prickinair, and a Letter concern-
ing him, and likewife a Paper that contaned a
State of the Evidence aganit the Lords, which he
pretended Mr, Bedlsw had dictated to lnm = That,
I fuppole, Mr. Clare hath s for the other two, the
Houfe of Commons hath ordered me to bring
them here, that if he can ule them, or any other,
in his own Defence, he may have free Liberty fo
to do.

L.C. 7. Is there any other thing you would
have with Mr. Sacheverel 2

Reoding. Nothing, my Lord; I humbly thank
him for this Fa. vur, and the Houfe too.

L. C. F. Mr. Sacheverel, thefe Papers you have
brought, fhall be put 1o the Hands of Mr. Clare,
to carry to the Secret Committee, when the Trial
15 over.

Mr. Juft. 77004 Mr. Reading, pray fpare me
one Word; You are a Lawyer, and you know
how to mike your Defence, Ipeak ad idem, the
Thing you are ciarged withy the tampering with
Bedlow to take off his Evidence againft thofe
Lords, or elle you do nothing 5 for we are not a-
bout the Plot i general, nor are you charged
with it,

Reading, My Lord, 1 fhall do nothing elfe, I
fhall not give you the Trouble of fpeaking to a-
ny thing elfe; my Lord, Mr. Bedlpzo will give
your Lordfhip an Account of the Difcourfe that
I had with him, at the Time that I had been to
wait upon my Lord Chiet Juftice Sergggs; 1
went to him upon this Occalion, Mr. Bedlow
defired me to go wait upon my Lord Chief Ju-
{tice, to give him an Account about the parti-
cular Evidence he had given; I think 1t wasa-
aainft Mr, Coleinair, and that he being with my
Lord Chief Juftice, my Lord was pleafed o
treat him, not as he expected from him; where-
upon he fell into great Expreflions of Paffion,

and went down Stairs, and faid, It would never.

be well in Euglond, till there was an honefter
Man than the Lord Chief Juftice. When he

had told me this, I told him, at what rate his
Lordfhip had endear’d himfelf to the whole Na-
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ton, by his Zeal againft the Plot; however,
fath he, do me the Kindnefs to beg my Lord’s
Pardon, and pray him to accept of this Paper.
My Lord, I was extremely forry, that Mr. Bed-
low had fo misbehaved himfelf; 1 had a great
Kindnefs for Mr. Bedlscw, 1 have fufficiently to-
ftfy’d 1t, and now fufficiently fuffer for it: And
m Kindnefs to him, I went to wait upon my
Lord, and deliver him the Paper; I told his
Lordfhip, that I was heartily forry, that he had
carried himfelf in fuch a manner towards his
Lordfhip, but I did defire his Lordthip to pafs
it by, for I did believe Mr. Bedlowy was very
forry for it. My Lord faid, It was fufficiently
known that he was not a Man of Paffion, but
that he pitied Mr, Bediszy, and defired he would
be more careful and difcrect for the ume to come,
for his own fike, and for the Kindgonvs; I re-
turned to him, and gave him this Account, and
what was my Lora’s Advice to him. My Lord,
when he had his Pardon a drawing, and when he
was asked by the King and my Lord Chancellor,
Who was his Friend ? Who was his Counfel ? he
was plealed to fav, that T was his Counfel, and
his Eriend, recommended by Sir Trever Hil-
ligins, as hath been proved; and when his Ma-
jetty was pleafed to ask him, What advice I had
given him? he retarned the King this Anfiver;
That I had bid him fpeak the Truth with Cou-
rages; to Ipare no Man, where he could jufily
cnarge any Man 3 and to truft God and his Ma-
jelty for a Reward. The King was pleafed to
fay, the Advice was honeflt ; and bade him fol-
low 1. What I did in this matter, I did in
Friendlhip to him, becaufe I had a great Kind-
nefs for him: 1 have {upply’d him with feveral
Guineas, with 2 Guinea or two, when he to'd
me he has not had Bread. He was pleafed to
tell me, that he was very fenfible of the Service
I had done him. Tappeal to him, whether cver
I fawa Penny of Moaey from him in my Laifc;
he was pleafed to tell me, that upon e recciv-
ing of the 500/ in the Proclimation, he would
ave me a Third Part, for that Scrvice I had
done him, and would cerrainly repay me what-
foever I had lent him, and the Fees that were
due to me. And, my Lord, upon this I did
likewife tell him, That he had not carricd him-
{elr well, that he had been a very great Scandal,
Abroad and at Home, and that he would not do
himfelf Righe, till he had advifed with Dr. S#/-
lingfleet, Dr. Tillotfon, and Dr, Lioyd, 1 did ad-
vife him to go to the Chapel, and, upon Con-
ference with thofe worthy Men, I defired him
ferioufly to confider, how he could. digeft fo
many as Thirty Sacraments, which he had taken
as Obligations of Sccrecy ; my Lord, Mr. ZWhar-
fon was at that time by, and he hath often heard
me give him Advice to this Effelt. Mr. har-
ton undertook to go to Dr. Stillingfleer, but he
defired to be excufed 5 1 did then pray him to go
to Dr. Tillotfon, Mr. Bealszo told me, it was no
great matter, and {o hkewife for Dr, Lisyd. He
told me, they were all mercenary Men, that va-
lued 105. above any Man’s Soul: And at this
rate he was pleafed to treat them. T told him, I
was very forry, and difpleafed to hear him to
ipeak fo ill of Men of fo great Eminency in the
World for Learning and Piety. My Lord, in
further difcourfing with Mr. Bedlow, he told me
he was overjoyed, that his Majefty had been

pleafed to take off the Confinement they were
under,
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under, for they had not Liberty to fpeak to one
anothers he, and Mr. Oafes, and Mr. Dugdale ;
but when it was fo granted, that they might now
{reak together, he told me, with {:xcaedi{lg
Rejoicing, that they could now lay their Stories
together, He did further tell me, that he had
now by him feveral Witnefies, that whatfoever
he bid them fwear, they would fivear; and he
1id confefs he had not done well in fome things,
particularly in charging M., Grijfth.  Now,
smy Lord, that Mr. Grifith was Steward to Mr.
Sheldon. L

L.C ¥ Before you go on in this kind, Mr.
Reading, T muft tell you, ’ois not fair: Here 1s
Oach made of fuch and fuch Facts againft you,
and you talk of Difcourfcs between you and
Mr. Bedlow either produce Mr. Bedlow 1o fay
upon his Oath what he hath told you, or elfe pro-
duce fome other Witnefles to prove it, 1f you
+hink it matertal : Do you think your Word fhall
pafs for Truth, by telling this Story? All this
mateer will be nothing 1a the Cafe, unlefs you ap-
ply 1t 0 diferedit the Witnefles, therefore pray
produce fome Proof, and we will hear it; 1f you'll
ask Mr, Bedlowo any Quellions, whereby you may
entrap him, and make him contradt himiclf; or
it you will produce any other Witneffes againit
him, do it; but you muft not be fuffered to go in
fuch Difcourfes as thefe, and fpend Time to no
purpole. _ ‘

Bediowe. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe to
alve me leave, I will anfwer him.

L. C. ¥. Mr, Reading, I muft tell you, I have
as much Patience as another Man, and when you
are chareed with a Crime, which you your felf
know, and at firft faid, cannot be aggravared, I
thought it fit you fheuld have all fair Liberty of
{peaking to defend your felf; 1 have had a great
deal of Patience to hear you already, and {o have
my Brothers: I cannot fay you have fpoke un-
skilfully 5 I confefs your Defence s Artificial,
becaufe ’tis nothing to the purpofe: DBur, we
muft hold you to the Point; if you can fay any
thing to difprove the Fact of the 28th, 29th,
and 31{t of Mdaich, that’s the whole matter that
lies upon yous as to all other Things, they lignify
nothing.

Reading. My Lord, if T underftand any thing
in my own Defence, I did look upon this as fo
material, as nothing more. My Lord, when I
did find this, I appeal to Mr. Bedlow, and ask
him this Queftion upon his Oath, Whether I
did not defire him, as I had defired him before,
to fpeak home, n what he knew for Truth;
that he would do well to remember, thar this
Land groaned for the fhedding of innocent
Blood ; and whether I did not tell him, That if
he fhouid go on to add Sin to Sin, and charge
any Mun unjufllly, to take away Lis Life, whether,
inftead of preferving the Nation, by which he
thought he might well deferve of 1t, he might not
rain 1t ?

L. C. 7. Do you defire that he fhould be asked
that Queftion ¢

Recaing, My Lord, I do.

L. C. . Mr. Bedlow, you hear the Queftion,
pray anfwer 1t

Bedlew, My l.ord, I co not deny, but that
he hath publickly given me fuch Advice, and
hath charged me with doing of Wrong, in par-
ticular, to Mr. Grighth; and I do acknowledge,
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that Mr. Griffith had a great deal of Wrong; but,
How was 1t? It was by the Miftake of them that
took him; the Uncle was taken for the Nephew,
who was really concerned in the Plot, and that oc-
caftoned his Trouble: And I told him I was very
forry for that.

Reading. Pray, Sir, did he give you a Gold
Watch ?

Bedlow. Yes, hedid, and I told the Committee
and the Prince of it prefently.

Mr. Juft. Wild, Mr. Bedlsw, you received feve-
ral Sums of Money from Mr. Readizg, by the
Oath you have taken, were thofe lent to you, or
did you take them to be given?

Bedlows. Whereas he fays, That 1 teld him I
wanted Bread, 1t was an unreafonable Thing for
me to fay fo, for I have five Dithes of Meat cvery
Day allowed me, and, How could I then wane
Bread ?

Mr. Juft. Athins. And you had good Sums of
Money too given to you,

Mr, Juft 774, But, as T underftood you, you
faid, whenever you wanted Money, he fupplied you.

Bedlow. And fometimes gave me Money w hen
I did not ask it.

Mr. Juft. 77244, But anfwer my Queftion.  Did
he oive you that Money for the Intent that you
fhould leflen your Evidence againit the Lords
the Tower?

Bedlsws. This Money that I recerved of Mr.
Reading, he told me, that he had received Orders
from the Lords, that f {hould have what Aloney
I came for; that at prefent I could not have any
areat Sum, becaufe they could not have Money,
tor my Lord Stafford, faith he, 1sietling his Wood,
and *till that be come in, he hath not wherewithal
to provide for his Famuily, but I have Order to let
you have what you want.

Mer, Juft. 7id. And ke gave you Meney after
that ¢

Bedlsww. Yes, he did. *

Mr. Juft. 2. And upon that Occafion?

Bedlow. Yes, I thought fo. And whereas fie
fays, my Lord, that I was to pay him the Mo-
ney agat, I muft confels he was to have 1co /.
a Year out of every 1oo0/l. a Year of my Re-
ward.

Reading. By the Oath you have taken, was that
the Reward?

Bedlow. Yes, by the Oath 1 have taken, o 1t
was agreed.

L. C.¥. I never knew any Man go about fuch
2 Bufinefs as this without fome Invention to pal-
liate it with; they don’t ufe to go downrigat in
fuborning Witnefies, and fay, here is fo much Mo-
ney for you, pray forfwear your felf, or pray be a
Knave; but, pray remember that you fpeak no-
thing but the Truth, and be cautious that you
don’t fivear too much; and fo *us all gilded with
Pretence of the Delire of Truth, but then they
add, You fhall have a very good Reward for your
Care in ity but if this way fhould be allowed, to
Bribe Witnefles to {peak the Trath, or upon colour
of fpeaking nothing but the Truth, T cannor tell
what will be Subornation, For it is always done
upon this Pretence.

Mr. Juft, Atkins, Mr. Reading, there fell fome-
thing from your own Mouth that was Difcourage-
ment enough; you asked him how he could di-
gelt 30 Sacraments, which he received as Obli-
gations of Secreey, and advifed him to go to _Dln
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vines to recelve Satisfaétion about it.

Difcouragement, |
Reading. My Lord, Idid not mean it fo; Idid

as a Chriftian, and 2 Loyal Subject, advife him
not to fhed Innocent Blood. Mr. Bedlow, you
have brought me here to this Bar, pray remember
you and I muft be at a Greater.

Bedlew. 1 always remember it.

Reading. Pray, Sir, anfwer this Queftion upon
your Qath. Did I ever directly or indiredtly de-
firc you to leflen any one Syliable of your Evi-
dence you knew to be true?

Bedlow. 1 fuppofe there is no need to prove that,
for there are two other Witnefles have prov’d it
already. |

Readisg. But, pray Sir, anfwer my Queftion
upon your Qath.

Bedlrw. Yes, my Lord, I do upon my Qath
declare, That upon my bringing the Lords off
from the Charge that was upon them, I was to
have fuch a Reward, and you told me, you had
order to draw up blank Deeds.

Mr. Jult. 2#7ild, Mr. Reading, pray hear me;
he hath gone farther than that, and hath Sworn
that he did leffen his Evidence againtt Whitebread
and Ferwick upon your Inftigation, which 1s not
indeed in the Indictment,

Bedlozy. 1did then fay at the Old-Baily (becaufe
I would not fpoil the Defign [ had upm;:ihim,
when my Lord Chief Juftice asked me, if that
were all I could fay) I told him, it was all I could
{ay at prefent, but in Time and Place convenient
I could fuy more. _ |

L. C. 7. That is not the Matter in queftion
now here, but the other Witnefles have fworn 1t
fufficiently. The young Lad fwears exprelly,
that he remembers his Mafter asked about the
Land in Gloucefferfbire, and you anfwered you
had Order to draw up a Blank Deed for the Set-
tlement: and as for the other Lords, you told
him, he fhould have a good Reward fuitable to
the Service he fhould do them,  And you, as to
that, make no kind of Defence, but think we

2

fhould forget it by your long Difcourfe to other
purpole.

Reading. 1 would not delire to fpend your
Lordfhip’s Time in vain Difcourfes. It lies purely
on my Negation, and his Affirmation,

Mr. Jult. /Fid, No, no, 1t is noty here are
two more, Mi. Speke and his Man, that {wear the
fanic.

Reading. My Lord, 1 come to that; and I
take it for granted the Law 1s this, That in Ca-
fes of this Nature, nay, of a much lefs Nature,
no Man fhall be accufed buc by lawful Witnefies ;
And, my Lord, Ido infilt upon 1t as Law; So
is my Lord Lovelace’s Cafe, and 1 & 5 Ed. 6.
If mine is not Treafon, yet 1t is a very heinous
Crime; and I am in your Lordfhip’s Judgment,
whether there is a Poffibility of having thefe,

Mr. Bedlew, and the others, to be lawful Wit-
nefles.  Mr. Speke, how worthy a Gentleman

foever he is, is one to whom I have done parti-
cular Service, I have lent him Money, and to this
Day have it not. That he fhould go, my Lord,
and place himfelf behind an Hanging, and puta
Servant on a Bed, to over-hear, and to Eves-drop,
which is the Term of a Crime in Law. That
fuch thould pafs for lawful Witnefles, my Lord,
I hope it was never pretended to before, nor will

be admitted againft me: But, my Lord, all my

That was a
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never propound fuch a thing to Mr. Bedlw
fince I was born. And God deal with me here,
and in the next World, according to the Inte-
grity of my Heart, and the Truth of what |
fpeak now. Yefterday Sevennight, when I did
not hope to fee another Swnday, fo fpent I was
with the barbarous Ulage I have recetved, 1 did
defire Dr. Tillotfon to give me the Sacrament,
for I did not expect to live ull the next Morning,
And T did pray him to remember, agunfl the
Time when he and I were to meet before the
great God, that what I was charged with in this
Indiétment, is as exprelly falfe, as ever any thing
that was fworn againft an Innocent Man. I can
but fay this now, come Life, come Death, the
Will of his Aajefly und of your Lordfhips be
done, There never ftood a more Innocent Man
at this Bar than I am of this Faét I am charged
with. And I do fay, my Lord, that having faid
this, I muft, with your Favour, proceed to tell
you, that I defire Mr. Bedlozw will be pleafed but
to give an Anfwer to thefe two Queftions, and
I have done. Pray, Sir, by the Oath you have
taken, did you lay in Provifions of Fire, Coul,
and Billeis behind the Palfgrave’s-Head Tavern,
and hard by Charing-Crofs, to burn the City of
Weflminfler ?

L.C. 7. Mr. Reading, we muft {ee Juftice done
on all fides: if you offer toask him any Queftion
upon his Qath, to make him accufe himiclf, we
muft oppofe it.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. He hath his Pardon, my
Lord, and it ought not to be objeted againft him,
if fo.

Reading. The Pardon of the King doth remit
the Punithment, but 1t doth not hinder its being,
objected to invalidate his Teftimony.

L.C. ¥ It doth fo far fet him right, that you
fhall not make him calumniate himfelf,

Mr. Juit. #ld, No, you fhall never objet it
againft him to accufe himfelf,

L.C. 7. Mr. Reading, we are in a Court of
Law, and you are skilled in the Law; you have
no Evidence to defend your felf by, and fo you
think your Proteftations muft ferve for Evidence;
When that will not ferve your turn, you flrive
to lead us out of the way. Upon this Queftion
to Mr, Bedlw there ltes this Dileinma againft
yous Either he hath his Pardon for what you
object againft him, or he hath not: If he hath
not his Pardon, then he is in danger of Death
for the Crime, and muft not accufe himfelf;
if he hath his Pardon, it doth take away as well
all Calomny as Liablenefs to Punithment, and fets
him right againft all Objection. So, you know,
after an At of general Pardon, *tis a Scandal
to reproach 2 Man for that which he is thereby
pardoned for. So that if he have not his Pardon,
his Life is in danger; if he hath, neither his Life
nor Name muft fuffer, and therefore fuch Que-
ftions muft not be asked him. But if you have
any other Queftions that are pertinent to the Bufi-
nefs, propound them, and they fhall be heard and
anfwered. '

Reading. My Lord, I took the Law to be, that
no Man fhould be accufed but by lawful Witneffes,
thich I took him not to be, tho’ he hath his Par-

on.

L.C. % 1 underftand Lawful Witnefles, or

Accufers, to be fuch whofe Teftimony is not
taken
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raken away by the Law; if a Man flands {o in
Court that he cannot be received to give Evi-
dence, he is no lawful Witnefs: As if a Man
be conviéted of Perjury, he is not a Jawful Wit-
nefs, becaufe he cannot be heard at all. But
every thing that leflens the Credit of his Tefti-
mony doth not make but that he is a lawful
Wirnels; for I take him to be 2 lawful Witnefs
a5 long as he can be heard at all.  And as for the
Fves-dropping which you from the Term of Law
would infer a Scandal upon Mr. Speke; I take
it to bz a thing that makes much tor the Credit
of the Gentleman. For he was not the Man
that did firft detet you, you were detected be-
fore by Mr. Bedlsww; and as it ftood only upon
his Teftimony, fhould you deny it, 1t was but
your Negation and his Affirmation, and there-
fore it concerned him (being a deed of Dark-
nefs in its own Nature, when he engaged himfelf
by his Difcourfe as much as you) to have fome
of unqueettionable Integrity and Credit to deteét:
you further in i, and for his own Vindication,
And it is therefore a Credit to Mr, Spete that he
was thought fuch a Perfon, whofe Credit was not
to be fufpelted, and fo was fet to conviét you. So
that it is {o far from detraéting from his Credir,
rnat it fhews him a Man reputed to be of un-
doubted Integrity.

Bedlswo. 1 fay this, my Lord, wedid defign to
propole it to another Gentleman of Quality, who
had been before acquainted wich the Defign in ge-
neral, but we could not find him out to acquaint
him with it.

Speke. As for what he fays of Money he lent
me, | will acquaint your Lordfhip how it was,
There was a Double-Return 1n the Cafe of my
Brother’s Eleétion for this Parliament, and he
and the other Gentleman that ftood with him
(for there were four returned) had gotten Order
for the hearing of their Caufe, and { had taken
a Copy out before, and paid Six Shillings and
Eight Pence for it, or thercabouts, and after-
wards Mr Readire comes to my Chamber and
brings me ancther Order, and [ told him [ had
one already, and asked him what he paid for it,
he told me Ten Shillings. Now I knew it was
but Six Shillings and Light Pence, for I had
paid fo before: faid 1, what need 1 have ano-
ther? but [ fuppofe my Brother will pay you, I
had before recommended him to my Brother, to
manage his Bulinels in Parliament, and T did de-
fire ke might be of Counfel for him. I knew
what pafled concerning the Treaty between Mr.
Bedlow and him daily 3 but becaufe he fhould not
fufpect me, 1 did carry my felf very fairly and
friendly to him, and, as ] faid, I defired my Bro-
ther to employ him, and let him be of his Coun-
fel, but my Brother refufed, and told me he
would have nothing to do with him, for, faid
he, I hear an ill Charader of him. And the
Ten Shillings for the Order is the Money he
fpeaks of.

L.C. 7. TIs that all the Money he lent you?

Speke. Yes, that is all.

Mr. Jult. dtkins. Mir. Reading, this I muft fay
to you, your Afperfion of thefe Perfons with be.
ing Lives-droppers, is no Afperfion at all. For
it was neceffary for Mr. Bedlsw to take this Courfe,
and 1t was prudent for him to make ufe of un-
fufpe@ed Perfons, to have it underftood by the
Mouth of more than one Witnefs what your Prac-

tices were. For if he had not done it, and it had

for a Trefpafs and Mildemeanour.

523

been otherwife difcovered, he had been in the
fame danger that you are in now.

Reading. My Lord, I have done. Since Mr.
Speke hath been pleafed to give you an account of
this Matter, I defire I may ask him one Queftion:

Whether he did not come to me to be of the
Counfel with his Brother?

L. C.7. He bath faid fo already.

Reading. Did not you bring this Gentleman,
your Brother, to my Chamber?

Speke. Yes, I did.

Reading. Did not you defire me to draw up his
Cafe?

Spete. Yes, I think T did.

Readzing. I {pent moft of a whole morning in
it: fray did L ever receive a Penny of Money of
you:

Spete. No. I{poke to my Brother to employ
you, buche faid he had heard an ill Charaler of
you, and he would have nothing to do with
you. And you asked Ten Shillings for an Order
which 1 had before for Six Shillings and Eighe
Pence.

Readiyg. Here is this Gentleman, Mr. Hayes,
who had been a Clerk there, and knows it to be
"LUen Shillings every Order.

L.C. #. It is not at all pertinent to the Bufi-
nefs we are upon.

Reading. He hinder’d me from receiving a
Fee from the other Side, and [ am Twenty
Shillings out of Pocket, and yet am thus treated
for my Kindnefs. There were three Orders I
paid for.

Speke. ‘There were more concern’d than my
Brother: You deliver'd but one to me, I know
not how many ‘you deliver'd to the reft.

Mr. Juft, #4ld. T am forry you difgrace your
Profeflion by making fo weak a Defence, What
fay you to that which paft on Sasurday morning
at Mr. Bedlow’s ?

Reading. Mr. Bedlsw did defire me to go to
the Lords in the Tewer, to tell them that he was
called upon to give in his Evidence againft them,
and that he could delay 1t no longer; and he bid
me tell them, that is to fay, my Lord Stafford,
my -Lord Pswisy and my Lord Petie, that it
they did not affure him of a good .Reward he
would give m fuch an Evidence againft them as
fhould take away their Lives, and he had Wit-
neffes to do it, as well as he himfelf; but he bid
me tell them, 1f they would give him a Reward,
he would put in fuch an Evidence as would do
them no hurt at all,

Mr. Jult. 7d. "This is direCtly againft you,
and within the Words of the Inditment, ’ts a
Contracting with him for a Reward to leflen his
Evidence againft the four Lords. He told you,
as you fay, thus, and thus, and you agreed to do
as he faid. |

Mr. Delpen. You do fpeak the Truth plamly
now.,

Reading. My Lord, I do fay this, that what I
have faid is true; in the Prefence of God 1
fpeak it. The Lords do know this, and the
Lord of Heaven doth know it, he propofed it
firlt to me. |

Mr, Juft, Atkins. It is to no purpofe to talk,
unlefs you can prove 1.

L. C. 7. Call your Witneffes, and we will hear
them. Will the Jury give in their Verdict upon
your bare Affertion? We have-heard you a great
while, if you will call any Witnefles, do.

- Sir
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Sir Fames Butler. My Lord, 1 defire Mr. Read-
mg may be asked, whether 56 Guineas were
nat brought by him to Mr. Bedlsw, and paid
to him for to leflen his Evidence againft the
Lords?

Bedlow. T had fometimes Two Guineas, fome-
times more, but not any fuch ereat Sum at once,
but I believe more, at feveral times, and he told
me that he had order to fupply me at any time
with what I wanted.

L. C. 7. Conme, where are your Witnefles,
Mr. Reading @

Reading. Here is Mr. Palmer, my Lord, [Wao
was Sworn.] My Lord, I defire this Gentle-
man may give you an Account what Mr., Bedlow
did fay to me concerning the borrowing of any
Moncey, upon tie Twefiay Morning before 1 was
clapil up.  The oth of March, as 1 take it, mn
rhe Morning.

Mo, Jult., Atkins. That was Sundsy.

- Reading. It was on Zuefday, my Lords, the Day

Lefore he recetved the 500 Pounds. 1 believe 1t
was the firlt or fecond of Apr#l. My Lord, this
Gentleman was there 1 the Room,

Paficr. My Lord, Mr. Bedlotw at that time
had Twenty Shillings in his Hand of his Mother’s,
as he faid :  Mr. Reaainy came in, faid he, Mr.
Reading, !l my Money is gone, and I have no
more than this, and this I borrowed of my Mo-

ther: with that Mr. Reading clap’d his Hand in his-
Pocket, and gave him Two Guineas, God-a-mercy,.

faith Mr. Bedlowo, you are an boncft Man, and iny
chicf Founiain,

Sir Gr. Levinz. When was this Money deli-

vered ?

Palner. It was about three Weeks ago.

Mr. Juft. #7ild. But he tells you, you were to
have a Sup out of this Fountain,

L. C. 7. He doth prove this (what Ule you
will make of 1t I know not) that on Tuefday three
Wecks ago, which we find to be the Firft of 4p#/,
he faw Twenty Shillings in Mr., Bedloo’s Hand,
and he fard, This 75 all the Money I have ; and you
clap’d your Hand into your Pocket, and gave him
Two Gumeas, and he faid, God-g-mercy, you are
wmy chicf Fountain,

Mr. Jult, stkins. This was after you faw
Mr. Bedlprs was tor your turn, This makes againtt
7O
J Reading, 1 defire he may be asked, whe-
ther he hath not heard Mr. Bediow confels
that he hath had Money feveral times from
me.

L. C. . Mr. Bedisiw hath confeffed it,

Reading, T defire him to tell, whether Mr.
Bedlew did not confefs, that he did lay Fuel
behind the Palfprave-Head-Tavern to burn Weft-

sunficr.

Bediew. I acknowledpe ity that was part of the-

‘Treafon I was guilty of, and for which the'King
pardon’d me,

" Reading: 1 defire to ask Mr, Bedlow’s Man one
Queftion, whether your Mafter, when I went a-

long with him to fetch the Privy-Seal for the 500
Pounds, did not defire me to lend him Money for

the Privy-Seal ¢

Wiggins., He faid he had no Money about him,
and asked you if you had any, and defired you
would Jend him fome; and then I faid I had fome,
and {o he faid no more,

Reading. ‘Was there any thing of the Confider-.

ation fpoken of ?.
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Wiggins. 1 don’t know that, I could not hesr
it. He fpokeit in the open Court, where there
were a great many by.

Reading, I have feveral other Witnefles, thye
will give you an Account, that when he hath
not had any Money to pay a Reckoning, he
hath had 1t from me at feveral times; and the very
Day when he had got this Money, the 500 Pounds,
and 1t was laid upon the Table in the Room,
in the Tavern where he was, he did then defire
me to let him have a Guinea for to pay the
Reckoning; and he would pay me in the After-
noon.

Bedlow. 1do not deny it, but that X have recejv-
ed feveral Sums of Money, for he always told
me, I muft trouble no Body elfe when I wanted
Vioney, but him,

Mr. Juft, Atkins. They who have to deal with
Men of fuch Art as you are of, muft ufe fome Art
with you.

Mr. Jult. #d. Did you ever promife to pay
him back the Money again ¢

Bedlsw., No, my Lord, but he was to have
a Hundred Pounds a Year out of every Thou-
fand Pounds a Year that I fhould have from them
Lords.

Reading. My Lord, I do here declare, that I
never had any more from the Lords in the Tzeer,
than thus: I had from my Lord Stafford fix
Guineas, and I do not know I had one more;
I had never from my Lord Beflafis more than two
Guineas; nor from my Lord Petre than fve,
and that was at the time when I carried him the
Paper, which I’ll give your Lordfhip an Account
of, by and by. I never fpoke to my Lord rundel,
tho’ I met him often; nor with my Lord Powis,
than apon this Account: Mr. Bedlow did defire me
to go and tell the Lords in the Tower, that if they
did well Reward him, he would make the Charge
he had aguint them very eafy. My Lord, I did tell
mm, This is an Affair which I cannot in prudence
deal in, fory faid 1, you are a defigning Man, and how
you will deal with e afterwards I dow't knoew. Said
he, *Tis it your Power, My, Reading, by this that I
have faid, 1o do me o Mifthicf, becanfe if you do dif-
cover what I bave faid to you, you will be belizved,
but if I fhold offer this againft you, I fhall never be
believed.  And with all the Imprecations in the
World I do curfe my felf, if I did direftly or in-
directly offer to perfuade him to diminifh his Evi-
dence, but he propofed'it to me. But, faid I, bere is
one M. Dugdale, and be may give Evidence againf
sy Lord Stafford, 1ho® you dow’t, and what will you
do as to bim€  Believe me, faid he, that I deal en-
tively with you, by this Token: Did not Dugdale
come to you to defire you to draw up bis Evidence?
And'{o he did, my Y ord, and told me he would
be refponfible for it. I told him I was unwil-
ling to meddle with fuch an Affair, but if he
would come to my Chamber I would give him-
what Leifure I' had, in order to the drawing up
of his Evidence into a Method; but he never
came. Mr. Bedlow told me, faid he, delicve me
i all the veft by this Token, bave a.care of him, he
15 fet on purpsfe to infrare you, Saith he, Telf

Jrom me, be foall do bim o barm, for be bath pro-

mifed to fay nothing againf iy Lord Stafford, but
what I will'have bim to foy, 1 defire Mr. Bedlow
will anfwer this upon his Oath: Did I ever know-
one Nicholas Jordan *till you acquainted me with

lum?- Had not he fome Eftate in Gloucefferfbire 2

Bedlnw.
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Bedlow. Yes, my Lord, I did tell Mr. Read-
ing, that would have fuch an E{’catf: fettled up-
on me, of My Lords, in Gluceller/bire, and his
Words to me were thefe: That he had Order to
draw blank Deeds for the conveying of that E-
ftate, which my Lord would {ign in Ten Days
after his Difcharge.

Reading. He told me, that for Iihﬂ other Wit-
pefles, he would do well enough with them, and
"defired me to tell my Lord Stafford, that he
would do fo and fo, let him have buta Reward ;
and, believing of it, I went to the Tower, | ask-
ed my Lord Stafford if he knew one Nicholas
“ordan ; he told me he did, he had been a Te-
nant of fome Eftate of his. Mr. Bedlvzo bid me

ask him, whether he fhould not have a Provi-
fion of Money fecured to him out of that Farm,
My Lord, I told him I would acquaint his Lord-
fhip with it. I did fo, and my Lord Stujfford
was pleafed to tell me, that he would not give
him Six-pence; that he did value himfelt upon
his own Innocency, and the Infamy of his Accu-
fers ; that if he fhould offer to give him any
thing, he thould look upon it as the greateft part
of his Guile. Bxt, faid heto me, Mr. Reading,
this [ muft confefs, you bave been often with me, I
am much indebted to you for Fees for coming to e,
if you will but write a Lelier to me, that You are
not able 1o attend my Bufinefs, and negledt other
Mens, at this vate of being paid 5 and that there-
fore I fbouid not take it ill that you domot come to

me any more, uilefs you may bave an Affurance of

being fatisfied and rewarded for it.  And, faich he,
thereupon DI write you this in Anfwery, That Pl
give you the Sum of Two Hundred Pounds, to be paid
20 you within Ten Days after my Acquittal y and,
faith he, I will give you this Affurance too, that you
fhall bave this Two Hundred Pounds fecured 1o you,
as foors as ever you fhall defive 1, My Lord, this
being the Sum But withal remember, faith he at
the fame time, [ do beve declare, and pray do not
fail of remembring it, that I will not, direflly nor
sndireilly, promife Mr. Bedlow Six-pence. 1 went
to my Lord Powis, from whom I never faw Six-
pence in my Life, and he did declare to me, that
he would not for any thing in the World be
guilty of the making him a Promife of one Six-

pence, (and this is certainly {o) ; neverthelefs, if

Mz, Bedlow will not go on to do me a Mifehief, as

bitherto be hath done, and fball not go o1 Yo charge
me unjufily, when Iam acquitted, be fhall find that

I will do what fhall be like @ Gentlemany byt I

woi't promife one Farthing.

L. C. ¥. You have faid enough, Mr. Readinp.

Reading. My Lord Petre faid he would give
never a Farthing,

Mr. Fuft. Wild. This is againft your felf,

Reading. Tcan’thelpit, I did it to fave inno-
cent Blood, God’s Will be done with mine, I
think I was bound to do this, and I had finned
againft God Almighty and my Country if I had
not done it. My Lord, Idid come back to Mr.
Bedlpw, and he did ask me if 1 had been with
the Lords in the Tewer 5 I did tell him, Yes ;
and I did ask him whether there was any body in
the Bed by him. He asked me, #hat fay the
Lords 2 I think T did tell him in very lictle dif-
ferent T'erms from what I have now told you,
be it of what Conftruttion it will, And whereas
he fays, that there was a Thoufand Pounds and
Writings to be drawn, I never opened my Mouch
to him of fuch a Thing, '

Vour. IIL.
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L. C.¥. What fay you to the Eftate in Glox-
ccfterfhire

Reading. That was only to fecure the Two
Hundred Pounds to me, 2ro Coizfilio tmpenfo &
impendendo. My Lord, when that was done,
Mr. Bedlow was pleafed to tell me, for T mutt
confefs, he did defire meto give him an Account, -
and l_ dld_ come very late, as Mr. §peke fays, 1
was in his Chamber about an Hour; it feems it
was that time that this Gentleman, as he fays, was
there, but Mr. Bedlow not being at home, I went
away ; and being to give him an Account next
morning, it feems this Gentleman was there al-
fo, for he hath fivorn it; when I came I gave
him this Account, and God knows it was no o-
ther 3 nor did-1 ever heartalk of any Deeds draw-
ing.

$peke. Did not you fay, that the Deed was to
be figned in Ten Days ?

Reading. 1did tell him, that my Lord would
give me a Leter, wherein he would promife me
to fecure the Payment of Two Hundred Pounds
within Ten Days after his Acquittal.

Speke. 1 fay what you faid.  You had Orders
to draw up a Deed, from my Lord of Stafford
which my Lord had promifed faithfully to feal
within Ten Days after he was difcharged.

Reading. It wasonly a Deed for zo0/, to be
paid to me pro Confilio impenfo €3 impendendo 4
and to be fecured upon that Eftate in Gloncefier-
Jhire.

Speke. Nay, I don’tknow; I heard no Latiu
there,

L. C. F. Butwhat is that to Mr, Bedlow ?

Mr. Fuft. Wild. Why fhould you difcourfe
with Mr. Bedlow about your Penfion?

Reading. My Lord Siafford did fay, When you
have the Money, the 200 /. do you difpofc of it
as you think fit-¢

L. C. 7. This is nothing to the purpofe, but
an Endeavour, by multiplicity of Words, to make
us forger what has been {worn. Anfwer the
Matter of the Paper whereby the Evidence was
leflened.

Reading. My Lord, upon this Mr, Bedlow
was pleafed to tell me thusin Anfwer : That he
would take their Lordfhips Words ;5 and bid
me go along with him, and he would go fetch
that Evidence that he had, and would puc in fuch
and fuch Evidence, I fhould write, and hefhould
didtate. I went along with him to Zork-build-
ings, where he faid his Mother lay : And there
he faid he had left his Papers; buc when he
came there, they were not there, but he told me
his Memory fhould ferve ; and we went back
to the Chamber. And, myLord, it {eems thefe
Gentlemen were there before, and Mr. Bedlow
fent them away ; and when they were gone, we
went into a Room together, where he did dictate
to me every Syllable 1 wrote.  And when he had
di¢tated, and I had writ it, T read it, and he
read it again himfelf. And having perufed 1t,
he faid, This is- that which, I think, 1s ‘kmd to
them s and this is that I can come off with well
cnough in faying it; for I can make it out after-
wards, that it was by Hearfay. And this, faith
he, do you take along with you, and carry It to
the Lords, and let me have their Anfwer.' And
this is that very Paper that I did write in Mr.
Bedlsw's Chamber by his Diretions, and ditated

from his Mouth.
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Mr. Fuft. Atkins., And you did carry it to the
Lords?

Reading. Yes, 1did. And, my Lord, when
I had done this, I did ask him this Queftion, (I
did not dire€t him any one Syllable ; but as he
ditated, fo I wrote:) What he had to fay a-
gainft my Lord Bellafis, and my Lord Arundel?
He told me, that tho’ he was refolved to be kind
to thofe Lords, yet he was refolved the other
fhould die. And he told me, That the 4000 /.
and the 1500/, that was to be paid to Sir George
HWakeman, was to be pud by my Lord Bellafis.
And, my Lord, [ began to write, and did write
five or {ix Lines here in this Paper, and then left
offt. My Lord, when I had done this, I went
to the Tower the firlt Opportunity ; 1 did come
to my Lord Stafferd, and 1 fhewed him this.
He told me, That le did find that Mr. Bedlsw
would now begin to be an honeft Man, My
Lord, afterwards I went to my Lord Petre, and
fhewed it to hims and he did, at that time, my
Lord, give me five Guineas 5 and before that I
never faw a Penny of his Money in my Life, I
went to my Lord Pewis, and when I came, I
found Sir Henry Tichburn in the Chamber ; and
1t being late at Nighe, and 1t being Parliament-
time, and I having Perfons that flaid for me, I
did defire to be excufed: Tho' Sir Hewry was
pleafed to wallkk out upon the Leads, leaving my
Lord and me together, yer did not I thew him
any one Syllable of this Paper, nor did I fay any
thing to him concerning it. My Lord, I think
it was upon the AMouday Morning that I came to
Mr. Bedlpe’s : He was not within 3 1 then came
to the Painted Chamber, and I was going up to
Houfe of Lords, and Mr. Bedlosy met me in the
Court of Requejtsy or the Painied Chamber, one
of them, and this Gentleman was with him.
And there he asked me for a Paper: Thad writ
it out before, and *tis this very Paper that is now
with Mr, Clare. He did defire me, after I had
been with the Lords, to deliver a Copy of this
to them to write it out : And I did fo 5 and this
1s writ in the Third Perfon, the other was writ
in the Firft Perfon, And, I think, there is no
other Alteration in it. My Lord, that which [
did deliver to this Gentleman Mr. Bedlowy, be-
fore Mr. Speke, was in the Firlt Perfon, the o-
ther was in the Third. What they did with it
afterwards, I cannottell. My Lord, after this the
500 /. was recetved, and he promifed to pay me
all the next Morning, and pray’d me that | would
come to his Chamber. But when I came I mif-
fed of him. His Clerk told me, he was gone
abroad, I came here to 27effminfter 3 and when
I came there, I went up to the Speaker’s Cham-
ber, to fpeak with my Clients there : But when
I came up, the Door was faftned, and I was ar-
refted. My Lord, I have done; and, ler it be
with me, or againft me, this is what I faid to
the Commitiee of Secrecy 5 and I fpeak to your
Lordfhip under the greateft Tie and Obligation
to fpeak Truth, in the World, that this is all I
know. And whereas Mr, Bedlow did tell your
Yordfhip, that this Writing that I have drawn
was not as he direCted, but that 1 had carried it
to the Lords, and their Lordhips did corre&
it, and I brought it back again; that I did
bring him another Paper: That very Copy which
I writ out, in the Chamber, in the Third Per-
fon, 1 have; and this that is produced againft
me, 15 in the Fitft Perfon, and 1 defire your

Lordfhips to look upon it, and judge whether
there be any Correétion, more than the Alera.
tion of the Perfon,

[ Then both the Papers were fhewn to Mr, Bedlow,)

Bedlow, Your Lordfhips may fee both thefe
Papers are fair written, without interlining: But
there were above forty Interlineations in that Pa.
per that was written in my Chamber.

L. C. 7. This agrees with what you faid be-
fore, that when you did put in any thing that
was home, he would corret it, and fay, This
is Treafon, and this will charge them; and fo
mended it, And it was natural there fhould be
two Papers: That which was to be kept for
the Lords, was in the Third Perfon, importing,
That He faith fo and fo ; and the other was in
the Firft Perfon, which was to be kept by Mr.
Bedlow, for the helping of his Memory, I heard
fo and fo; that he might know how to oblerve
his Contraét. But what fay you to this, that the
firft Paper was, as Mr. Bedisw fays, cotrec.
ted, and had many Interlineations, and can-
not, therefore, be the fame with that you
produced.

Reading. My Lord, I hear it 3 I have but this
Thing to anfwer, let it avail me any thing or no-
thing. I {peak it in the Prefence of God, (pray
favourme) this Paper is the very Paper thatI did
write cut; there 1s no other Interlineation in it
than what you fee, It never went out of my
hand, from the time of my writing it in Mr.
Bedlow’s Chamber, till the time that I {hew’d ic
them in the Tower, and I did deliver it to Mr.
Sacheveiel,

Mr, Juft. #7ld. Ay, but there was another
Paper, there was a Paper correted according to
your Intention 3 and then you cauled this Paper
to be writ out, and it was never feen fince.

Reading, No other, upon my Word.

My, Fufl. IVild. But he {wears it, and it 1s ob-
vious to the leaft Underftanding here.

Reading. My Lordy I have only this to fay,
That *uis not true. .

L C. 7. Butit is very probable, and it1s fworn
to be true,

Reading. 1can only fay, *Tis not true,

Mr. fuft, Wild. 1 have one thing to fay to
you: With what Colour could you juftify what
you did, to carry the King’s Evidence to the Pri-
foners, 1f it were no more than that?

Reading. 1 havebut this to anfwer for that, I
did not know it was a Crime.

Mr. Fuft, Wild, There is no mean Capacity,
but what knows that is a Crime,

Reading. 1 did look upon it as a Crime if I
had not done it, and Confcicutia errans ligat 5 it
was a Point of Conicience to meto do it, I did
think it a Duty I owed to God, to prevent
Perjury 5 and a Duty 1 owed to my Country, to
prevent 1nnocent Blood.

L. C. ¥. Will you impeach the Juftice of the
Kirgdom in that manner ? You are a Man of
the Law, don’t you know, that no Man ought
to be of Council fora Prifoner in Felony or Trea-
fon, till they are affigned? and for you to carry
the King’s Evidence to the Prifoner, as you your
felf contefs, how can youexcufe it ? and here are
Witnefles that heard you contraét with him to
leflen his Ifvidence, and cuz bono? Was not this
out of Kavour to the Lords in the Tower, to get
them off? Now you by muliplymng your Dif-
courfe, inflead of vindicating your felf, have

{poiled
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fpoiled the nfatter, and confefled that which a-

mounts to the whole Charge.

M. Tufs. Atkins, And you confels you were
tq have (WO iqandred Pounds frm_n my Lord
Stafferd, which you were T diftribute as you
choughe tit. i

Xir. Fuflf. Fones. B nd you have conteffed, Mr.
Reading, that not only you bave endeavoured to
ke ol Mr. Bedlow, but Mr. Dugdale too 5 for
it was voul Greft farted that point. |

Reading. My Lord, U have no more. I did
cever delive him to fpeak one Word lefs than the
Truth, and the whole Trllth , but I did my In-
deavour to prevent Perjury, and the fhedding of
‘anacent Blood 5 and this | did as a good Chri-
gian. My Lord, I did defire alfo to fhew ¥ou
this Paper, but you were pleafed to over-rule it
that it fhould not be read. *

1. C. ¥. We thiuk it not material 5 we over-
rule it not, but by way of Admittance that you fay
true. * _

Reading. Pray, will you fes, 1s there any Va-
rance between the two Papers?

L. C. ¥ There is only the Addition of the
Words concerning my Lord Bellafis, and that was
to {trike Terror in him, to make him come into
the Bargain too.

Rmd?yg. I defire Mr. Bedlow would look up-
on this Paper alfo: Is this your Writing, Sir ¢

Bedlows. Ycs, 1615, | ‘

Readin. Since your giving me this Paper in
your Chamber, have you ever feen It il to-
day ¢

Bedloew. No, 1 have not. ‘

Reading. Then, my Lord, I pray this there
is one Prickman a Merchant in Town, that 18
broke, he wrote to me for a Protection, and I
defived Mr. Bedlow that he would help him to
« Prateéiion ; he faid he would, and fpoke to
he Prince, and others of the Lprds, but coul:;i
not get ane, for I called upon him to know his
Anfwer; but withal, told me, he had a better
Contrivance than any Proteftion could be given
him from a fingle Lord, and thac is this, That
he would fay, he was one of his Witnelles, and
that upon that Account he would get him a Pro-
rection {rom the Committee of Secrecy, and they
would ULelieve whatever he faid to them. I
told him I did not know of what Signification
that might be to my Friend 5 he told me, Yes,
for he had given it to feveral already. 1 ask’d
him, how he could juftify it if it were queftion-
c.? Oh, {ud he, let him fay any thing, That
he hath heard fome bedy or other, in a Coliee-
houfe, call me Rogue. My Lord, [ never {aw
Nr. Prictman fince ; bur faich, Here, Pl gtve
you this Bufinels for the protecting of him; and
he undet-writ this, as from Mr. Zieby: Pray, do
s6t (il to comz 1o me every Houis 1o recerve what
Orders the Committee fball foud 1o you by me, that
we may aot nzgle@ bis Majally's [pecal Bufinefs s
and if yoir do receive any Let or Hindraice, by any
Perfon whafocer, fend to me, and 1 will caufe
ihofe People 10 be [o feveiely puiifhed, as fo greal @
Contempt does merit.  This was, my Lord, before
my Treating with the Lords, 1n '_I'Ime, the 25th
of March. ¥y Lord, when Idid find he had
oot fuch Tricks and Ways, 1 did appreliend and
refolve (pray give me your Favour in the Expref=
fion) not to do any prejudice to the King's lovi-

ence » for, my Lord, I do think he 1s not an
Evidence for the King, that doss go about, by

You. 1L
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any indire® means, to commit 2 Crime.  But,
my Lord, I think he is a Servant to the Naii-
on, and does a very good piece of fervice to the
King, that goes abour the taking away the Guiie
of 1nnocent Bioed,

L. C. 7. Indeed, Mr. Reading, we muft not
fuffer this: 1 told you before, thar by fuch Dif-
courfe you impeached the Juftice of the King-
dom. If you had fufpeQed Mr. Pedloeo's Ho-
nefty or Truth, you fhould have gone ro the
King or Councily or the Secrer Commistee (they
are Men of Honour, and would have been as
render of Mens Lives, as you or any other
Man)} but for you to do it of yourfclf, in this
Way, fhews 1t is but for a plaufible Excule to
colour your corrupt Dealing.

Bedlsw. This Protection was given us by the
Secret Committee, for Mr. Prickman,

L. C. 7. 1t does not appear but that Prickman
might be a Witnefs.

Reading. My Lord, T have but this, and [
bave done. At the time when 1 was taken, I
have {everal Winefles to proveit, that 1 was re-
folved to give his Maelty, or the Sceretaries, an
Account of 1t; and 1 did ask Mr. Bedlsw for an
Account he had given agunft the Queen; and §
had the Paper by me, at the fame time when 1
was taken ¢ and 1 have feveral Witnefles by me,
to prove taat at that time-

L. C. F. Mr. Reading, this 1s nothing to the
purpofe : Will you have done? unlefs you can
ipeak to the Fadt you are charged with, 'The
Court hath had a great Geal of Paiience with you
already.

Readiizz, 1 have done, my Lord, .

L. C. 7. Gentlemenof the Jury, Your Paii-
ence bath bren very much exercifed alrexdy, by
the long Difcourfes Mr, Readizg hath made 3 1
thall therefore be fhort in my DireGions.  He
ftands indiéed for fuborning Mr, Bedloww, in the
Evidence that he was to give, concerning the
Lords in the Zower, that were impeached of Trea-
fon by the Houle of Commons and Sir Heury
Tichbara,  This 15 the Subftance of the Indifi-
ment. There 1s an Inducement 1n 1t concerntng
this liorrid Conlpiracy, and the Perfons that have
heen exccuted for i, Celeanan, Grove, and Ire-
land 3 but as to that, it is admitted by Vir. Read-
ing, and it lies fo much in every one’s Know-
ledge, that jt thould hardly need to bz proved.
So then the Queftion remzins only a Queltion of
Fad&, concerning Subornation of Perjury 5 which
hath been fully proved to you, not only by Mr.
Bedlozo, who hath related the whole Tranfaéhion,
but alfo by Mr. Spede, who tells you that Mr.
Bedlswe did inform him how it went on from
Time to Time: And thereupon, to make the
Matter plain, and to fupprefs fo abominable a
practice, it was thought cherc was no betier way
ro difcover this Deed of Darknels, and to catch
a Knave, but to bring him into a Secret Plice,
where he might fpeak freely, thmking there
were no Witnelles to teftify againit him ;5 which
was intended to have bren done the Evening of
the 25th of AMareh, which was Friday : Dut
Mr. Reading and Mr. Bedlow not then miccting,
the next Morning at Seven o’Clock was appoint-
ed, when Mr. Readiny did come, and asked i
no body were there; of which being aflured,
he thought himfelf fecure and fecrer.  Then
Mr., Bedlsww asked him, YWhat fay the Lords in
the Traoer ¢ What fays my Lord Stafferd ?

5 N 2 Mr. Reading
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Mr. Reading told him, That asto myLord Stafford,
he fhould be fure of the Eftate inGloucefter fhire, for
my Lord Sfafford had ordered him to prepare a
Blank Detd, which, within ten Days after his
Difcharge, fhould be perfeGed.  And the reft of
the Lords did affure him, That after they were
acquitted in proportion to the Service he did
them, in leflening of his Evidence, he fhould
have a very plentiful Reward, “Thereupon, there
arofe farther Difcourfe. Saith Mr, Bedlow, 1
won’t rely upon their Promife, I will have fome-
thing under their Hands.  No, faith Mr. Read-
ing, that they think not convenicnt.  Saith Mr.
Bediszs, 1 muft go and deliver in my Teftimony
to the Secret Committee immediately, and there-
fore, Mr. Reading, the Writing muft be made
prefently, or nothing can be cone. Why, faith
Mr. Reading, can’t you put it off till /eduef-
day? No, I cannot, fays he.  Well then, faith
Mr. Reading, 1 will go fp=ak with the Lords 1n
the Zower, and I’ll bring you their Anfwer, and
be with you on Mouday Morning, Alterwards
when they went out of the Houfe, Mr. Speke,
and the other Witnefs, came from the Places
where they were privately pue, and they faw Mr.,
Reading going our, Mr. Reading and Mr. Bed-
lszo, within half an Hour came back again to
the Houfe, and were private together, Upon
Moiiday Morning, Mr. Speke was to watch, and
ze the Delivery of this Paper, and he gives you
a very rational and diftin¢t Account, (and he is
not a Man that the Prifoner can any way im-
peach in his Credit) he tells you, He faw him
deliver the Paper out of his Hand to Mr, Bed-
lowo, and Mr, Bedlesw put it towards his Pocket,
but afterwards put it behind him, and he followed
him, and took it out of his Hand, And this
Paper is here, which contains the Purport of the
Evidence to be given againft the Lords in the
Towwer s but {o minced, that ic 1s all but Hear-
fay, and nothing will touch them, as to the
Matters for which they are charged : Here you
have the Pap-r under his own Hand.

Now he comies to make his Defence; and
what hath he done? He hath made a very long
Difcourfe, but no Defence at all to the Martter
of the Indi¢tment, He fays nothing againtt the
Credit of the Witnefles, but hath confeffed, in
effect, the whole Matter that he was charged
with ; for what hath he to do, to carry the Evi-
dence to the Lords in the Zower, and to go from
one to another, to tell them thus and thus, and
to receive Promifes from them of Rewards, either
in general or particular ¢ He hath made Confef-
fion of the whole of his Charge in the Indi&t-
ment ; and without it, there is fuck undoubred
Teltimony, nothing impeaching the Witnefles,
that 1 fhall need to trouble you no further,
Do you go together, and confider of it, and we
will receive your Verdict,

L. C. Baron. Gentlemen of the Jury, Tt hath
been fo fully repeated by my Lord, that I fhall
not need to do any thing of that; but there is
one litle Piece of the Evidence, which 1 defire
you would take notice of :- Mr. Bedlow fays, the
Paper given him upon Aeuday, in the Painied
Chamber, which he carried behind him, and
Mr, S$peke took away, and which Mr., Reading
brought him from the Lords, did contain ten
times much milder Evidence than the Paper dic-
tated by him on the Saturday; and thar Paper
was forty times lefs than that which he had given
in to the Secret Comimitree.,

32. The Trial of Nathanael Reading,

31 Car. 11.

Mr. Fuff. Wild. [To Sir John Cutler,] Sir
Jobn, What Paper is that you have in your
Hand ¢

Sir Jobn Cutler, *Tis only the Names of the
Jury, my Lord.

L.C.¥. Youdo well totake the Names of
the Jury with you, if you withdraw, that you
may know one another : ButI fuppofe youwon't
be long out,

Mr. Juft. Whld, 1 {poke it, becaufe you are to
have no Papers with you, but what are under

Seal,

Then the Tury withdrew, and after a fhort Re-
cefs, return agatn to the Barsy and being
called by their Names, feverally anfwered,

s Clof the Cr. Gentlemen, Are you all agreed
of your Verdi&t ?

Omires, Yes.

Cl. of the Cr. Who fhall fay for you ?

Omaes. Our Foreman, -

Cl. of the Cr. How fay you, Is Nathanael Read-
iz Guilty of the Offence whereof he ftands In-
dicted, or Not Guilty ?

Foreman, Guilty,

CL. of be Cr. This is your Verdi&; you fay,
that Natbanael Reading is Guilty of the Offence
whereof he {tands indicted, and o you fay all.,

Mr. Fuft. Fild. *Yis a very good Verdi&.

L. C. 7. Itisavery good Verdi&t, the Matter
lay in a fmall Room, and I wonder how Mr.
Reading could make it {o long,

My, Fufi. Aikins, He was the greateft Witnefs
againf{t himfelf.

L. C. 7. You of the Jurymay take your Eafe,

Then the Court adjonrned till Tewo of the Clock,
being then half an Hour paft One.

About balf an Hour afier, the Conrt veturied g
gain 5 aud Proclamation being made for Atren-
dance, the Lord Chicf Juflice fpoke to the Prifo-

ner Convicted, then flanding at the Bar, thus:

L.C.}. Mr. Reading, You have been here
upon your T'rial to-day, and you are convited
of a very great and heinous Crime; there re-
mains nothing now, but to receive the Judgment
of the Law: And the Rule of Law is, That in
all Cafes the Court fhould confider guantitatem de-
l1iity, (5 qualitatem perfone, and accordingly pro-
nounce therr Judgment.

As to the Quantity of the Offence, you your
felf did admit in the Beginning of your Defence,
that it was not capable of Aggravation, but looks
rather like Treafon than a Mi{demeanour ; and fo
I fhall not {peak to that, for any Flourifhes would
but found in Diminution of it.

Then we have nothing to confider, but the
Quality of the Perfon; and of that there might
be a great deal faid, if we confider your Perfon
as a Lawyer, one that thould be a Man of Know-
ledge, to be able toadvife, a Minifter of Juftice,
to affift the Court whercin he pleads; and oughe
to be a Perlon of untainted Fidelity, that he may
keep his Client’s Secrets 3 and for a Lawyer to be
convicted for fuch an Offence, is that which ag-
gravates 1t beyond all Expreffion 5 and I think
we can do no lefs to evidence the Care we have
of the King’s People, than to thew that there
thall be greater Severity ufed againft fuch per-
fons offending ; and 'tis a great Credit and Be-

nefit
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qefit to the Profeffion, that the Members of it for
 fuch Offences fhall be dealt with more fevercly,
than we fhould deal in any other Cafe: So far
will we be from leflening it in this Refpedt. For
1 would have no Man of the Profeflion of the
I.aw, chat fhould do thus, be able afterwards to
draw People to him to truft him with their Bufi-
nefs 3 but his Offence fhould be publickly known
to all the World, that Men might know him,
and not employ him. In one Senfe, ’tis true, he
may be trufted with a Secret, by the fame Rea-
fon that a known Lyar may be, becaufe his Word
is never to be believed.

There is another Thing that we regard in your
Perfon too; if you were a Man of a great Fo-
tune, o a large Eftace, I do not fee but we
fhould fer that, which might be called 2 Ran-
fom, rather than 2 Fine, in this Cafe; but it not
being fo, we have taken it 1ato our Confideration
to do it with Meafure; but we will fupply that
Dzfe&, by a Punifhment of another Nature, ac-
cording to the Old Saying, Qui son habet ir cru-
mena lual 1 corpore.

Therefore the Judgment of the Court is this ;
That you be Fined 10000, That you be Imprifoned
for the Space of one Xear 5 And that upon Monday
iext, between the Hours of LEleven and Twelve,
you be fet in the Pillory, for the Space of one Hour,
in Palace-Yard iz Weltminfter,
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And I will tell you, Your Offence is fo great,
and hath fuch a Relation to thar which the whol
Natton 15 concerned in, becaufe it was an Attempt
to baffle the Evidence of that Confpiracy, which
if it had not been, by the Mercy of God, dete@=
ed, God knows what might have befallen s all
by this Time; and fill the Parliament have it -
under their Confideration, how to prevent any
further Milchief by ity and for you, in fuch a
Way as this, to do what you can to fupprefs the
Evidence, is fuch a Crime, that we have Reafon
to {ufpect, that the Rage of the People will be
fo great againft you, that it might endanger your
Life. Therefore we have taken care to give a
Charge to the Sheriff, and the Juftices, that the
Peace might be kept, and that no ill Confequen-
ces may happen to you, but only the Shame and
Infamy, to which you are condemned ; and which

you do deferve as well as any Man, that ever was
Convicted.

Zhen the Court adjourned to Hicks’s-Hall, #pos

Wednelday, the 3oth of April: Aud the
Kesper went away with bis Prifoner.

On the Monday following, the Prifoner was fut

in the Pillory, according to the Judgment
of the Court,

B EIANES)
e dores

LXXXIIL 7he Trial of THOMAS WHITE, alias WHITE-
BREAD, Provincial of the Jefuits in England, WiL-
LiaM HArcourT, pretended Rector of London,
Joun Fenwick, Procurator for the Jeluits in Eng-
land, Jou~n GaAvaN, aliss GAWEN, and AN-
THONY TURNER *, 4/l Jeluits and Priefts, at
the Old-Baily, for High-Trealon, June 13, 1679.
31 Car. 1I.

. vanaing N Friday the 13th of Fune, 1679, at

r

Fames Corker,

sty
-~

thony Turner, hold up thy Hand 3

) ‘e:,ﬂ i3 the Seflons-Houfe in the Old- Baily, hold up thy Hand. Which they all feverally
:’E%‘; ?5 the Court being met, at which all did.

%5 the Judges of Eugland were prefent;
# Proclamation was made of Silence
and Attention, whilft the King’s Commiffion of
Oyer and Terminer, and of Goal-Delivery were
openly read ;5 and after the ufual Proclamation of
Attendance upon the Seflions, the Coutt pro-
ceeded to call the Juries impanelled, and to the
Trials of the Prifoners, thus:

Clerk of the Crown. Szt Thomas Whitebread,
Jobnn Fenwick, William Harconrty, Fobn Gavan,
Anthony Turner, and Fames Corker, to the Bar,

Capt. Richardfon. They are all on,

Cl. of the Gr. Thomas White, alas Whitebread,
hold up thy Hand ; Fobun Fenwick, hold up thy
Hand 5 /Villiam Haicourt, alias Harrifon, hold up
thy Hand 5 Fobiz Gavan, hold up thy Hand ; 4-

And James Corker prefented a Petition io
the Court, to this Effec,

¢ That about Eight Months fince, the Peti-
¢ tioner was Committed for refufing to take the
¢ Qaths of Allegiance and Supremacy, that he had
¢ lately received Notice to prepare himlelf for
¢ his Trial, againft this prefenc Day, but that the
¢ fame was atterwards contradited ; and that Ye-
¢ fterday 2 Gentleman informed him from the
¢ Attorney-General, that a Bill was found againit
¢ him of High-Treafon, and that he was to prc-
¢ pare himfelt for his Trial thereupon according-
¢ 1y 3 and forafmuch as the Petitioner is altoge-
¢ ther ignrorant of the Matters charged upon him
¢ in the fame, and by reafon thercof is abfolutely
¢ fur-

® Durnet’s Hifl.-own Times, Yol. . p. 404
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¢ furprized, and uaprepared for his Defence, and
¢ divers Goal-Deliverics having been held fince
¢ his firft Commitment, and he never called to his
¢ Trial s he doth humbly befeech their Honours,
* that he may not be Tried till the next Seflions,
¢ and that in the mean time he may have Co-
pies of fuch Informations as are given in againft
him.’

Lord Chief Fuflice *, Mr, Corker, have you re-
ally any Witnetles, without whom you cannot make
your Defence?

Corker. ™o, my Lord, I have none.

L. C.¥. You do not underftand my Queftion ?
Do you want any Witnefles now, that you may
have another Time?

Corker. I am a Stranger to the Things charged
upon me. ,

L.C. F. Can you not tell, whether you have
any Winefles or no? The Matter 1s this, both
for you and all the reft of you, that there may
be no Exception; you are upon the Trial of your
Lives, and we upon our Qaths, and therefore I
{fpeak it, 1if fo be you have any Wimefls, be-
caufe you pretend you are {urprized, if you have
really any, whereby you can make a better De-
fence for yourfelves, than now, the Court will
incline to your Requelt; but if you have not,
then ’tis in vain to tarry.

Corker. My Lord, 1 verily believe T fhall have
W itne(fes,

L.C. 7. As for the Copy of the Inditment
it 1s never granted to any Perfons, and therefore
muft not be to you.

L.C.%. Nevth, You muft give us clear Satis-
faction, that you are real in your Pretences s and
muft give us the Names of yourW itnefles, where
they live, and let us know what they can fay for
you, that we may be fatisfied, for fuch a gencral
Allegation as this, any Man living may make.

Mz, Recorder. He was one of the Ten thar was
appointed by the Council to be tried.

L. C. ¥. Why, you had Notice 2 Week a-

g0

™

Corker. But it was contradicted the next Dav.
Capt. Richardfon. I heard Mr. Clare fay that
he fhould be tried then.

M. Antoriey General . He had Notice toge-
ther with the reft, but he was not in the firl
Order of Counctl for the Trial of thefe Perfons;
he fent to the Clerk to know who were to be
Tried, and his Name was left out; and fo unde;-

ftood he was not to be Tried. On Tuefday laft |
moved that he might be put into the Order, and

fo he was, and now there is an Order of Council
for it3 but he had Notice a Week ago, as well
as the reft.

Capt. Richardfon. 1 gave them Notice that all
were to prepare for therr Trial as this Day, and
i order to that, I went to the Council, o {ee
what Order was taken about it, and the Clerk
thewed me their Names, amongft which Corker
was left out; and 1 told him Corker had Notice
of Tral, and therefore I defired I might have an
Order for him too; they told me, that there was
no QOrder taken about him.

Mr. Adit. Gen. My Lord, I would have all the
Gentlemen bave all the fair Play in the World,
therefore if he can fatisfy your Lordfhip, that
he can have any Wimefles that he hath not row,
I am content the Trial fhould ftay to another
Time,

® Sir Willlam Scroggs.

+ Sir William jones.

L. C, ¥. You thall hear the IndiCtment read,
and there you wiil know what fort of Treafon
it 1s you are charged with, and atter that you wij]
make your Anfwer, whether you have any Wi
nelies,

Adr. Recerder . My Lord, 1t will be necefliry
that I give your Lordfhip an Account of one
thing. On Saturday Night there came a Gen-
tlewoman to me, on the Behalf of all the Prifon-
ers, and faid there were fome Witnefles that fhe
was under Apprehenfion would not appear for the
Priforers, unlefs they had {fome Order ; her Name,
fhe told me, was Jreicud, and the came in the
Name of all the Prifoners, fhe fiid. [ told her,
if the would bring me a Note of the Witnefles
Names they did defire, taey fhould have all the
Afliftance the Ceurt could give them {or the aer-
ting of their Wimncfics this Day s but {ince thag
Time | never heard of the Gentleweman, or from
the Prifoners,

L. C. . Mr. Corker, you will do well to take
notice what you are charged withal, and after-
wards tell us, tf chere are any Witnefles that can
fay any thing for your Debence, at your Trial for
thofe Matwrs,

Clof Cr. ¥en fland ludidlcd by 1e Names of
Thomas White in the Parifb of St. Giles in the
Ficlds i the Conity of Midddelex, Cierk, etherwife
cafled 'Vhomas W hitebread, of the fame Par:fh ond
Ceunty, Clerky John Fenwick of the fame Parifp
aid County, Clerk 3 Wilham Harcourt of the fame
Parifh and County, Clerk, otbeiwife called William
Harrifon of the fame Parifh and County, Cierk
John Gavan of tbe fame Parifl and Cepily, Clesk,
Anthony Turner of tue feue Paiijy aind County,
Cic.key and James Corker of the fame Parih and
Ceunty, Clerk @ For that yeu, as falfe Traitors a-
catift the moft dluflitins, mefi Severe, and moft Ex-
cclicint Prisice, Chatles ie Second, by the Grace of
Ged, of England, Scotland, France, and lreland,
King, Defender of the Faith, &, your Supreme and
Nattral Lordy wot baving the Fear of God in your
Flearts, wor wweizhing the Duly of your dlleeiaice,
but being moved cnd feduced by the Infiigation of the
Dezil, the cordial Leve, truey duey aird natural Q-
bedience, which true and faithfel Subjelis cf cur faid
Severcign Lord the King, tewards bim fbould, and
of right eught to beary whelly <ithdraswing  and
devifing, awd with all your Streugth, iuteiding the
Peace and consinoi Trawquillity of this Realm to dif-
tinhy and the trie Woifinp of God within this Kiig-
dom of Yngland wfed, awad by the Law Efablifhed,
to overtbrows, ana the Goverimert of ihis Realm
to [ulvert, aid Sedition and Rebellion <within this
Kingdem of England to meve, flir up and procure s
aid the cordial Love, azd true and due Obedience,
which true and fait!fl Suljeds of car faid Sove-
rveign Lord the Kiug, tewards bim foculd, and of
right orplht io beary wtrly to withdraze, put out,
and extizguifb, and our faid Svvercign Lord the King
to Death aiid final Deffri:ilics to bitig, and put, on
the Fear and Tewenticth Day of Avprily in the Thir-
licth Jear of the Reigan of cor faid Sovercign Lovd
Aixg Charles the Seccid, at ihe Perifh of St. Giles
in the Fields, iz the Conity of Middiefex afere-
Jaidy  2en the faid Thomas White otherwife
VWhitcbread, John Fenwici, Willam Harcourt
etheruite Harnfon, John Gavan, Anthony Tur-
ner, ard James Coricer, wwith diveife other falfe
Traiters, Suopedls of wur juid Severeign Lord the
K,

i &ir Georee Jefiories,
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King, to the Jurors unknowon, falfly, fubtilly, ad-
vifedly, malicionfly, and traileroufly, did purpofe,
compals, 11aglity and titend Sedition and Rebellion
coithin this Kingdom of England to move, flir up,
and procure, and_a miferable Slaughter among the
Subies of our faid Swvereign Lord the King to pio-
e and canfe, and onr faid Sovereign Lord the
King, of bis Kingly State, Title, Power, and Go-
wernment of bis foid Kingdom of England, utierly to
deprive, depofe, caft dowwin and difinberit, and bim

ur faid Svvereigh Lord the King, to Death and
fual Deflruction to bring and put, and the Goveri-
meit of this Kingdom of England, aud the fiucere
Relizici of Gad <within the fame, rightly, aid by the
Locvs of the fame Eftablifbed; at your will and plea-
fure to change aind alter, and the State of 1his
cobde Kingdom of Y agland, thro’ all tts parts, well
infituzed and ordaiz. 3, wholly 1o fubvert and de-
firay, aid War, i i this Kingdom of England,
againft onr faid Severc.gs Lord the Kung, to levy
dnd 19 acesmplifh aud julfil your fatd moft wicked
Treafuiis ond Traiterous Imaginations and Purpofes,
You the faid ThomasWhite otherwife Whitcbread,
John Fenwick, William Harcoure otherwife Har-
rifon, John Gavan, Anthony Turner, and James
Corker, and other Falfe Traitors againft our faid So-
vereign Lord the King, to the Furors unknowi, the
feid four aid twoentieth Day of April,with Force and
Arms, &c. in the Parifb aforefaid, and Coniity a-
forefaid, falfly, malicionfly, [ubtilly, advifedly, de-
oiliihly, end traiteroufly, did alfemble, unite, and
gather yourfelves tozeter, aid thenr andthere, falfly,
malicioufly, (ubtilly, adwifedly, devilifbly, and trai-
teronfly, did confulty confent, and agree, our faid
Soverersis Lord the King, to Death and fiual De-
frucicis ta bring and puty aid the Religion of this

Kingdom of Yngland, #ightly, and by the Laws of

the fame Efdablifbed, to the Superftition of 1he Ro-
mifh Church 7o chanse and alter, and the Govera-
ment of this Kingdom of England, to Subverts and
that oire Thomas Pickering, aid oize John Grove,
Mould kill and murder our faid Sovereign Lord the
King 5 and that you the faid Thomas W hite other-
wife Whitcbread, John Fenwick, William Har-
court otherioife Harrifon, John Gavan, Anthony
Turner, James Corker, aud otser Falfe Traitors
agaiiift our [aid Svvereigin Loid the King, to the fu-
rois uitkiown, fhould therefore fay, celebraie, and
peiformy a certain uminber of Mafles, then and there
amonzft yourfelves agreed ony for the Soul of the
faid Thomas Pickering, and for that Canfe fbonld
pey io the faid John Grove a certain Sum of Mo-
acy, then and there amongft yourfelves agreed on s
avd that you the f(aid Thomas White otberiwife
Whitebread, John Fenwick, William Harcourt
otherwife Harrifon, Jobhn Gavan, Anthony Thur-
ner, and James Corker, and other Falfe Traitors
to the Fuiors unknowi, in further profecution of lhe
Treafous and Traiterons Confultations aind Agree-
ments aforefaid, afterwards the faid Four and twen-
tieth day of April, at the Parifh aforcfaid, in the
County aforefaid, falfly, fubtilly, advifedly, mali-
cioirfly, deviflifbly, and treitcionfly, did feverally
each to the other engage yourfolves, and upon the
Sacrament Traiteroufly froear and promife, to con-
ceal, and uot to dividge the faid moft wicked Trea-
fons, and iraiterous Compaffings, Confultatiens, and
Purpofes, aforefuid amons f£ yourfetves bady Traite-
roufly to kill and murder ovr fuid Sovereign Lord
the King, «ud to introdrce the Romifh Religion
swithin this Kirgdom of England, and the true Re-
formed Relizion within this Realm, rightly, and by

the Laws of the fame Effablifbed, to alter and
change : and that you the faid Thomas W hite other-
wife Whitebread, John Fenwick, William Hare
court alias Harrifon, John Gavan, AnthonyTur-
ner, and James Corker, and other Falfe Traitors
to the Jurors unkiown, it further profecution of your
Jaid Treafons and Traiterous Intentions and Azyee-
ments aforefaid, afterwards the faid Four and twen-
tieth day of April, at the Parifb aforefaid, in the
County aforefaid, falfly, fubtilly, advifedly, malici-
oufly, devilifbly, and traiteroufly, did prepare, per-
Juadey excile, abet, comfort, and counfel, four o-
ter Perfons lo the Turors unknoton, Subjets of our
Jaid Severeign Lord the King, Traiteroufly our faid
Sovereign Lovd the King to kill and murder, againff
the Duty of your Allegiaice, againft the Peace of our
sovereign Lord the King, His Crown and Dignity,
and againft the form of the Stainte in that Cafe
made and provided.

How fay*lt thou Thomas White alias I/ bitebread,
art thou Guilty of this High-Treafon whereof
thou ftandeft indicted, or Not guilty ?

Wiitebread. My Lord, [ defire to fpeak one
word; I am advifed by Council, and I may, and
ought to reprefent it to this Court, for not only
my own Life, but the Lives of others of His Ma-
jefty’s Subjeéts are concerned in it, That upon
the 17th of December lalt I was Tried upon the
fame Indictment, the Jury was impannell’d and
called, I put myfelf into the hands of the Jury,
and the Evidence was brought in and examis'd,
particularly againft me, and was found infuffici-
ent, (o that the Jury was difmiffed without sny
Verdict *. I humbly fubmit myfelf to your Lord-
fhips and this noble Court, whether I may not
have Council in this point of Law, to advife me,
whether I may and ought to plead again the fe-
cond time; for according to Law, I am inform-
ed no Man can be put in jeopardy of his Life the
{econd time, for the fame Caule,

L. C. 7. You fay well, Mr. Whitebread,

Whitchread, 1 fpeak it not for my fake only,
but the fake of the whole Nation, no Man
fhould be tried twice for the fame Caufe; by the
fame Reafon, a2 Man may be tried 20 or 100
times.

L. C. #. You fay well, it is obferved, Mr.
WWhitebread s but you muft know, that you were
not put in jeopardy of your Life for the fame
thing, for firft the Jury were difcharged of you
it is true, it was fuppofed when you were ln-
dited, that there would be two Witnefles a-
cainft you, but that fcll out otherwife, and the
faw of the Land requiring two Witnefles to
prove you guilty of Treafon, it was thought rea-
fonable, that you fhould not be put upon the Jury
at all, but you were difcharged, and then you
were in no jeopardy of yoeur Life, .

IWhitebread, Under favour, my Lord, T was in
Jeopardy ; for I was given in charge to the Jury;
and ’tis the Cafe of Seyerr, In g1 Lhiz. hie was ln-
dicted for a Burglary committed the firlt of Au-
gufty and pleaded to it ; and afterwards another
Indi@tment was preferd, and all the Judges did
declare, that he could not be Indited a fecond
time for the fame Fact, becaufe he was in Jeo-
pardy of his Life again,

L. C. 7. Surely, you were not in Jeopardy,
and P’ll thew you how you were not; fuppole
you had pleaded, and the Jury were fworn.

J bitebread, They were fo 1n my Cale,

LC. 5.

* See Trial, 73, of Ireland, &c
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L. C. ¥ *Tis true they were; but fuppofling
that prefently upon that fome Accident falls out,
a Witnefs is taken fick, and be feign’d to be car-
ried away 5 or for any reafonable Caufe, it fhould
be thought fit by the Court to difcharge the Jury
of it, that they fhould not pafs upon your Life,
are you in Jeopardy then?

L. C.F. Nerth. 1 would have you be fatishied
with Reafon, and the courfe of Law, that other
Mens Lives are under, as well as yours. The
Qath the Jury take, is that they fhall well and
truly try, and true deliverance make, of fuch F'ri-
foners as they fhall have in Charge; the Charge
of the Jury is not full, *till the Court give them
a Charge at the laft, after Evidence had ; and be-
caufe there was a Miftake in your Cafe, that the
Evidence was not {o full as might be, the Jury,
before ever they confidered concerning you at all,
they were difcharged, and {o you were not In
Jeopardy ; and 1 in my experience know it to
be often done, and ’tis the courfe of Law, the
Clerks will tell you ’tis frequently done here and
at other places; and this is not the fame Indict-
ment, and it contains further matter, than that
you pleaded to before,  And then if you will

make this Plea good that you go upon, you muft
alledge a Record, and fhew fome Record to

make it good, and that cannot be, becaufe there
is none, and foit will fignify nothing to you, as
you have pleaded it.

Whitebread. | defire the Record may be view-
ed, it remains with you. I do only prefent this
to your Lordfhip and the Court, and defire I

may have Couucll. _
L. C. 7. No, not at all, there 15 no Entry

made of 1L

Whitebread, 1 defire that Council may advife
me; for I am advifed, that according to the Law
of the Land, I ought not to plead again, and I
hope your Lordfhips will be of Council for me,

L. C. ¥. Look you, Mr. Whitebread, there is
no Entry made upon its and the reafon 15, becaufe
there was no 1rial 3 and there was no Tral, be-
caufe there was no Condemnation or Acquirtal :
if there had been, then you had {aid {fomething,

Whitehread, That which I ask 1s, whether I
ought not to be condemned or acquitted.

L.C. ¥. No, it is only in the difcretion of the
Court. For if a Man be Indiéted for Murder,
and fome accident thould happen, (when theWit-
nefs come to prove it) that he fhould be taken
ill, and fo be carried away, fhould the Murderer
efcape?

Whitebread. That is not my Cafe; you may do
as you pleale,

L.C. ¥. Buot we fhew, that it is in the dif-
cretion of the Court to difcharge the Jury upon
fuch Accidents, and then the Party is not in Jeo-
pardy.

Whitebread. 1 have only pray’d your Lord-
fhip’s Difcretion in this.

L. C.¥. You ought to plead, and muft plead.

L. C. }. North. 1 fuppofe if any of my Bre-
thren are of another Opinion, than what we have
exprefled, they would fay fo,

Court., We areall of your Opinion.

L. C.F. All the Judges of England are of the
fame Opinion.

Mr. Record. 'Tis the conftant Praltice,

L. C. ¥.’Tis frequent in all Places, it 15 no
new thing.

Whitebread, My Lord, T am fatisfied.

Cl. of Cr. Thomas White alias Whitebread, arg
thou Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof thou
ftandeft Indi¢ted, or Not guilty ?

I biteoread. Not guilty.

Cl. of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ?

Whitebread. By God and my Country.

Cl. of Cr. God fend thee a good deliverance,
Jobn Fenwick, art thou Guilty of the fame High.
Treafon, or Not guilty ?

Fenwick, Not guilty.

Cl. of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ?

Fenwick. By God and my Country,

Cl. of Cr. God fend thee a good deliverance.

Fenwick. 1 was tried before with Mr. Zhite-
bread, our Cafe is the fame; the only reafon why
(I prefume) we were not proceeded againft, was,
becaufe the fecond Witnels declared he had no-
thing to fay againft us, that was Mr, Bedlow, who
faid, as to Mr, #hitebread and Mr, Fentwick, I
have nothing to fay againft them ; if he had given
the fame Evidence againft us, as he had done a-
gainit the reft, we had been condemned, and had
fuffered, and {o I fuppofe we ought to have been
difcharged.

L.C. ¥. No, it was not reafonable you fhould
be difcharged ; 1t remains in the difcretion of the
Court, not to let a Man, that 1s accufed of 2
great and capital Crime efcape, if there be one
Witne(s that {wears exprefly 1 do you think it
reafonable fuch a Man fhould go {cotfree, the'
there wanted two that the Law requires 7 You
were not in danger, your Lives were not in Jeo-
pardy.

Fenwick, My Lord, we were in the fame Dan-
ger with thofe Three that {uffered.

L.C. 7. No, we never let the Jury go toge-
ther to confider whether you were Guilty, or
Not guilty, we did prevent your making your
Defence, becaufe we thought jt not a fufficient
Charge.

Cl. of Cr. 2tlliam Harcourt alias Harrifon, how
fay’(t thou, art thou guiley of the High -Treafon
whereof thou ftandeft Indi¢ted, or Not guiley ?

Harcourt, Not guilty.

Cl. of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be Tried ¢

Harcourt., By God and my Country.

Cl. of Cr. God fend thee a good deliverance.
How fay’lt thou fohn Gavan alias Gawen, ar
thou (guilty of the fame High-Treafon, or Not
autlty .

Gavan, Not guilty.

ClL of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be Tried

Gavan. By God and my Country.

CL of Cr. God {end thee 2 good deliverance,
How fay’lt thou Anthony Turner, art thou Guilty
of the fame High-Treafon, or Not guilty ?

Turner. Not guilty.

Cl. of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be Tried ?

Trrauer. By God and my Country.

Cl. of Cr. God fend thee a good deliverance.

L. G . Mr. Cerlery you have heard the Ine
diCtment read, and what it confifts of, a Traite-
rous Endeavour to fubvert the Government, to
murder the King, to change the Proteftant Re-
ligion wnto Popery; if you have any Witneffes
that can be ferviceable to you, as to thefe mat-
ters, name who they are, and where they live;
if you cannot, you had as good take your Trial
now, as at another time.

Corker. 1 not only have no Witnefles ready,
but there are fubftantial Circumftances, which

peradventure may arife, which may induce your
Lord-
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Lordfhip to believe me innocent, and therefore I

hlv beg, 1 may ftay fome {h?rt time to
?gs}ulg’ Wiﬁl thole that are better skil¥’d in the

chan [ am. .
La_g. C. ?. W hat do YOH mean to have Council

ioned you ¢
aﬂ]&‘jar!:er).’ My Friends, my Lord.

L.C. . Every Man knows his own Cafe beft,
you have been bred a Scholar, and fo you can-
not be fo ignorant as other Men are: you can tell
whether you have any Witnefles that you think
are marerial for your Defence,

Corker. That Day of the 24th of AZpril, {poken
of in the Indi¢tment, I truly and really believe |
was not in Town that Day ; but I cannot pofi-
tively prove it, becaufe I heard not of it before.

L.C. . Is there any body that can teftify
where you were that Day? Can you name any
one ?

Corber. Yes, 1 believe I can name one, and
that is one Alice Gaton, that 1s now thirty Miles
out of Town at Teubridge, who can prove where

I did go about that time, _
L. C. % Tl tell you what, if my Brothers

will, this Woman you fuppofe can fay foniething
for you, we will refpite your Trial for to-day,
" fend fomebody for her, and we will Try you to-
morrow,

L. C. 7. North. Or any other Witnefles; for
as to this 24th Day of April 1t 13 lknown to all the
World to have been the Day: of the Confult, But
becaufe you pretend a Surprife, 1 mut tell you,
that Mr. Attorney fent you notice with the reft;
but becaufe you might be led into another Opint-
on, that the Council did not order it, you havethe
Favour to be put off till to-morrow : Get your
Witnefles ready if you can. _

L. C.F. If you have any other Witnefics, or
defire any Order for their appearance, let usknow
it.

Corker. T defire 1 may have liberty to have
my Trial put off till Aoiday.

L. C.¥. North. No, it cannot be. Muoiday 18
the Effoign Day, and the Commiffion will be
O,

L. C. %. Call the Jury.

Gl of Gr. Thomas White alias Whitebread, hold
up thy Hand, (and fo as to the reft.) You the
Prifoners at the Bar, thofe Men that you fhall
hear called and perfonally appear, are to pafs be-
tween our Sovereign Lord the King and you,
upon Trial of your feveral Lives and Deaths 5 if
therefore you or any of you will challenge them,
or any of them, your Time is to {peak unto them
as they come to the Book to be {worn, and before
they be fworn, Call Sir Philip Malthews.
 Whitehread. We challenge him, My Lord,
that there may not be any further Trouble, it 1s
our general Petition, that none of thofe that were
for any of the former Trials may be of this Ju-
ry, they having already pafled their Judgment
upon the Evidence they have heard.

L. C. . You may challenge them. And there.
fore (fpeaking to the Clerk of the Crown) don't
take any that were upon the lalt Jury for this
Caufe.

Gavan. Nor any of the former Juries; we do
this that we may avoid giving your Lordfhip any
further trouble, becaufe if we fhould ftay upon
Particulars we thould too much trouble the Court.

L. C. 7. North. Look you, I will tell you by

the way, you have theliberty to challenge perem-
Vo, I

ptorily fo many. All we can do, is to give di-
rection to the Clerk, if he do not purfue ir, wedo

not know them, we can’t tell, you muft look
after that.

Mr. Record. You have the Books, wherein
are Notes of all their Names, by you.

Then the Fury that were fworn weve thefe Twelve.

Thomas Harriott, | Ratnsford Wateshoufe.
William Gulfton, Matlbewr Bateman.

Allen Garraway. i Fobn Kaine.
Richard Cheyney. Richard White.

Fobn Raberts.

Richard Bull, and
Thomas Cafb,

Thomas Cox.,

ClL of Cr. Crier, count thefe: Thomas Harriot,

Crier. One, {9,

Cl. of Cr. Thomas Cox.

Crier, T'welve good Men and true, ftand to-
gether and hear your Evidence.

Toen the ufual Proclamation for Information was
made, and the Furymen of Middl {ex fum-
moned and nol forn, were difmiffed 1l next

Morning Eight of the Clock,

Cl. of Cr. Thomas White, alias [Vhitebread, hoid
up thy Hand 5 (and fo to thercft.) You Gentle-
men that are {worn, Jook upon the Prifoners, and
hearken to their Caufe; they ftand indicted
by the Names of Thomas White, &c, (put in the
Indifiment Mutatis Mutandis) and againft the Form
of the Statute in that Cafe made and provided.
Upon this Indiétment they have been Arraigned,
and thereunto have feverally pleaded Not Guilty,
and for their Trials have put themfelves upon God
and their Country, which Country youare, Your
Charge is to enquire, whether they or any of
them are Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof
they tand indifted, or Not Guilty. If youfind
them, or any of them, Guilty, you are to en-
quire what Goods or Chattels, Lands, or Tene-
ments they had at the time of the High-Treafon
committed, or at any time fince, If you find
them, or any of them, Not Guilty, you are to
enquire whether they fled for it 5 if you find that
they fled for it, you are to enquire of their Goods
and Chattels, as if you had found them Guilty :
if you find them Not Guilty, nor that they nor
any of them fled for it, fay fo and no more, and
hear your Evidence.

Then Mr.Belwood, of Council for the King in this
Caufe, opened the Indiciment this :

May it pleale your Lordfhip, and you Gentle-
men of the Jury ;

The Prifoners at the Bar, Thomas Waite alias
IVbitebread, Fobu Fenwick, William Harcourt alias
Harrifon, Fobn Gavan, and Anthony Turner, to-
oether with Fames Corker, ftand indifted of
High-Treafon ; ’tis charged in the Inditment,
That the 24th of April, in the Thirtieth Year of
the King that now is, thefe Perfons, with o-
ther Traitors unknown, did purpole and confpire
o ftir up Sedition and Rebellion 5 to caufe ami-
ferable Slaughter of the King’s Subjeéts; to de-
pofe the King of his Government, and bring him
t0 Death ; and to change the Government and
Religion by Laws eftabhihed, and to Levy War
againft the King, And ’cis further charged in
che Indiment, that purfuant to this Intention
of theirs, and the better to bring it to pals,
They did Aflemble, Confult, and Agree, firft, to

5 O bring
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bring his Majefty to death, to murder the King,
and thereupon to change the Religion eftablifhed
by Law, to the Superitition of the Romifb
Church, and to {ubvert the whole Government 3
and it was agreed, that Pickering and Grove
{hould murder the King ; and that therefore
W hitebread, and the reft of the Perfons indicted,
fhould fay a number of Maffes for the Soul of
Pickering : and Groze, for this Piece of Service,
was to have a Sum of Money. And the Indi&t-
ment fays further, That thefe Perfons did take

the Sacrament, to commit this Trealon with more

Secrecy ; and that they did hikewife prepare,
excite, aber, and counfel four other unknown
Perfons to kill the King at Windfor. All thefe
Faéts are faid to be done advifedly, malicioufly,
traiteronfly, and devilithly, and againt their Al-
legiance to the King. To this they have pleaded
Not Guilty; if the King’s Evidence prove i,
you are to find it fo.

And then Sir Crefwel Levinz, oneof the King’s
Learned Conrcil inthe Law, open’d the Charge
dhus :

May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and you Gen-

tlemen of the Jury ;

Thefe Prifoners at the Bar, are by Perfuafion
Papifts, by Order 2nd Degree they are all Priefts,
By the Law of the Land, wiz. by aStatute made
the 24th of Eliz. they areall Guilty of Treafon,
for being Priefls, and they might be tried as fuch,
and ought to die for it; but thatis not the Fact
they are charged with, nor will they have the Satis-
faCtion to fay that they f{uffer for their Religion :
No, they are charged with a Treafon of a black-
er and darker Nature, And though I muft tell
you, that it is now almoft an hundred Years ago
fince that Statute was made againft Priefts com-
ing into Euglaid, yet Examples have been very
rare, that any of this {ort of Men have died for
their Religion, within that Queen’s Time, or
any of her Succeffors; yet they have died upon
worfe Accounts, and upon fuch Accourts as they
are now brought to this Bar for. Such is the
Difference beiween their Religion and Ours,
they have been fuffered to live here under a
Law by which they ought to die. They Kkill
the Proteftants by Thoufands, without Law or
Juftice, witnefs their bloody Doings at Adirei-
dol, their Maflacre at Paris, their barbarous
Cruelty n Jreland, fince the Year 1640, and
thofe in Piedmont, fince 1650. But thefe are
not the Crimes they are charged with, they are
not accufed for their Religion, but for the black-
eft and darkeft Treafon that Men can be charged
with. They are charged with an Endeavour to
murder the King, under whofe Protection
they lived. This Murder of the King hath
been carried on in the Defign of 1t, with all
the Malice and Relolutton that can be, from
the firft Time that we can give you an Account
of it, which wasthe 24th of April, 1678, when
thefe Perfons, and feveral others, did firlk affem-
ble about other Matters of their own, and among
the reft to murder the King : There they came to
a Refolution that it fhould be done, and Perfons
were appointed to do it, thefe were Grove and
Pickering, who have been executed for it; they
were to kill the King in St. Fames’s Park, buc
it pleafed God, that the Flint of the Piftol fail-
ed, to which we are more beholden, than to
them, that he efcaped that time. They were

not {atisfied with that, but they fend down four
Butchers to murder him at A7u:dfer, who being
difappointed, they fent down others after that o
murder him at New-Aiarket 3 and when all thefe
falled, they had Recourfe to that Treacheroys
and Unmanly Way, of potfoning hun, and hired
one fo to do; and they did not only intend 1o
murder the King, but to make 1t good by Foree
when they had done.  ‘T'hey intended to raife 2y
Army; they bhad got Commuflions to fevera
Perfons in the Kingdom, to command thefe
Forces. They defign’d to raife 50000 Men, to
maintain the Injuftice, when they had dorne i,
And that was not all, they had "Recourfe to Fo-
reign Affiltance,and depended upon Foreign Suc-
cours, 1f they were not made good at home,
Gentlemen, they have been. difappointed in all
thefe things ; they had an Intention further (as
I ind 1t 1n my Bricf) to make a general Maf-
facreof all Proteftants here. A thing that they
have done, and we have heard of it abroad, but
Thanks be to God, we never knew it experimen-
tally at home. And [ hope God that hath pre-
ferved us hitherto, will preferve us ttill.

The Mercy thefe Men have met with, in b~
ing fuffered to live under the Danger of the Sra-
tute, by which tkey might have juftly died,
hath not prevailed upon or bettered them at all,
but been turned into monftrous Ingratitude, and
made them more defperate than other People
would have been. Gentlemen, when all this is
opened, I muft tell you, if thefe Perfons be
mnocent, God forbid they fhould fuffer, bur if
they be guilty, furely they are not fit to live a-
mong Men : And truly it they be guilty, they
do not only deferve to die, but to die a more cry-
¢l and miferable Death, than either the Mercy of
our Prince, or the Moderation of cur Laws hath
provided for fuch Ofienders, I fhall detain you
no longer, but wil call the Witnefles, and then
you fhall judge whether they be guilty or
not. And we begin wich Mr. Oates.  FVbo wwas

Sir Cr. Levinz. Pray whatcan you fay to thefe
Gentlemen? Begin with Mr. Whitebread firft ¢

L. C. 7. Mr. Oates, apply your Evidence as
diftinétly as you can to one Perfon at firft, unlefs

where the matter will take in all, or more than
one cf them.,

Oates, My Lord, 1 have Evidence I defire
may be called in, I fhall have occafion to ule
them,.

Gavan. It may be inconvenient, He may in-
ftruét his Witnefles.

L. C. 7. North. No, he fhall not, for we will
take care of that : But name your Witneffes.

Oates. There is Sir Richard Barker, Mr. Fal-
ter a Miniiter, Mrs Mayo, Philip Page, WM.
William Smith, and one Mr. Clay, Mr, Butlr,
Virs, Sarab lves.

Mr. Tuft, Atkins, Takea Note of their Names,
and lend for them,

L.C. F. Now, Mr. Oafes, 80 on with your
Evidence 5 and when there is Occafion to make
ufe of thefe Perfons they thall be called.

Oates, The Prifoner at the Bar, Mr. [7hile-
bread, was made and conftituted Provincial, fo as
it was publickly known to us, in the Month of
December laflt was Twelvemonth 3 and he did
order, by Virtue of his Authority, one Father
George Conyers to preach in the Sodality of the
Ligiifs Seminary, on the Holy-day which they

call
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call St Thomas of Canterbury, 1. e. Thomas of
Recker’s Day, in which there was Order given
that Mr. Conyers fhould preach and affert this
Doétrines That the Oaths of Allegiance and Su-
premacy Were Heretical, Antichriltian, and De-
vilith: Accordingly, this Order was Executed,
and the Sermon preached. Mr. Whitebread, 1n
the Month of Famuary, wrote Letters ( or, at leaft-
wife, in the beginning of Ff!)rzf;zf_y, I will not be
pofitive as te the Time, becaufe it does not occur
to my Memory,) to S¢. Omers, concerning the
Srate of Ireland, of which he had an Account
from Archbithop Zalbot, who wrote him Word,
that there were feveral Thoufands of Irifb that
were ready to Rife, when the Blow fhould be given
in England. _ _

L.C.¥. Was that in Whilebread’s _Letter? |

Ouates. Yes, my Lord, and Mr, Whitebread did
fay, He did hope it would not be long ere 1t
was given. Now, my Lord, by the Word Blow,
we did ufe to underftand, and had Inftrutions to
underfland the Death and Murder of the King;
and in the Month of Fanuary, 1 think 1t was,
that he fent over two Jefuits into Jreland, to {ee
how the State of Affairs ftood there: In the be-
ginning of April they return’d, of which we had
an Account from Mr, Fhitebread, by Letters,
wherein there was mention of a Confult to be
held in the Month of April, Old Stile, and May,
New Stile; and according to the Order there
given, there met at that Confult, the Prifoners
at the Bar, Whitehread, Fenwick, Harcourt, and
Turner, and if it pleafe your Lordfhip, all thefe
at that Confult did fign a Relolve, Mr. White-
bread at his Chamber, which was at 771/d- Houfe,
Mr. Fenwick at his Lodgings in Drury-Lane, and
Mr, Harcourt, who had fome at his Chamber in
Duke-Street, But, my Lord, I am to premife
this, before 1 go any further, That the Confult
was begun at the ##hite-Horfe Tavern in the Sirand,
and there they did agree to fend Father Cary to
be their Procurator at Rome ; and after fome fuch
Things were done, they adjourned into feveral
Clubs or Colloquies, or what you pleafe to call
them. One was at Mr. Whiitehread’s Chamber,
another at Jreland’s Chamber, that 1s Executed,
another at Harcourt's, and another at Fenwick's;
now here was a Refolve Signed by thefe Pri{oners
at the Bar, in which

L.C.¥. Thatis four of them, Whitebread, Fen-
wick, Harcourt and Turuer.

Oates. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.f. Was Gavan there?

Oates. 1 dare not, my Lord, affe€t him with
that, becaule I cannot be pofitive, but I’ll give
you my Evidence againft him by and by. My
Lord thefe four Gentlemen, with the reft of
their Accomplices, did fign a Refolve, which was
this, Zhat Pickering and Grove fhould go on in
their Attempt to difpatch the King; and this they
did refolve upon, and gave it as their Judgment,
a5 a very excellent Expedient. My Lord, after
this Confult we did return, (we were Eight or
Ten that came over) and may it pleafe your Lord-
fhips, in the Month of Faune, (1 think it wag
Fune) he came to Flanders, in order to vifit his
Colleges, being Provincial of the Jefuits of Eng-
land: He did ftay there (as near as I can remem-
ber) till the 1oth of Fuwe, and enquiring of the
Fathers how Squares went in Town, among other
Expreffions he ufed, this was one, That be hoped

b [ee the black Fool's Head at Whitehall laid faft
Vor. IL
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enonghs and that if bis Brother fhould appear fo

Jollows in bis Foolfteps, bis Paffport fhould "be made

fo0, (or to that Purpofe) be fhould be difpatch'd.
Upon the 13th of Fume, Old S.ile, the 23d
New S_tllf:, 1 had Orders to come for England ;
according to which Order I came, and did take-
the Pacquet-Boat, as near as 1 can remember,
the 24th, which was the 14th Qld Stile, and we
landed at Dozer the 25th, very early in the Morn-
Ing 3 and when I was at Dover, 1 met with the
Prifoner at the Bar, Mr, Fenwick, and he, my
felf, and fome others, did take Coach, and come
as far as Canterbury ; after we had eaten and drunk
there, we came {ix Miles further, where there was
a Box feized by the Searchers of the Town of
Borton, and this Box was brought up by Mr. Fen-
wick, and directed to one Blundel, and the Super-
feription was, as near as | can remember, in thefe
Words, 7o 2he Honourable Richard Blundel, Efg;
at London. And this Prifoner at the Bar, Mr.
fe::wfr&, did defire that the Searchers would fend
it to him, (it was full of Beads and Crucifixes,
and fuch Things) to the Fonntain-Tavern near
Charing-Crofs, and write a Letter to him, by the
Name of Mr. Thompfon, as that was the Name
he ufually went by, when he came to Dsver, and

he had then brought fome Students there, 1o fend
over to St. Omers,

L.C.°f. When went Fenwick?

Oates. When I came to Dover, I met Fenwick,
by the Name of Thompfon, going to fend over the
Students, and Fenwick did fay, If they had fearched
his Pockets, as they had fearched his Box, they
had found fuch Letters, as would have coft him
his Life; for, faith he, they were about our Con-
cern in hand. Then we came up to London,
and arrived at London the 17th of Fune, Old
Stile, for we lay a part of the way ac Sitzenburn,
in the Morning, and in the Afternoon we came
to Dartford, and came to London, Monday Noon,
the 17th, Old Stile. And in the Month of Fuly,
there was one Richard Afbby, whofe right Name
indeed is Tuimbleby, but he went by the Name
of Afbby, and this Gentleman did bring over In-
ftructions from the Prifoner at the Bar, Mr, White-
bread, who was abroad in Flanders, wherein he
was to propole 10000/. to Sir George WWakeman,
to poifon the King; and feveral other Inftruc-
tions there were, of which I cannot now give
you an Account; and withal, that a blank Com-
miffion fhould be fill’d up, and order’d for Sir
Fobn Gage, to be a Military Officer in the Army,
and by that Gentleman’s own Order I delivered
that Commiffion into Sir Fohu Gage’s own Hand,
on a Sunday.

L.C. . Where had you that Commiffion,
from Whitebread?

Oates. It was Signed and Sealed by him, but it
was 2 Blank, and was to be fllId up.

L. C.J. Where?

Oates. It was at ild. Houfe.

L. C. . How was it fill’'d up?

Oates, [t was fIPd up by Mr. Whilebread's
Order, it was Signed and Sealed blank, and he
ordered it to be filI'd up, and me to take that
Commiffion, and carry it to Sir jobu Gage.

Whitebread, Did 1 order you?

Gates. You ordered Afbby; 1 faw the Letter,
and knew it to be Whitebread’s Hand. .

L. C. F. Was it before he went to St. Omers ¢

Oates. It was while he was at St. Owmers.

Whitebread, What Day was it? what Hour?

5 O 2 Qares.
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Qates. Tt was in Tuly.

Whitebiead, What time of the Month?

Qates. The beginning, or middle,

Whitebread. Are you fure it was in July?

QOates. 1 cannot be pofitive, but I think 1t to
be in Fuly, for Afbby went to the Bath the latter
end of Fulv, or the beginning of Augaft, and
it was before he went,

IPhitebread. Who was prefent at the Signing
of this Commiflion?

Qates, There was prefent at the filling up of
this Commiffion, Mr. Harceurt, Mr. 4fbby, and
Mr, Ireland.

Fenwick, Was not [ there?

Oates. 1 think 1A1Pd it up.  Pll tell you when
you were there prefently. My Lord, when /-
by went away, Feawick went out of Town, but
returned again prefently, to give an Account how
Squares went, and really I cannot remember
where he had been, but as ncar as I can, 1t was
in LEffex, I will not be pofitive in 1t; but my
Lord, this fame Gentleman, Nr. Fuzeick, with
Mr. Hareouirt, didadvife Mr. 4/bby, that asfoon
as he had been at the Bath, he fthould go and give
an Account to the People in Somerfetfhire, and
there-away, his Circuit would be thort and very
ealy, and he did rot queftion, but before he came
up to Town again, to have the Gentleman at
Whitehall difpatched, whom they call’d the Black
Baflard; now I leave that to the Jury, to ex-
pound whom they meant by it.

Ferwick, What Time was that, Sir, pray?
You muft time Things, or you do nothing at
all.

Oates. Tt was the latter end of Fuly, or the be-
ainning of Auguff, it was abour the Time of
Abby’s going to the Bath,

Fenoick. Jult now he faid, it was the begin-
ning or middle of Fuly.

Oates, T'll tell your Lordfhip what I faid, that
this Afhby, or Thimbleby, came from St. Omers
with thole Orders or Inftrutions, either the be-
ginning of Fuly, or the middle of iy,

Fenwick. 1 would not interrupt you, Mr. Qafes,
this was fome time before Mr. 4/by went to the
Bath, was 1t not?

Cutes. It was about a Day before.

L. C., 7. He fays 2. Thing that is plain enough:
Afhby came over about the beginning or middle
of Fuly, with Inftructions about. the Commif-
{ion; and about the latter end of Fuly, or begin-
ning of Aiguft, as he remembers, this Advice
was given, |

Oates. And fo we are arrived at the- Affairs 1n
Auguft, which refle@s upon thefe Gentlemen
but now I muft fpeak a Word.to this Gentleman,
Mr, Gavan, the Priforer at the Bar, whom when
I faw come into the: Lobby,. he had gotten. ona
Periwig; {0 there was.one asked me,. whether [
knew him? P know him now,. buy truly. then
I did not well know him, becaufe. he was.under
that Mask, and.I could not fay. any. thing againft
him then, becanfe he being; under. an ill-favoured
Periwig, and being a Man that L. knew had a
goad Head of Hair of his own, L:did not well
underftand- the Myftery. of it,, and. fo {pared my:
Evidence at that Time,, from- informing; the
Council againft-him ;, but the, Prifoner. at the. Bar

came by ‘the, Name. of Gavan, and, we ufed to.

call him by the Name of Eather Gaovan:. And
this Gentleman did. in. the Month .of, Fie. write
Lettergem—

Gavan., What Year?

Ountes. In the Year 1648, and did give the T',.
thers at Leundon an Account how ARairs flood in
Stafferdfbire and Slropfhire, and how diligent one
Father Lwers was to manage Aflairs in thof
Countrics,

Gavan, From whence were thofe Letters fent?

Oates. There was only the Day of the Month,
you know it is not the Cuftom to date the Place,
When I faw the Lewer firft, I did not know i
was his Hand, 1 took it upon Report; but |
will tell the Jury, by and by, how I came to
know it was his Hand: As near as I can re-
member, it was in the Month of Fuly, (it was
Fuly or Augzf)) this Gentleman came to Town,
and I faw this Gentleman at Mr, Ireland’s Canm-

ber,
Gavan, What Time of the Month?

Qates. It was in Jrly 1098, as near as I can
guefs.

Gavan. Upon my Salvation, I am as innocent
as a Child unborn,

L.C. . North. By this means you may put
out any Witnefs in the World, by interrupting
of them. 'When the Witnefs hath done his Tel-
timony, you may ask him any Queftions, to af-
certain the Time, or any thing, but you muft not
interrupt him till he hath done.

Oates. In the latter part of Jauly, 1 think i
was, but 1t was, as I remember, while Mr., 4/by
was in Town, I met m at Mr. Irelaind’s Cham-
ber, for he was a faying he would go fee Ifather
Afbby before he went out of Town, and he gave
fuch an Account to Father Jreland, of the Affairs
in Staffordfbire and Shrapfbirey as he had given in
the Leiters before; but to prove his Hand, he
did draw a Bill upon one Sir William- Andrews i
Iiffex, for the Payment of fome Money, of fome
litke fucking Priefls, that were itroling up and
down the Country, I faw him write it, and it
was the fame and with that Letter.

Gazan. What did 1 write?

L. C. ¥. You drew a Bill upon fuch a Perfon,
and. he names him.

Qates. We are now come to Augufl,

L. C. 7. Buc you fay he difcourfed about the
fame Things with Ireland, that he lidd wrote in
the Letter.

Qates. Yes, my Lord.

Gavan. And what were thofe fame Things?

Oates. Why, how the Affairs: ftood in Siaf-
fordfhire and Shropfbire, how my Lord Stafford
was very diligent. 1 deflire to be excufed as to
that, becaufe ic will dimimifh my Evidence in ano-
ther Part of it: Il tell you pact of what was
then difcourfed of.

Gavan. My Lord, he is:{worn. to {peak.all the
Truth. |

L. C. J. You muft fpeak.the whole Truth, as
far as 1t concerns any. of thefe Perfons:

. Qates. He gave an- Account how: profperous
‘Things were in thofe Countrics, and did fay,- that
there was at leaft T'wo or Three Thoufand Pounds
that, would be ready in. that Country, for the
carrying, on thie Defign,, I think it was Three,
but it: was: betwixt Two and’ Three. Now, my
Lord, we are arrived to our. Bufinefs- in Auyguft 5
about: the 12th of Zugsff, a5 near'as: I remem-
ber, but it was batween tiie Stlr and the rzthy
therein I am pofitive,. [reland, which-1s Execu-
ted,. took.-his Leave:of- us; as.if he were to go td
Sty Qmers, .
L.Cuj.
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7 C. ¥ Wheredud he take his Leave ? .

Oates. At lus Chamber in Ruffel-Streer. Irdlaid
avent out of Town, and fenwicr, by that means,
. be Treafurer and Procurator to the So-
cicty altogether. l_—]e h‘ad that !Employ ;}ﬁer.
ward upon hinmy during his Abfence, let My, Jre-
lnnd 8O whither he would. 'And the 2_1& of Au-
enft, which, as near as [ refiember, fell upon a
Lif;’;*due['d:{}', Mp. Fenick and Mr, Harcouit were
et tdgetlicr at [77ild-Hotfe, and ﬁ}m(:: other Fa-
thers, as Father Kaines, and one Father Blundell,
and fome other Fathers, whom I cannot remerm-

ber. |
Gavan. Was [ there, pray, Sir?

Oates. No, no, Sir; 1 am not to talk to you
ftill, I am to fpeak to the Court.

1. C. . North. We would recomménd this to
you, 10O name Perfons when you fpeak of_ thein,

Oates. Where 1 have Occafion I will name
them, my Lord. Mr. Fenwwick and Hﬂrfq!f{'t Were
together at [Pild-Hovfe, and Mr, Kainés, and
Mr. Blundell, and, as nearas I remember, Mr,
Langworth was there, bue 1 WDI_I’EiIJ‘: pofitive.
And there lay before them ac f{/’:[d-Haay& Four-
fcore Pounds, the moft of that Money was Gui-
feas, which was to be paid to the four Jri/h Ruf-
fians that were to murder the King at ##7ndfor,
“After it was agreed that they fhould do 1, and
Colemans who was executed, came thither; and
gave the Mcffenger a Guinea to esprdite the
Journey; we drew off from IVild-Lsufe, dnd
went to Mr. Harconrt’s Chamber 5 and becaufe
Mr. Harcourt bidd theré lefr his Papers that were
to be fent down to Zindfor, there he paid the
Mefletioer the Money, And that Gentleman
was prefent there, Mr, Fenwick, and this is ano-
ther Part of Anguff’s Bufinefs, No foorer Was
this Meflenger difpatcoed, but within a Day af-
ter, or a Ddy before ; but it wasa Day after; as
neéar as § can remember, there was a Confult held
at the Benedicting’s Convent, at which Mr. Fes-
awick was prefentyand Mr, Harconrt, and theré they
had fome more frifo News from the Irifh Arch-
bithop Zalbet, who did give an Account of the
Irifb Affairs, how they did confpire the Death
of the Duke of OF#ond 3 and defired to know
how Affairs went in Lugland, and defired forne
Commiflions might bé fent over to fome parti-
cular Perfons, there fo raile Forces fof the car-
rying on of the Delign, dnd fonmie Moty t6 be
tranfmitted to them. And Mr., Ferwick did
bring the Commiflions from Zild- Houfe (as néar
as I remember) bot herdid bring-them with him,
and fent themi down by a fpecial Méfienger t6

was

Cbheffer, and {fome: Letters by the Poft. "Fhat of

the Polt I know of my own Knowledoe, but that
of the fpécial: Meflenger | had only from his 6wn
Mouth. My Eordy from the 24th of Auguft, as
near as Y remerfibet it fell-of 4 Safurdayy Barthe-
lomew-Day it was, but whether ic fellof a Safnr-
day, 1 cannotbe: pofitive, bur-if the Courtpledfe
to inform themiftlves of it-by thieii’ AlmanacKs,
they may,

L. C, . There'is no gréat matter in- that,
luppoie.

Odtes. But this Gentlethany Mr, Feswick, did
deliver me fome Money for my neceffary irici-
dent: Chiarges;- butt did adnionifli nie to procure

to St. _Omer_r, and to catry eight or ten Students
to go there to ftudy Huminity : And this is the
Account 1 have to give of MF. Feissick. For af-
ter 1 took my L.éave of him hére, I faw him no
mor€ til] he was appréhended,

L. C. 7. This wis about the 26th of Aupuft,
was 1t not?

Oates. Yes, my Lord; it was the 26th of fu-

guft,

L. C. 7. Well, go on, Sir.

Oates. The 1ftor 2d of September, we receiv’d
a Letter (in the Beginning it was) from Mr. #7%ite-
bread, and this Lietter they did fay was a Foreign
Leteer, and yet it paid but Two-pence, by which
I did conclude that Mr. Whitebiead vascome in-
to Lugland, and lay fomewhere privately, or was
not yer come to ‘Town.  On the 3d of Saptember
[ went to Mr. Wbitehreac’s Chamber, at N ighr,
but he being at Supper, was not to be .{poken
with 3 bur when he faw me the next Mornine,
he did revile me, and ftrike me, and asked me
with what Face I could look upon him, feeing [
had deale fo treacheroufly with them ?  Now. af-
ter that I had enquiréd in what Refpet? He
anfwered, In the difcovering of the Bufinefs, for
there was a Gentlenidn that went to the King in
this Bufinefs, to whom I had communicated much
of my Information by Dr. Tongze. This Gentle-
man had theé fame coloured Clothes that I had,
and fo they not being able to give an Account of
the Name of the Perfon, gave only an Account
of the Habit he was in, and therefore they char-
oed me withit:  After I had juftified mv 1/ =5
well as I could, Mr. Fbiichread di7 4 me a
Letter, which came from one Reddir~jield, alias
Benningfield, which did fhew the Pior was difco-
vered, and they weére like to be undone, if it
had not been for the five Letters that were fent
down to Aindfor and intercepted; which made
all to be looked upon as Counterfeit 5 after thar,
| juftified my felf as well as I could, He told
me he would be Friends with me, provided 1
would givé an Account of the Party, and of thie
Miniftér that went with him. And this is whic
I haveto fay againft Mr, 2P bitebsend, and the Pri-
foners at the Bar; but only this, becaufe Sir
George Wakeman did not accept of 10,000/, that
was propofed to hum to poifon the King, this
Gentleman-offeréd that 5000 Z. muore thould be
added. d

L. C. F. Which Gentleman ?

Quaiés. Mr., Whitebread, And 15000 /. was
accepted, and when 1t was accepted, /7bitebreat
did greatly rejotce that the Money wasaccepted to
poifon the King.

Whitebread, Did Itellyoufo?

Oafes. No, theré was a Letter told me fo, but
you weéré i Flanders then. B

Sir Cr. Leviiz: What have you to fay againft
Mr. Turier ¢ |

Outes. 1 fpeak as'to his being at the Confule in
Aprily and figning the Refolve of the Death of
thé King. o 1

L. C. . Was Mr. Gavan at that Confult the
Zath of dprit ? |

Qates. Mr. Gavan was fummoned to that Con-
fult, but adong Forty Men 1 cannot particularly
fay he was there, but I faw his Name figiéd as

fome-Mafits to' be faid: for a-profperoust Succefs
upon- the Deligni-  Upon: the 25th Day, I faw’
Mr. Feawick in-thé Afteriioon at his Chamber,-
and he was to go oi the 26th Day, tlienéxr Day,:

to the King’s Death, but I cannot fay I faw his"
Perfon,
L.G.F. Can you fay you faw liis Flard-
WHLIng ?
Qates.
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Oates. 1 do believe it was his. ‘

L.C.¥. Did you ever fee any Writing of his,
but when he Signed the Bill of Exchange?

Oates. My Lord, I never faw him write but
that Time. It wasan ill Pen, as it feemed, that
he writ his Name with to the Confult, and 1 dl_d
not take fo particular Notice of the being of his
Name there, till we faw the Inftructions in 7uiy,
and then I did Jook over the Confult particular-

ly.
/ L. C.¥. ButIfay, Did you ever fee his Hand-

writing, before he writ the Bill?
Oates. My Lord, I never faw his Hand but

that Time., _
L.C. ¥. And That by your comparing, was

like the Hand of the Letter about St:ﬁrd/éfre.?
Oates. By that | proved the Letter to be writ-
ren from him, It was like it, and was all as

OIC. r
L. C.¥. Was it like the Hand that was to the

Confult ¢

OQutes. That T cannot fay.

L. C. ¥. 1 thought you had faid he confefs’d
the Contents of the Letter, when he cameout of

taffordfbire ?

° Ojiiefl do fay this of Mr. Gawvan, that he
wrote fuch a Letter, and when he cameto Town,
he did give an Account of ali the Paffages that
the Letier did contain, which was concerning
the raifing of Money in Staffordjbire, and the Parts
he was concerned in: And this was the Account
he gave., |

L.C.¥. Dr. Oates, you pofitively fay, that
IWhitebread, Fenwick, and Harcourt were there?

Ouates. Yes, my Lord, for Mr. Whitebread was
Provincial and Prefident of the Aflembly.

Sir Cr. Levinz, And Terner was there?

Oates. Yes, he was,

Sir Cr. Levinz, Dr. Oates, what was that Mo-
ney rais’d for ? |

Oates. They faid it was for the catrying on of
the Defign.

L. C. ¥. And what Defign was that?

Oatezs. Our Defign,  And that was, the Sub-
verfion of the Government, and Deftruction of
the King.

L. C.¥. Now, if you pleale, you may ask
him any Queftion.

Gawvan. Mr. Qates, you fay you faw my Name
to a Letter for the wking up of Money: To

whom was that Letter writ?
Oates. Therewasa Letter from you, to Mr. Jre-

land. And he did receive it by the Hands of

Grove.
Gavan. Where was that Money to be taken
up?

POam. My Lord, 1 fay, that Letter was recei-
ved by Grove, who is out of the way, and can’t
prove it, and was delivered to Jreland.

L C. 7. 1 perceive your Memory is not good.

Gavan. 1 perceive his Memory 1s very good.

Oates. This Letter did give an Account of the
Bufinefs of Staffordfhire, and the Particulars of
that Mr, Gavan did afterwards give an Account of
by Word of Mouth, and fome other Things not
fit to be named. |

" Gavan. Pray, where was it, Sir, that I gave
an Account of it; in London, or in the Coun~
try 2

Outes. In London,
Gavan. In what Month?
Qates. InFuly 1t was.

Gavan, What Part of Fuly?

Oates. It was when Mr. 4fbby was in Town,
the Beginning or Middle.

Gavan, Juft now, you faid it was in the latter
End.

Oates. My Lord, I beg this Favour, that if
the Prifoners at the Bar ask any Queftions, they
may be propoled to the Court, for they are nim-
ble in their Queftions, and do a little abufe the
Evidence. They put Things upon them that
they never fay. %

Mr. Fuftice Pembertas. Propofe your Queftions
to the Bench, that you would have asked.

Gavan, 1 will do fo, my Lord, in whofe Ho.
nour I have more Confidence, than in whatfoever
M. Oates fays or {wears.

L. C. 7. But he tells you who you drew your
Billof Exchange upon, and that was Sir illiam
Andrews.

L. C.¥. North. Don’t give the King’s Wit-
nefles 1]l Words. ,

L. C.¥. Have you any more to ask, any of

ou ? .
' Whitebread, Yes, my Lord.

L.C.F. See if you can catch him, he gives
you a long and exact Account ascan be given by
any Man in England; and pray direCt yourfelf,
Mr., WWhitebread, to the Court.

Whitebread. He fays he was here in  April,
and at the Confult; now I defire to know, how
long before that Time were youand I acquaint-
ed?

Oates. Why, before that Time I never faw
Mr. Whitebread's Face.

Whitebread. What Employment were you to
have, and what Reward?

Oates, When I cameaway from St. Omers, 1
was to attend the Motion of the Fathers at your
Chamber, and to carry the Refolve from Cham-
ber to Chamber, where the Fathers were refpec-
tively met.

Fenwick. Was not you at the Wbite- Horfe Ta-
vern ¢

QOates. Yes, 1 was there.

Fenawick. Did you dine there?

Oates. No, our Stay was fhort there.

Fenwick. How long did you ftay in Town?

Oates. Truly, I can’t tell you exaétly, but
from the Time I came into England, to the Time
I went out again, wasunder Twenty Days.

Fenwick. Who were they that came over with
you? Name the Parties.

Oates. T will tell you who they were; but it's
fo long fince, I can’texaltly remember.

Fenwick. Y ou need not trouble your Memory,
you have them in your Narrative,

Oates. My Lord, there was Father Williams,
the Reétor of Wotton, the Rector of Liege, Sit
Fobn Warner, Sivr Thomas Preflon, and fome o-
thers.

Fhitebread. Was not Mr, Nevi/ there ?

Oates. 1 believe he was, it is like he might be
there.

}Whitebread, Was not Sir Robert Brett there ?

Qates, | believe he might.

Whitebread. You have faid fo in your Narra-
tive.

L. C. 7, Perhaps a Man will ventureto Write
more than he will Swear; not that he does Write
what he does not believe, but that he knows he
ought to be more cautious 1n his Oath, than in
his Affirmation,

Fenwick,
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Fonwick. My Lord, with your Lordfhip’s Fa-
VOur, i[ is []P'Uﬂ O&[h. - -

1. C. §. North. Fenwick, you are in a Court
of Law, and we muft go according to the Law s
if you will prove any Contradiction in him to his
Qath, you mult bring the Perfons here that faw
him take the Qath; and you muft not think to
ke a Pamphlet for Evidence. |

Lenwick. It was fworn beforea Juftice of Peace,
and will not, 1 fuppole, be denied, and theref:bre
he muft make his Evidence agree with it, being
part of his Narrative, o
Gavan. You fpeak of one Thing in Auguft,
and of another in Fulys which Month faw you
me In ¢ . _

Oates. 1 told you, I faw you in Town in Fu-
ly, and when Father Afbby, or Toimbleby, was
in Town. And you faid you would go and fee
him. _ |

Yuft. Pemberton. He fays it was in Fuly, and
that’s enough,

Gavan. What Time in Fuly ¢

Oates. It was towards the Middle or latter
End.

Gavan. Was it before Mr. Afbby went to the
Bath?

Oales. It was fo.

L. C. 7. He fays he faw you in Town, when
Afpby was in Town, which was towards the lat-
ter End of Fuly, or Beginning of Augpuft. He can-
not tell exactly whether, but politively he fays
before Mr. 4/bby went to the Bath,

L.C. %. North, Welly to fatisty you, e will
ask Mr. Oates the Queftion again. Can you re-
collect whether it was the Middle or latter End of
Fuly ¢

Oates. My Lord, as near as I can remember,
it was about the Middle of Faly that 4/by came
to Town, and he did not ftay in Town above a
Fortnight : And 1t was whillt he was 1n Town,
and defigned to go down to the Bath, that this
Gentleman came to Town, and gave Account of
the Particulars of that Letter.

L. C. . North, You may ask him any Que-
ftions, but I would have you obferve what Ac-
count he gives, That about the Middle of Fuly,
Afby came to Town, that he ftay’d in Town
about a Fortnight, as he believes, that during that
Time, you came to Town, and then was this

Difcourfe.

Oates. During that Time I faw him in Town,
but I know not exactly when it was.

Gavan. My Lord, I would ask him one Que-
ftion ; the Thing that is brought againft sme is
this ; He fays, Mr. 4y came to Town in the
middle of Fuly, that he ftaid in Town a Fort-
night, that while he was there I came to Town,
and had fuch Difcourfe: Now, my Lord, I de-
fire to know, whether it was the firft Week, or
laft Week that 4hby was in Town, that he faw

mec,

L. C. 7. If hecan anfwer it, let him.
Ouates. My Lord, I cannot,

L.C.%. He tells you, he cannot charge his
Memory with ir.

Oates, No, my Lord, nor will not.

L. C. 7. Really, I believe there is fcarce one
in all this Company, able to give'an Account of
- 2 particular Time of a Paflage fo long ago,

Gavasn., No doubt he hath an excellenr Me-
mory,

L.C, ¥. And if he had not fome Memorials of

this, he could not do it. And tho® he hath Me-
morials of the moft eminent Paffages, yer we
can’t fuppofe he hath of all Circumftances.

Gavan. But this is the Subflance; and your
Lordfhip may conceive, that nor withour Rea-
fon I urgeit; for if Mr, 4/bby came to Town
the Beginning of 7uly, and ftay’d but a Fort-
night 1n Town, and I came to Town while he
was here, 1t muft be 1n one of the two Jaft
Weeks, Now I would have ir afcertain’d, be-
caufe I may difprove it in one Week or in the
other.

L. C.}. 'Tis true, you did not amifs in ask-
ing the Queftion, if he were able o anfwer it
but 1if it be ecither, ’tis enough tc prove you
Guilty.

Gavan, Pray, was it only one Time, or Civerle,
that you favw me in London ¢

Oates. Tt was but one Day, but, as near as [
remember, I faw you twice that Day; and P'll
tell it you by a particular Circumitance, That I
faw you in the Afternoon when you were a little
Hlifh, and there was a Cordial breught to you by
an Apothecary, that went by the Name of /7/-

sole.,
! L. C. 7. Hereis Memory refrefh’d by a Cir-
cumltance, you fee. Whither was it brought to
him ?

Ouates. T'o Ireland’s Chamber.,

Gavan, Who brought it, Sir¢

L. C. 7. AnApothecary, he fays, whofe Name
was /7 alpeole.

Gavan, Ny Lord, I never faw Walpoole in all
my Life.

L. C. . T believe he is known well enough,
fuch an one as Walpoole the Apothecary. But
ask what Queftions you will,

Oates. 1 cannot fay whether 1t was Zalpoole
himfelf, or his Man, that brought it,

Gavan. I do as truly believe there is a God,
and Heaven, and an Hell, as any one here does,
as I hope for Salvation, as I hope to fee God in
Heaven, I never faw Mr. Oales before the Day in
SFanuary, when he fays I had the Periwig on,
and he did not know me: And as for Fuly, I
call God to witnefs, I never faw him then.

L.C. % Youwerein Townin Fuly?

Gavan. Upon my Salvation I was not in Lon-
don,

L. C. 7. You'll prove that by and by.

Feneick. 1 hope, my Lord, we may ask him
any Queftions in the Court, of our Evidence, (o
make Things clear?

L. C. 7. Yes, you may.

Turner. Did you ever fee me in all your Lile,
before you faw me at Wbitehall ?

Qates. You were then in a difgufed Habit,
and a nafty Periwig, and I did not know you fo
well.

Tusner, You, at J7bitehall, was pleafed to tell
me, I went by another Name.

Quaies. 1 don’t value Names, but your Perfon:
You are the Man.

L. C. #. Youare thec Man, he fays.

Turner. Did you fee me at the Confult ?

Oates. I faw the Man that fpeaks to me.

Turner. Who were there ? and how many were

prefenl:? |

Oates. There were about Forty or Fifty.

L. C. . When you have but one Name apiecs,
then he can hit it right 5 but when you have fo
many Namcs, then you are too hard for him,

Tarner,
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Turner, Did you fee me at the J/hite-Horfe ¢

Oates. That T will not fay; for when they
were in leffer Clubs or Colloguies, I was fure of
better Acquaintance with them.

Turner, Where was it you faw me?

Oates. At Mr, Fenwick’s Chamber.

Turner, At WWhiteball, you faid it was at ZP1ld-
Houfe.

Oates. My Lord, becaufe the chiefeft part of
the Confult fat at #77/d- Hounfe, we called it all,
Tie Confult at IVild-Houfe.

L. C.¥. 1 fee your Defence will be Iittle elfe
but Captioufnefs, to difprove him in Circumftan-
ces of Time, Place, Perfons, or Numbers; now
all thefe are but little Matters to the Subftance
>Tis true, Mr. Whitebread, it you can prove you
were not at that Placeat that Time, it will do you
great Service, Have you any thing more to fay

to him ?
L. C.F. Narth. Thope your Witnefles are in

readine(s that you were f{peaking of, to fortify
your Teftimony.

Gates, Yes, my Lord, they are, Idefire they
niay be heard,

L. C.¥. By and by, when occafion s,

Fary., My Lord, I defire hemay be ask’d one

Queition,

L. C, ¥. Mr. Garraway, what Queftion would
youask him?

Fury. Where it was that he faw Mr, Turner
at the Confult.

Qates. 11aw him at Fenwick’s Chamber, where
he was a2 Member of the Confult 5 and being lo,
I faw him fign the Refolve of the King’s
Death.

L.C. 7. Did you fee him ¢

Oates. Yes, Idid,

Sir Cr. Levinz. Then we defire Mr, Dugdale
may be {worn, (which was aone.) Come, M,
Dugdale, pray will you tell my Lord and the
Jury, what you know concerning #hitebread and
Harcourt 2 Firlt about Whitebread,

" Dugdale. My Lord, I have very little Acquain-
tance with the Man, I have feen him at Tuxall,
with my old Lady Affon.

L.C. 7. When?
Dugdale. 1 dare not fpeak the time, butappeal

to him himfelf about the truth of 1t,

L.C. 7. Isit Yearsago 2

Dugdale, It 15 two or three Years ago.

L. C. 7. Well, what can you fay agamit
him ¢

Dugdale. Mr. Whitebread did write a Letter
that 1 faw under his own Hand, inclofed in a
Letter from Mr. Grove to Mr. Ewers, whereln
he gave Mr, Ewers a caution, to be fure to
choofe thofe that were very trufty, it was no
matter whether they were Gentlemen or no, fo
they would be but ftour and couragious: This
was the purport of the Letter, I cannot fay the
Words exaétly, but that he fhould choofe thofe
that were hardy and defperate, or to that pur-
pofe.
L. C. F. Pray where was it you faw that Let-
ter ¢

Dugdale. At Tixall.

L.C.¥. How came you tofeeit?

Dugdale. Becaufe all the Letters were directed

to me, that came to Mr. Eawers inclofed 1n Mr,
Grove's Letters: and fo I intercepied the Letter,

and read it.
L. C. 7. Whatwas Mr, Ewers ?

Drugdale. A Jefuir, my Confeflor 5 for I was
entertained by Mr. Gavan to be in the Con{piracy
of the King’s Death, and fo 1 was by feveral o-
thers.

L.C. 7. You were not acquainted with Mr,
Whitebread's Hand, were you ¢

Dugdale. My Lord, I only came acquainted
with Mr. W#7hitebread’s Hand, by feeing him write
a Letter at Tixall, which he delivered to me tq
fend.

L. C. 7. 1pray let them underftand you: Yoy
fay that Mr, Whitebread did write 2 Letter to
Mr. Lwers, inclofed in one from Mr. Giove,
wherein he advifed that he thould entertain lufty
ftout Fellows, and no matter whether they were
Gentlemen, or to that effet: Now I ask you,
how you do know that was Whitchread’s Hand 2
or was it his Name only that was to it.

Dugdale, My Lord, I faw us Name at it.

L. C. J. When you faw that Letter, had you
{een his Hand before ¢

Duydale. Yes, my Lord, I{aw it to another
Lecter which I faw him write,

L. C. 7. And that was like the Hand In the
Letter to Ewers, was it ?

Dugdale. Yes, 1 do almoft pofitively fivear it
was the fame Hand,

L.C. 7. But what fay yon to Gawan and
Ewers ?

Dugdale. There were {everal Conf{ultations in
Mr, Eaers's Chamber, my own, and at Bofzobel,
and feveral other Places. Mr. Gavan might be
fo ingenuous as to confefs it.

* L. C. Baron. W hat were
thofe Confultations for ¢

Dugdale. For confpiring the King’s Death, and
introducing of Popery. Mr. Gavan was chiefly
made ufe of as a good Orator and learned Man,
and a good Scholar, to perfuade People into the
Defign 5 this I fpeak as to thefe Perfons.

L. C.¥. Pray go on, Sir, for you {hall have
a full Scope, for you never were a Witnefs in
any of the Trials before: and you may take your
own Way, and you fhall be heard, you fhall not
be interrupted 5 for what you fay is very confide-
rable.

Dugdale. One meeting I think was in Septem-
ber laft, it was at Tixall, and there was my Lord
Stafford, and feveral others.

L. C. ¥. Was Gavan there ?

Dugdale. Yes, Mr. Gavar was there; I fup-
pole he will not deny 1t.

Mpr. Fuft. Pemberton, Don’t rely upon that, he
will deny it, you may be fure; go on. You fay

he was there
Dugdale. Yes, and that was to carry on the

Defign : And I was by to hear. I think Mr.
Ireland was in the Country then, there was you
(fpeaking to Mr. Gavan) Mr. Peters, Mr. Lewjon,
and Mr. Ewers, at this Confult, and there was
another, my Lord Stafford, and others that 1
cannot NOW name.

Gawvan, Whattime?

Dugdale. Tt was in Septemberr, 1678,

Gavan, What Day ¢

Dugdale. 1 think it was the 21{t of Seprember,

L.C.¥. What was that Confult and Confpi-
racy about, in fhort?

Dugdale. It was for the introducing of Po-
pery, and taking away the Life of the King, I
being a Perfon chofen out for that purpofe, and

was

* William Men-
tague, Eig;
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was to be fent to London by Mr. Harcourt to be Dilcourfe of an Army, or about making a Maf

under the Tuition of Mr. Paifous.
L. C. 7. Pray who mentioned this? was that

ehe firlt time that ever they difcourfed of the

Death of the King ? ‘
Dugdale. No, my Lord, 1t was two Years a-

g0, but I fpeak of 2 fhorter time.
L. C. F. Who began the Difcourfe?
Dusdale. Mr. Gavan often difcourfed of it, and

b #+
encouraged me to It

L.C.¥. Who broke it firft to you? who
feemed the principal Man ?

Dugdale. Fwers and Gavan.

L. C. ¥. By the Oath that you have taken, Re-
peat it once mote, for this is new to us.

Gavan. *Tis {o to me too upon my Soul, for
upon my Confcience I never heard of it betore.

L C. ¥. 'Tisa mighty Confirmation of what
was before difcovered.

Dugdale. Bue 1 {peak to Mr. Gavar, and ap-

peal to him himielf. | |
Gavan. Look upon me with Confidence, if

you can.
Lord Juft. Pemberton. You muft not threaten

the King’s Witnefies. _

Dugdale. Mr. Gavan, 1 defire you to inform
the Lords and all here prefent, whether I was
not under your Tuition? And whether you
knew any unjuft Action by me ?

Gavan. You were never under my Tuition,

L. C. ¥. Did you ever know him ?

Gavan. Yes, my Lord, he ufed to come fome-
times where T was, and fo we were acquainted ;
and I lived within eleven Mile of Zixall, my Lord
Ajton’s, and having Acquaintance in that Family,
Mr. Ewers, whom I know very well, I uled to
come there fometimes, but I never was in his
Chamber in my Life. In what Room of my
Lord Aflew’s Houfe was this Dilcourfe?

Digdale. Some of it was 1n the litcle Parlour,
and fome in Mr. Ewers’s Chamber,

Gavan, Were any prefent there ! And who
were they !

Dugdale. I have told you there wasMr. Ewers,
and Mr. Lewforr, and Mr, Petres, and fome o-
thers 3 and for a further Confirmation of this,
That Mr, Gavais may know that I had a great
Zeal for him, and that they did love me well, I
gave them an Eftate, or elfe 1 believe they would
not have trufted me fo well as they did. I gave
them 400 /. to pray for my Soul, and for the
cairying on of this Defign; and when theytold
me they doubted they fhould want Money, I
promifed them 100/, more for the carrying onthe
Work. Upon which Mr. Gavan promifed me
that I fhould be canonized for a Saint.

Mr, Jult, Pemberton. Mr, Gavan himfelf ?

Dugdalz, Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Belwood. What do you know of any Fo-
reign Affiftance ?

L.C.F. I would fain have all the World
hear this ; pray what was difcourfed in the Par-
lour in my Lord Afon's Houle, and in Ewers’s
Chamber?

Dugdale, Tt was about taking away the King's
Life, and introducing the Popifs Religion.

L. C.¥. By the Qath you have taken, was
that their Difcourfe ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, They were con-
triving how to kill the King and introduce Po-
pery,

Sir Cr. Levinz, Pray, have you heard any

Vo, II,

b ]

facre?

Dugdale. It was fpoken in my hearing, and
there was fome Difcourfe why they thould expect
Forces from Beyond Sea, and this Gentleman
faid (meaning Mr. Gavan) tho* they Beyond the
d¢as had Troubles enough upon themfelves, yet -
if we could efleét it, Men and Money would
not be wanting. I will add nothing more than
the Truth in what I fay.

L. C. 7. Youdeliver your Teftimony like a
fober modeft Man, upon my word.

SirCr. Levinz. What fay you asto a Maffacre ?

Dugdale. My Lord, I have at fome Confulta-
tions heard {peak of it, but the chief thing that
they aimed at was firft, there was a Letter that
came out of Paris, and came through Mr., Har-
courts Hands, and fo came down into the Coun-
try, to prove that it was the Opinion of them at
Paris, and St. Omers, to fling all this upon the
Preshyterians, that is, the Death of the King ;
That 1f any thing of that nature thould happen,
they fhould be ready to givethe firt Alarm, and
give out, That it was thofe Sull King-Killing
Presbyterians, that had done the Fa®: And fo
they thought they fhould eafily have brought in
the Epifeopal Party into their Company, to re-
venge themfelves of the Preshyterians,

L. C. f. It was pretty Advice indeed, to have
it firltlaid on the Preshyterians, that they might
get Proteflants to join and cut them off, and then
their own Throats thould be cut.

Dugdale. And then, my Lord, there was to be
a Maflacre 5 and if any did efcape, that they
could not be fure of were Papifis, they were to
have an Army to cut them off,

MTr. Belwoed, Did he ever ufe any Arguments
to you, to prove the Lawfulnefs of the Defign ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, hehath, and fhewed
me feveral Examples for confirming me’in it,

L. C.¥. What, forkilling theKing?

Dugdale. For the killing of any, to introduce
their own Religion.

Mr. Belzwood. Pray, will you name fome,

Dugdale. FHe endeavoured to prove it by
Scripture, I can’c now call the Text to mind;
but it was to fhew, how it was lawful and good
to deftroy any for the Advantage of their Reli-
cion, and then he fhewed the Example of Fa-
ther Garnett, How feveral of his Reliques be-
ing Beyond Sea, Great Miracles had been done

by them.
L. C. 7. And fo now thereis by St. Colsman

too.

Sir Cr. Levinz, What Letters have you re-
cetved from Mr. Harcourt ?

Dugdale. 1. have received feveral Pacquets of
Letters from feveral Perfons Beyond Seas, which
were, by his Inftruétion, communicated by Mr.,
Greve to Mr. Eweis, which Letters did contain
Treafon inthem, for the introducing of Popery,
and killing and deftroying the King,

L. C. ¥. How can you tell that ?

Dugdale. Mr. Harcourt hath given it under
his own Hand, and I have intercepted the Let-

ters, and read them. ‘ |
L. C. ¥. You were acquainted with the Hand ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. . Youread the Letters?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L.C. 7. How many Letters have you inter-

cepted £ Flave you intercepted T'wenty ?

5 F Duzdale,
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Dugdale. Yes,a hundred, my Lord. Mr. Har-
eonrt was the firft that gave intelligence into the
Country (as 1 know of) of the Death of Sir
Edmundbury Goafrey.

Sir Gr. Levinz, ‘Tell when it was given, and
how.

Dugdale. T have made it out already upon
Qath, and 1 have Witneffes to prove it.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Pray, Sir, tell it now.

Dugdale. It was directed to Mr. Ewers, and 1t
was three Days before he was found, for it was
reccived on the Afanday, and he, as 1t is proved,
was killed on the Sarurdayv. The Words were thele,
This wery Night Sir Ldmundbury Godfrey s
difpatched. And I very much rejected Mr. Exwers
for this A&ion, and then told him, This will over-
throw the Delign, or I will be hanged,

L. C. /. What Day did you receive the Lei-
ter ¢

Dugdale. 1 have proved I received itona Asi-

day.
'}L. (.. ¥. DBuat pray what Date did 1t bear ?

Dugdafe. That Letter muft come by Saterday
Poft, for it fuid, This Night 8 Edmundbury
Godfrey s difpatched.

L. C. 'f. Hedid not name any body, by whom?

Dugdale. Wo, but it faid he was killed, and we
knew by whom.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. And are you fure that
was NVir. Flarcoust’s Letter 7

Dupdale. Yesy for he did ufually fign his Let-
ters with two Letters /7. H, which flood either
for Harceurt, or Harrifun.

Mr. Belswoed. Did you acquaint any body with
this, or did you conceal 1t ?

Dugdalz. T did go to an Alehoufe that is hard
by my Lord’s the next day, which was Twefday,
and there 1 asked, If they did not hear fome
Newsof a Knight’s being killed at London ¢ And
] have an Evidence here, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
I will call him, who, I defire, may teftity the
fame thing.

L. C.F. Yes, by all means,

Sir Ci. Levinz, Mr. Dugdale, Pray, will you
give us fome more account of the L.etter that
came from M, [¥bitchread to Mr. Egvers.

Dugdide. 1 remember one particularly, but I
canpot tell what number I have feen.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Did you fee more than that
one ¢

Dugdale. 1 particularly remember that,

L. C.¥. What was that one particularly ?

[larcenrt. My Lord, T defire to ask him one
Queltion, When was the laft time that you re-
ccived any Letters from me ?

Dugdale. The laft T received from you (to my
beft remembrance} was that about Sir Edinuizdbury
Godfrey, and 1t was in Offeber.

Harcourt. 1 have not writ to that Perfon this
Year and half.

L. C. . Let that Man Dbe called that proves
this bulinefs of the Death of Siv Edmundbury,
and the talk of it.

Dugdale. Mr. Harconrty you know very well,
that when Mr, Ireland was laft in the Country
laft Year, you were to fend him the Anfwers
that came by Letters from St. Omers, and thole
were fent down to my Lord Affen’s, and [ faw
them, cight of thofe Letters, I am fure. Andl
can prove it by one Circumftance ; two of them
came relating to Mr. Edward Afloi’s Death,
trom Paris 3 [intercepted them, and talking of

it, that I could Conjure, and tell of the Death of
Mr. Edward Aften, before any of his Friendg
koew of it. And Mr, Ireland writ a chiding

. . o
Letter about it, that he had not heard it fooner,
and you fent down word, That you did write
thofe Letters, and yet you fay you have not writ.
ten to me of a Twelve-month, or more.

Harcourt. This Gentleman does pretend o
know my Hand, and *tis true, 1 have writ feve.
ral Letters for Mr. Ezcers, and direéted to him;
but as to this time he fpeaks of, 1 have left off
Writing for divers Years, Fle pretends to know
me, and yet this Gentleman before the Committee
of Commons in Parliament, which was yefterday
was five Wecks, as well as he knew my Hand,
came and fuid I wasa Gentleman he did not
know. HHe came allo to entrap me at the Gate
bonfe Lefore thofe Gentlemen of the Committee
of the Houfe of Commons ; but becaufe he faig
he knew my Hand fo very well, and teltifies
thofe Expreflions in the Letter, 1 muft fay this,
I never did write any fuch Letter, nordid [ever
in my Life feem to approve of any Man’s Death
or Murder. Butthe thing is this, he pretendsto
krow my Hand and to prove it, the Gentlenen
defired me o write my own Hand and my Name,
and he in the mean ame did withdraw, and three
of them did write their Names, and afterwards
they called him in again, and asked him which
was Harconi’s Hand, and he was not able to
fay which it was.

L. C.'F. You write more Hands, as well as
have more Names, and can counterfeir your
Hands, as well as change your Names,

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. You ipeak before your
time, and your bare Word goes for nothing,

L.C. ¥. But, Mr. Dyzdale, where 1s your
Witnefs ?

Harconrt. ¥ don’t know any thing of this.

L. C. 7. Bucif hecallsup a Witnefs, of whom
you can have no Sufpicion, that can tefti{y, that ar
this time Mr. Dugdale {poke about the Death of
Sir Edmundbury Godfrey, what will you fay to
that ?

Hareonrs. 1 believe there is no fuch thing at

all,

Sir Cr, Levinz. My Lord, here 1s Mz, Chet
wip, pray fwear him.  (Which was done.)

L.C.}. Mr. Chetwoin, Do you remember that
Mzr. Dugdale came to you any time Jaft Summer,
and what time, and what Difcourfe had you ?

Chetwin. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
I was moft part of the Summer in the Country,
I came into 8taffordfbire about the2gth of Auguft.
My Leord, there 13 a Gentleman, one Mr. Sau-
bidge, that 1s a Kinfman of my Lord Affes’s, that
was very well acquainted with the Family where
I was, which was half a Mile ofi my Lord’s,
and ufed to come and play with me at Tables.
My Lord, at that very time i Ofober he came
to me, and there fays he, Do you hear nothing of
a Juftice of Peace in Wefimunfier, where you
Hveo that is lilled? or to that effe¢t,  No, faid
I, and | had Letters yelterday, and heard nothing
of it, Samh he, | was this morning at Flds,
and there a Girl of the Houle told me, Mr.
Duydale had been there, and reported that there
was a Juftice of Peaceof Aeffminffer was killed s
but who he fhould be I never heard named, and
on Safurday following my Letters brought 1
down to me.

L.C.7.
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L. C. ¥. When was it that this was {poken?

Chetwin. It was Tugfday Morning, (as I remem-
ber) and that by a very good circumftance, I
went that day for Litchfield, :_lnd the :S‘atzrrdrzy after
the News came to me to Litehfield,” that Sir Ed-
sundbury was found murdered.

L.C. 7. The Jury would do well to obferve
this in point of Time. Sir Edmundbury Godfrey
was kill’d, as it was fince proved; on Saturday,
bur on Mondsy he was mifs’d, on Thurfday he
was tound, and on Saturday the News was fpread
211 over the Country. Now, faid he, the Tu¢/day
hefore the News came down, which muft be the
Tuefdlayafter the Saturdayhe was kilP’d, onecomes
from the Alchoufe and asks, Do you not hear
of a Juftice of Peace at IVefiminfter that 1s kill’d s
for the Wench at yonder Alehoufe fays, Mr, Dug-
dalz was here this Morning and reporred _fuch an
one was kill’'d.  So that it 15 moit notorious, as
any thing in the World can be, that this thing
was known to them, before any of us knew what
was become of him.

Mr. Juft, Pemberton. How do you further know
it to be upon Tuefday?

Chetwin. | know it to be that Twefday, my
Lord, very well, for we all went about fuch a
tme to my Coufin’s Mother, to ftay a Week
there, and after I returned back, and on Zuefday
the 15th of Offeber I went to the Race to
Litehfield, and ftay’d till Saturday there, and came
thence to Lendoir, and was here the #ednefday,
being the firft Day of the Term. But I remems-
ber particularly the firft Information Mr. Dug-
dale gave in the Country, came to my Coulin’s
Hands from the Mayor of Stafford, and 1 hap-
pen’d to fee him, I think it was Chrifftmas-Day.
Jt came inclofed 1n a Letter, Upon the Appre-
henfion of Mr. Dugdale, 1 remember I met him,
and he told me of it, and {aid he, the Parlia-
ment did not {it that Day: So he went to ac-
quaint the Lord Licutenant of the County,
that is, the Duke of Adowmonth with it, who
carried 1t to the King. But when Mr, Dug-
dale was fent for, my Coulin went down, and
writ me 2 good Character of him. As foon as
ever Dugdale came to Town, before he went to
be examined by the Council, as [ remember, I
went with fome Gentlemen to fpeak with him,
and faid I to him, Can you fay any thing about
S Edmundbury Godfrey’s Death? Said he, [
remenmber fuch a Letter came at fuch a Time from
Fazher Havcourty fo Father Ewers, wherein were
thefe <wordsy This Night Sir Edmundbury God-
frey s difpatched,  And faid he, [ remember I
asked the Queftion of Ewers, Is not this likely to
fpoil all the Defign? No, faid he, be was a Muan
ihat profecuted Perfons that went to debauch’d Hou-
fes, and it will be faid to be fome of them that did
rcvenge themfelves of bimy or words to the fame
ciieCt.  This made me recolle€t the Time I had
the Difcourfe with the Gentlemen in the Coun-
try. 1 happened to be out of Town when the
Murderers of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey were
Tried; as foon as I came to Town, and found
that the Murderers of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey
were Condemned, I was at a Coffee-houfe en-
quring how it was managed; fome I found
(lighted it, others did not know what to make
of it. Was not Mr. Dugdale there? faid I. No,
fad they. Then I prefume, faid I, that a wvery
material Evidence was omitted, Upon this I went

to Mr. Dugdale’s Chamber, and there, faid I to
Vor, Il

him, What was the Reafon you wwere not pro-
duced as an Evidence, at the Trial of Sir Edmand-
bury Godfrey's Murderers?  Said I, You tdd

Juch a thing, and I bope you told Truth, for I dow’t

bear that you have ever contradified ity that you
Jaw a Letter about the Monday after be was mur-
dered, In my judement it is very malerialy if you
bave fworn it if your Depofition be frue, or elfe
gou did ill to report it. Said 1, Pray let me [ee
the Copy of your Depofition feorn before the Couril,
He fthew’d it me, and there was not a Syllable
of it, that I could fee, but afterwards appear’d to
be there, |

L. C. 7. Thatis rot very material, if the thipe
it felf be true. N

Chetwin, But its not being there, made me re-
member 1,

Mr. Recorder. Pray fet up Mr, Dugdale again.
Now pray tell the Contents of Mr, #hitebread’s
Letter.

Dugdale. 'The Contents of it was, to encou-
rage Mr. Ewers to go on to be careful whom he
did intruft, that they fhould be fuch Fellows as
were defperate, hardy, courageous and ftout, or
to that purpofe; it was no matter whether they
were Gentlemnen or no, {o they were but courageous
and defperate.

Mr. Juft. dtkins, What were they to do?

Dugdale. For the killing of the King,

L.C. 7. Was that in Whitebread’s Letter?

Dugdale. Mr. Whitebread did write thofe words,
they were in the Letter.

Whitebread. Was that very word in the Letter,
for kiliing the King ?

Digdale. It was, that they fhould be ftout and
courageous Perions.

L.C. 7. For what End?

Dugdale. It was for taking away the King’s
Life,

L.C. 7. I ask you, recollett your felf, was it
by way of delcription of fome Defign or Plot,
that thofe Perfons were to be chofen out? or was
it in downright words, for killing the King ?

Dugdale. To the beft of my remembrance they
were thole very words.

L.C. 7. It was much he would write fuch
words 1n a Letter.

Dugdale. 1 was one that was made choice of
about it,

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Were you to be one?

Dugdale. Xes, 1 was,

Mr. Juft. Pemberion. Mr. Gavair, you know
who 1t was you entertain’d for this Bufinefs, and
you could truft them.

L.C. 7 How were thefe Letters conveyed?
Were they fent by the Ordinary Poft ? |

Dugdale. Yes, they were, and they trufted me
with them, becaufe being direfted to me, if they
were intercepted, I fhould be hang’d, and they faved,

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. Upon thefe Letters, what
were you entertained to dor

Dugdale. My Lord, I was entertained before
by my Lord §tafford, and Mr. &wers,

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. What to do?

Dugdale. To kill the King.

Whitebread. Pray, Sir, how came you to fee
thefe Letters? Did you intercept chem, and read
them your felf ¢

Dugdale. 1 did intercept them, and open them
of my own felf.

Whitebread, Pray take notice of what he fays,
Gentlemen,

5% 2 Mr.
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Mr. Recorder. The Jury do take notice,

.. C. Baron. Do you know any thing againt
Mr. Turner and Mr. Fenwick ?

Dugdale. Mr. Ewers hath told me by Word of
Mouth, that he was to carry on the Defign in
[Vorcefterfbire, but I faw him with Mr. Lwers
and Lewfon, and others, when he was going to
his Brother Turner’s, then in Nettinghamfhire, and
they did confult and agree there, in my Hearing,
to all that I have faid before.

Turier, What did I affent to?

Dugdale. Why this Defign, youand Mr. Ecwers
and Lewfon, and others, agreed to what 1 faid
hefore.

Turner. Where was this?

Dugdale. At Tixall and other Places.

Turser. In what Month?

Dugdale. Tt was about two Years ago, about
the beginning of the Bufinefs.

Turner., Where was it?

Duzdale. It was at Mr. Ewers’s Chambtr. You
know me very weil,

Turner. 1 have not been in Staffordfbire thele
four Years.

L.C. 7. Why, don’t you know him, Mr.
Turiter

Turner. I do know I have been there a matter
of three or four times in my whole Life, but have
not been there thefe four Years.

NMr. Juit. W¥indbam. Haye you any thing to fay
againlt Fenwick ¢ |

Daugdale. 1 don’t know that I ever faw him
before,

Myr. Recorder, But he fpeaks fully as to the
other four.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Call Mr. Praiice, and fwear him.
Fhich <vas done,

Sir Cr. Levinz, Come on, Mr, Prance. What
can you fay to Mr. Fenwick, orany of the others?

Prance. Mr. Harconrty 1 made him an Image
of our Lady about a Year ago, and when 1 was
receiving Money for it, (it was to be fent into
Maryland j you told me then that there was a
Defign of killing the King.

L. C. F. Who told you?

Pranee. Mr. Harcourt, that very time.

Sir Cr. Levinz, When was it ¢

Prance. it was when it was fent to Maryland,
in the Portnzal’s Country; you know it well,
Mr. Harcourt.

Harcourt. 1 know nothing of 1t.

Sir Cr. Levinz, Pray let him alone, til] we have
done with him,

Harcourt. 1 defire but to know when 1t was.

Prance. When I received the Money for the
Pifture , 1t wasa Year ago.

Sir Cr. Levinz. W hat fay you to Mr. Fenwick ¢

Prance. 1 was in Mr. [reland's Chamber mn
Ruffel-Strect, and there was Ireland, Fenwick, and
Growe, and they were talking of 50000 Men
that fhould be raifed, and be in readinefs to carry
on the Catholick Caufe, and {fettle the Catholick
Religion. 1 asked who fhould govern them?
They told me, my Lord Bellafis, my Lord Pezwis,
and my Lord £randel.

L.C. 7. Whotold you fo?

Prance. Mr. Fenwick,

L. C. 7. Flow long ago?

Prance. About a Fortnight Michaclnas laft,
Mr. Gieve came to me two or three Days after-
ward, to buy two or three Silver Spoons to give
away at a Chriftning, and then 1 asked him,

What Office he fhould be in? He told me, Ha

could not tell : But he told me, my Lord Ay
del, my Lord Bellafis, my Lord Petre, and my
Lord Powis, had Commiflions for thefe Things
to give.

L. C. ¥. This Grove told you?

Prance. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. ¥. But what did Fenwick tell you?

Prance. He told me who were to govern the
Army, my Lord Bellafis, my Lord Powis, and
my Lord Arundel of Wardonr.

Sir Cr. Levinz. Had he any Difcour{e with you
about Trade?

Pirance. He faidy I fhould not fear Trade, I
fhould have Church-work enough.

Mr. Belwood, Pray fpeak that again.

Prance. T asked him, What fhall we poor
Tradefmen do, if we have Civi/ Wars in Englaid?
O, faid he, you need not fear having Trade
enough, you fhall have Church-work enough, to
make Images, Chalices, and Crucifixes, and Vafes,
and {uch like Things.

Mr. Belwsod. 1t you will ask Mr. Prance any
Queftions, pray do.

Fenwick. My Lord, I am certain of this, that
he never faw me at Mr. Irefand's Chamber, in
that Company, nor did I ever fpeak of any fuch
Thing before him.

Prance. Mr. Ircland and he have been fitting
together whole Hours, and confulting about fome
Concern or other, Mifchief, no doubt, My Lord,

I went to Mr. Fenwic’s Chamber, after my
Ghoftly Father was dead.

L. C.¥. What was his Name?

Prance. Father fames. And he importuned me
to come to Confeffion to him; I told him, I was
not yet very well fatusfied who I fhould go to,
to be my Ghoftly Father,

Fenwick, When was this, Mr. Prance?

Prance. Before Michaelmas, about a Week o
Eight Days.

L.C. ¥. Did not you know him, Mr, Fenwwick?

Fenwick, Who, Father Fames? yes, very well,
and I know Mr. Prance, but not upon that Ac-
count.

Prance. And I brought you a Bell home, for
the Altar, at the fame time.

Mr., Juft. Pemberton. Who was it importuned
you to have him for your Confeflor?

Prance. It was Mr. Fenwick; and I told him,
when I did come to Confeflion, I would come to
him. And he enjoined me, once or twice, o
fay nothing of what I heard faid.

L. C.¥. If Harcourt have any Queftions to ask
him, let him.

" Haycourt. Can you fay that ever I fpoke to
you about any fuch Bufinefs?

Prance. Yes, as fure as I ftand in this Place,
and youin that. And one Zhompfonr came with
you, when you paid me for four Candlefticks.

L. C. F. Do you know Mr, Thompfon ?

Harcourt, Yes, 1 do.

L. C. 7. Had you any Candlefticks from M.
Prance ¢

Harconrt, 1 had, a great while ago.

Prance. He paid me 44[. that Time for them.

Mr. Recorder, Call Mr. Bedlow. Who was

Sfworn.

Sir Cr. Levinz. What can you fay to any of the
Prifoners at the Bar?
L. C. ¥. What can you fay, as to Mr, J7hite-
bread and Mr, Fenaick ¢
Bedlow.
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Redlsws. My Lord, T do not queftion, but
NMir. Pbitebread and Mr. Fenwick will objet a-

oainft e, my refufing to _give n Evic_lence -
—ainit them at the former Trial 3 but I think that
there are fome upon your Honourable Bench,
at can make my Apology for not giving in all
my Evidence againft them then; for it was not
convenient, becaufe it would have ftopt a De-
fign 1 was then upon, and could not get off {rom,
Mt was about M. Reading, whom 1 was then
ceating, with, for Mr. [Vbitebread and Mr., Fen-
_sick, a5 well as the Lords n the Tower, and he
old me, that he would depend upon my Confi-
Jence and Juflice as to the 1ords, according as 1
Jid deal with thefe Mens if 1 brought them off,
L would believe, and the Lords in the Tewer
would believe, that I would bring them off too,
¢y that [ did make an Apology then In the Court,
char [ could not fafely fay all that 1 had to fay
. that Time.  Some of the Juftices, I believe, do
comember ity and in that which I did give In a-
gainft chen, ] did not fay all, nor half, that 1
could have faid. '

hiehread. Did you fay any thing of that at
the Jaft Trial:

Redivo, 1 will anfwer that Matter to the Court,
L tis the meafure they always take to Intrap the
Wineis: for now 1 am out of a Country that
will sive me an Indulgence and Difpenfation
to fpeak exatly toa Day, or an Hour, as their
St. Osier’s Witnefles have.

7. .. But what fay you now {0 them ?

Redlscy. 1did then fay, that Idid fee Mr. #7bite-
bread, and he hath been in feveral Confultations
for the carrying on of the Plot; but then 1 did
it with a Caution, that I never heard of Mr.
Iihitebread, that he was fo very much eoncern-
ed; and indeed I had no Reafon to fay fo, be-
caufe I heard him my {lf, and could not well
fpeak from the Hear-fay of avother. And as
for Mr. Fenwick, 1 never heard him give In any
Anfwer, but [ have feen Fenwick at the Confult
there, _

L. C. ¥. Have they ever told you any thing
concerning the killing of the King?

Bedlowo. W hitebread told Coleman, at Mr, Har=
cours’s Chamber, the manner of fending the four
RufBans to Wandfor, about Sepiember.

Harcorrt. Inever faw him twicein all my Life,
b:fare.

M. Belwood, Do you know of any Reward
thofe Ruffians were to have ¢

Bedlow. Yes, I faw Harconrt take the Money
out of a Cabinet, I think it was Fourfcore, or
One Hundred Pounds; the Sum I don’t weli re-
member, Harcort paid them the Money, by
Mr. Coleman’s Order, and gave the Meflenger 2
Guinea from Mr. Coleman, to drink his Healt_h.
Mr. Colzman was gone a little before I came 10,
and fo [ could not know that Coleman gave I,
but he faid fo.

Sir Cr. Leving, What was Pickering and Grove
10 have?

Bedlow., Grove was to have 1500/, and a Pro-
mife of the Favour of the Lords: 1500/, was
the Sum appointed at Mr. Harcourt’s Chamber,
and doubtlefs in feveral other Places, but there I
heard it from Mr. Whitebread, and Pritchard,
and Le Faire, and Kaines; and Pickering was
to have a2 Number of Mafles, I can’t tell exalk-
ly how many, but they were lo many, as at

124, a Mafs would amount to be equal to M.
Grove.

Mpr. Belwood, Pray, Siry, what was that for?

Bedlpw, For killing the King, But Pickering
had been difciplined before, and received a
Check from the Superiors, becaufe he had been
neghgent and {lipt many Opportunities. One
Time the IFlint of his Piltol was loofe, another
Time there was no Powder in the Pan, another
Time, he had Charged with all Bullets, and no
Powder.

L.C. 7. Did you fee Harcourt Cdeliver the
Gl}il‘;@ﬂ, for the Expedition of the /indfor Buli-
nefls :

Bedlow. Yes, my Lord, as from Colema, to
drink his Healch.

Mr. Belwood, Pray, was cither Wbitebread or
Fenwick knowing of the Agreement, when it was
{poken of?

Bedlow. 1 have feen Fenwick at Harconrss and
Whitehread's Chamber, when it was {poken of;
they were all of one Opinion, they had decreed
it. | never faw Wbitebread bur twice at Hai-
court’s Chamber, where one Time was Farcourt
himfelf, at another Time was Pritchard, and Le
Faire, and others; at which Time Sir George
Wakeman's Bulinels was fpoken of, and becaufe he
would not accept the 10000/, 15000/, was agreed
to be given him; and upon Sir Gearge’s Trial,
I fhall let you know where he had the Money
too, but I defire to be exculed at prefent. 1 ihall
fpeak 1t to-morrow.

L. C. ¥. What did they confult there?

Bedlow. They were confulting how it fhould
be done; and what fhould be done, if they did
not do it. Then Ireland propofed, that the moft
certain way was to do it at his Morning- Walks
in New-Market; Fenwick was to go, and wich
him went Comyers; 1 heard Seven or Eightof
them were to go.

L. C. Baron Montagne. What fay you to Tnr-
ner ¢

Bedlow. Of Mr. Turner, 1 know nothing, but
what I have heard others fay.

L.C. Bar. What fay you to Gavan ?

Bedlozw. 1 know nothing of him, but only 1
have heard Mr, Harcour? fay he hath been a great
Manager of this Bulinels.

L. C. ¥. This 1s nothing to the Purpofe, what
others fay.

Bedlpw. Mr. Harcourt is no Stranger to my
bringing of Pacquets and Portmanties over to
him, from Beyond the Seas.

Harconrt. He never brought but one in all his
Life-time.

Bedlow. What, Did I never bring but one
Pacquer? Have not I brought divers, and divers
Portmantles

Harcourt, You never broight a Portmantle in
your Life.

Bedlow. 1 have brought divers.

Harcourt. You know I never faw you but twice
in my Life before to-day, and when I met with
you at the Privy-Council. |

Bedlsw. My Lord, the Trials have been {o put
off, that I could never get all my Witnelles to-
gether, but I have Seven or Eight of my Wit-
> fles that are out of Town, that would make
this very clear. My Lord, there was never a
Pacquec of Letters that I brought over to Mr.
Harconrt, but did contain in it a Defign of the

Subver-
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Subverfion of the Government; and it muft be
more than two Pacquets that 1 have brought
over; for I have brought Letters from #atton,
and Letters from St. Omers, and Letters from
Bruges, and from Paris, and from Valledolid and
Sallamanca; and all thefe Letters contamed in
them the Management of this Plot, how far they
had proceeded beyond Sea, and Anfwers how far
they had proceeded in Eugland, from him, and
to them, to and again, from Time to Time, m
carrying on the Defien of Subverting the Go-
vernment, and altering the Religion ; wherem
was given an Account of the Army and Forces
that were to be raifed, both Here, and Beyond
Sea 3 what Contributions were made, or expect-
ed, at Home, or Abroad, all was lodged in
Mr. Harcony?'s Hand, at leaftwife an Account of
the greateft Part. And I have been {ent to Mr.
. Langhorne with Papers from Farconrt, about
this Affair, to Regifter them; and of that I
thall give you an Account, upon Mr. Langhorne's

Trial.
L. C. . Well, now ask lim what you will.

Whitehread, Sir, 1defire toask you one Quefti-
on.
Bedlsw. 1 defire it may beasked the Court,
IVbitebiead, 1 defire toask him whether he was
a Lieutenant in Flanders, or no?

Bedlow. Yes, 1 was.

IVhitebiead. Of Horfe, or Foot?

Bedlezy. Of Foot,

IWhitebread. Take notice, there 1sno fuch Of-
ficer of Yoot in all Fanders.

Bedlow, T was then in the Regiment of the
Prince of Freizland.

Whitehread. There are no Lieutenants in all
the Flanders Compantes, only Captamns and Al-
fara’s.

Bedlow. My Lord, I had a Commiflion, and
I have a Commiffion to be fo, and I defire [ may
fend for it.

L.C. 7. 1t is no very material Thing; as
foon as it comes, they fhall fee your Commufli-
On.
Hareonrt. You fay you have had Papers from
me, and been very familiar with me; Pray, how
can this be, when, as I did declare before the
Lords in Council, that was the third Time I e-
ver faw your Face? The firlt Time he came to
me, he brought Letters from Dunkirk, five Years
ago; when [ opened them I found them direct-
ed to other Perfons, and to them I fent them,
my Name being only ufed in the outfide Cover ;
and it feems upon that Confidence that he had in
me at that Time, not long after, he came to
my Chamber, and told me, He had lately become
a Roman Catholick, and by that means had [oft
his Friends, and that he then was in Want, and,
unlefs I did affift him, it would be very hard
with him; tho’ his Father deferted him, yet
he had fome Friends, whom he expefted would
do {fomcthing for him, and then I will repay
ou. . .
} L.C.¥. When was this?

Harconrt, The fecond Time that I ever faw
him in my Life, and this is four Years fince,
Then faid I, What will ferve your Turn? He
told me, 205, which I lentto him 3 and I never
faw his Face afterwards, till I met him at the
Privy-Council; and therefore, how fhould a
Man believe a Word he fays?

L.C. . But how fhall a Man know, that
what you fay is true?

Bedlow. I will make it appear, at the Trial of
the Lords, that I fent to him for 10/, and had
it. I cannot now prove it, without bringing fome
Witnefles that 1 have behind a Curtain, and [ will
not difcover them till then, they fhall not know
who they are.

Mr. Fufe. Windbam. Will you ask him any
Queftions?

Bedlow, My Lord, I have not faid the One
hundredth Part of what I can fay, honeftlv, and
like a Chriftian, of Mr. Harconit,

Harcourt, You may fay what you wiil, but
you won’t {peak Truth.

Bedlow, Mr. Harconrt went with me to Mr. Cole-
mair's, when I carried over the Confult. There
was the greateft Part of the Defign, in that which
I wasto carry over to St. Omers, and that Confule
did I fetch from Mr, Coleman, and Mr. Harcourt
was with me, and I had Thanks from Mr. Co/.
map for my Fidelity in the Bufinefs, and Expe-
dition in bringing and carrylng the Pacquets.
1 was recommended to my Lord Arundel by
Mr. Hareourt, and was promifed, by his Lord-
fhip, all the Friendfhip and Favour imaginable,
when the Times were turned,

L. C. 7. Why here, you fee, he names feveral
Places and Thimes, wherein he met with you,

Harcourt. Not one Word of all this is true.

Bedlszv. I defire you to ask Mr. Haicourt, my
Lord, Whether he was not in Auguft, or Sep-
tember laft, in Company with me and Le Faire 2

Farcourt. Le Faire! 1 know no Le Fajie,

Bedlow. Le Feove, then,

Harcourt, Le Fevre, 1 believe I did {ee at that
Time, but not lince.

Bedlow, Pritchard did recommend the Care of
me to him.

L. C. 7. There, he namesanother Time, when
youand Pritchard were there together.

Bedlow. Pritchard was my Confident, and my
great Iriend, and told them, This is a Perfon
whofe Fidelity you have tried, in carrying over
fuch and fuch Letters, and therefore you may ve-
ry well truft him, and take care of him: And fo
he recommended me, as one that was really fit
to underftand the Bortom of the Defign. And
Pritchard did tell me, before them, that the King’s
Death was intended as a Part of ir; and he fent
again another time to Mr, Harcourt, but it was
about no material Bufinefs; and Harconrt gave a
Bill of Exchange to carry to what Citizen [
don’t know, but to Sir George Wakeman, to have
2000/. by whofe Qrders, asthey faid, your Lord-
fhip fhall know upon his Trial, but 1 faw Hay-
conrt give him the Bill of Exchange.

Mr. Juft. Dolben. Who gave the Bif] ?

Bedlow, 1t was Harcourt, my Lord,

Hareours, Who was by, when this Bill was
giver. ?

Bedlow. Kaines, and Siv Willian, Anderfon

Harconrt, How was this Bill drawn ?

Bedlow. It was drawn upon 2 Citizen, and left
in your Hands,

Harcourt, 1 defire he may name the Citizen,
and, if he can, make it out; if he do, it will
appear upon the Merchant’s Books.

Bedlow. Sir George I¥akeman received a Bill of
Exchange from Mr. Harcourt, and he was told,

Here is a Bill of Exchange for 2000/, as part
of



1679. O.B. Gavan and Turner, for High-Treafon. 847

of a greater Sum; tO which Sir Georee ¥ akeman
anfwered, That 15000/, was a [mall Reward for
the fertling of Religion, and preferving of the
Three Kingdoms from Ruin 5 but if it were not
for fucha Woman, he would never undercake it,
but for her he would do any thing, ‘And after he
had given Sir George Wakeman the Bill, Sir George
IVakeman opened it, and read it, but I did not

read the Name that was to It |
Fenwick. My Lord, it feems not fufficient Proof,

that he fays, he faw a Bill of Exchange, unlefs he
fays from whom, and to whom, that it may be
proved by the Books, or otherwife.

L.C. 7. You fay well, Mr. Feawick, 1f {o be
he had been the Perfon concerned in the Bill,
rhat he were either one that drew ity or was to
receive the Money, then it was {trange that he
thould not know the Parties to 1t but I muik
tell you, where he was not one nor the other,
it was a collateral mater. Do People take no-
rice of every particular Bill of lixchange that
they fee, which they are neither to pay nor re-
coive ¢

Fenawick, But what Reafon does he give your
Tordfhip, or the Jury, to believe that there was
fuch a Bill, unlefs he does produce either the Bill,
or the Perfon that paid 1c?

Bedlew. T did only fee che Bill out of Mr. Har-
conrt’s Fland, but it was read there only by Sir

George IV akeman.
L. C. ¥. Isit a Pin matter, whether there was

fuch a Bill or no, or whether he had mentioned
it or no?

Feirwick, But feeing he hath mentioned it, I
fay there is nothing of Proof of ir, but only his
bare Word,

L.C. ¥. Yes, there 1s his Oath,

Sir Cr. Leving. And I defire the Jury to take
notice how unreafonable a Thing it is that you
ask. You would have Mr. Bedlsw produce the
Bill of Exchange, that was given to Sir George
IWikeman to receive the Money.

Bedisto. 1 have only one Word more, Sir George
IWakeman veceived the Bill of Exchange from Mr.
Hareonrt, read it himielf, folded it up, and went
and received the Money ; and that the Court will
be pleafed to fee my Commuffion, for now I have
it here,

IVhich was read by my Lord Chicf Fuflice

North, aid feveral others.

Sir Cr. Levinz., We have only this one Matter
to trouble your Lordthip and the Jury with. You
perceive by the Evidence that hath been given,
that the main Matter begins at the Confult of the
24th of April, when the Confult was; new to
fortify this Evidence, we are now to produce a
Letter, that was written from one Petre, at St.
Omers, a Jeluit, wherein is mention made, that he
was to give notice, Mr, Fhitebread had appointed
a general Meeting, juft at that ‘Time, in London,
at which they were to confult of very great Mat-
ters; and they were to be very private in their
coming to, and appearing about the Town. And
this Letter was taken amongft Mr. Hareonrt’s
Papers, and to prove it, we call Sir Thomas Dole-
mait, [ IVho wwas [evorn.]

S Cr. Levinz, Pray, what can you fay where
this Letter was found ?

Sir Thowas Doleman, It was found amongft
Mr. ITaisort’s bapers, in 2 Bag ot his Papers that
was committed to my Care to fearch,

L.?‘L.. C.7. Can you tell what Day you found

Sir Thomas Doleman, It was a matter of fix or

feven Days after Mr. Oates had given his Infor-
mation of this Plot to the Council.

Harcours, What Paper i it ?
Mr, Fuft, dthins, Hear it firft.

L. C. 7. Itis a Letter found amongft your Pa-
pers.

Harcours, Who is it from?
L.C. 7. It is from one Mr.

know fuch a one?

Cl. of the Cr. It is fubfcribed, E. P,

I-}}zmm'z‘.. Yes, my Lord, I do; I will deny
nothing of the Truth,

Then the Letter was read, in bec verba.

Petre, do yeu

Honoured Dear Sir,
E Have but Time to convey thefe following Particu-

lars to you. Firft I am to give you Natice, that
it hath feem’d fitling to or:r NMafter Confult, Pyov.
&ec. 1o fix the 2 1ff of April icxt, Stilo veteri, for
toe Mecting, at London, o vir Congregation 5 oi
woich Day, all thole that bawe a Suffrage, are to
be prefent there, that they may be ready to give a
Begininng to the fame on the 24th, which is the next
Day afler St, George’s Day: Zou are warned to
bave jus {uffragii, and therefore, if your Occafiois
Jhould not peruit sou to be prefent, you are to figiiiy
as muchy o the end, others, in their Ranks, be cr-
dered to fupply your Abfence.  Every one is minded
atfo, not to bafen to London long before the Time
appoiited, wor to appear much about the Tewn, till
twe Meettig be overy left Occafion fhould be given 1o
[ufpeit the Defizn. Finally, Secrecy, as 2o the Time
and Place, is much recommended to all thefe that
receive Summons, as i will appear of its own Na-
fure neceffiiy.,

Tertio pro Domino Solono Difco.
Benefact, Prov. Luntenls,

I am firaitned for Time, that I can only affure
youy I fhall be mach glad of obliging you any <ways.

S IR,

Your Servant,
Edward Petre.

L. C. #. Come, now, Mr. Harconit, will you
expound this Letter to me, that {peaks of this
Meeting and Privacy ?

Harconrt, Yes, my Lord ; tho’ 1t was not my
Letter, yet I will tell you whar the Meaning of
it was. ‘That Letter was writ to one, who had
Fus Stffragii, a Right to come and Vote i our
Congregation, which, according to the Conititu-
tion and Orders of our Society, is within the
Compafs of three Years, where they meer about
the particular Affurs of the Society.

L. C. ¥. What was 1t about:

Harconrt. It was about choofing an Officer ;
choofing a Procurator to {end to Keme s that wis
the chief Point: And Secrecy was a Thing thac
was recommended ¢ every one, as it was fit it
fhould be, we living in a Country where every
one’s Eye was upon u3, and we were an lhye-lore
to them, we ought to be cautious of mecting In
fuch Numbers, as might give an Cfience ; and
this was the only Thing, indeed,

L.C.¥. Look you. Nz Harcourt, vou fay
well, bur we arc not o ve aleogether Diiciples

Ot




